SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM - ACGR

ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (WITH CONSOLIDATED CHANGES FOR YEAR 2014)

- 1. Report is Filed for the Year 2014
- 2. Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter PHILIPPINE LONG DISTANCE TELEPHONE COMPANY
- 3. Ramon Cojuangco Building, Makati Avenue, Makati City
 Address of Principal Office
 Postal Code
- 4. SEC Identification Number PW-55
- 5. (SEC Use Only)

Industry Classification Code

- 6. BIR Tax Identification Number <u>000-488-793</u>
- 7. (632) 8168553

Issuer's Telephone number, including area code

8. Not Applicable

Former name or former address, if changed from the last report

SUMMARY OF ACGR UPDATES FOR 2014

A. BOARD MATTERS

- BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 - Composition of the Board, p. 5
 - Directorship in Other Companies, p. 7-8
 - Shareholding in the Company, p. 11
- OTHER EXECUTIVE, NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, p. 12
- CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, pp. 14-17
- ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM, p. 17-21

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

POLICIES, pp. 21-24

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

- ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS, p. 29
- CHANGES IN EXISTING POLICIES, p. 33

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS

- REMUNERATION POLICY AND STRUCTURE FOR DIRECTORS, p. 34
- AGGREGATE REMUNERATION, pp. 34-35
- REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT, p. 35

E. BOARD COMMITTEES

- COMMITTEE MEMBERS, pp. 38-41
- WORK DONE AND ISSUES ADDRESSED, pp. 42-43
- COMMITTEE PROGRAMS, p. 44

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

- STATEMENT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM, p. 45
- RISK POLICY, pp. 45-47
- CONTROL SYSTEM, pp. 47-48

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

- INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM, pp. 48-49
- INTERNAL AUDIT, pp. 49-50

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

- POLICIES RELATIVE TO STAKEHOLDERS, pp. 52-55
- CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY, p. 55
- PERFORMANCE ENHANCING MECHANISMS FOR EMPLOYEE PARTICIPATION, p. 55-57

I. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

- OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE, pp. 58-59
- DISCLOSURE OF RPT, pp. 61-62

J. RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

- RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE EFFECTIVELY IN STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS, pp. 63-72
- DIVIDENDS, pp. 64-65
- K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM, p. 72
- L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES, pp. 73-75
- N.B Updates have been highlighted.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

A.	BOARD	MATTERS
	1)	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	,	(a) Composition of the Board
		(b) Summary of Corporate Governance Policy
		(c) Vision and Mission Review and Approval
		(d) Directorship in Other Companies
		(e) Shareholding in the Company
	2)	CHAIRMAN AND CEO
	3)	CEO AND KEY MANAGEMENT SUCCESSION
	4)	OTHER EXECUTIVE, NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
	5)	CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	6)	ORIENTATION AND EDUCATION PROGRAM
	-,	
В.	CODE O	F BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS
	1)	POLICIES
	2)	DISSEMINATION OF CODE
	3)	COMPLIANCE WITH CODE
	4)	RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	,	(a) Policies and Procedures
		(b) Conflict of Interest
	5)	FAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND CONTRACTUAL RELATIONS
	6)	ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
	-	
C.	BOARD	MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
	1)	SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS
	2)	DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS
	3)	SEPARATE MEETING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
	4)	QUORUM REQUIREMENT
	5)	ACCESS TO INFORMATION
	6)	EXTERNAL ADVICE
	7)	CHANGES IN EXISTING POLICIES
_	DENALIN	ERATION MATTERS
D.	KEIVIUN	
	1)	REMUNERATION PROCESS
	2)	REMUNERATION POLICY AND STRUCTURE FOR DIRECTORS
	3)	AGGREGATE REMUNERATION
	4)	STOCK RIGHTS, OPTIONS AND WARRANTS
	5)	REMUNERATION OF MANAGEMENT
E.	BOARD	COMMITTEES
	1)	NUMBER OF MEMBERS, FUNCTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	2)	COMMITTEE MEMBERS
	2) 3)	CHANGES IN COMMITTEE MEMBERS
		WORK DONE AND ISSUES ADDRESSED
	4) 5)	COMMITTEE PROGRAMS
	5)	COMMITTEL FROGRAMIS
F.	RISK M	ANAGEMENT SYSTEM
	1)	STATEMENT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
	2)	RISK POLICY
	3)	CONTROL SYSTEM

G.	INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL
	1) STATEMENT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 2) INTERNAL AUDIT
н.	ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS
	POLICIES RELATIVE TO STAKEHOLDERS
ı.	DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY
	1) OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 5 2) DISCLOSURES IN ANNUAL REPORT 5 3) EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S FEE 6 4) MEDIUM OF COMMUNICATION 6 5) RELEASE OF AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT 6 6) COMPANY WEBSITE 6 7) DISCLOSURE OF RPT 6
J.	RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
	1) RIGHT TO PARTICIPATE EFFECTIVELY IN STOCKHOLDERS' MEETINGS
K.	INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM
L.	CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES
M.	BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL
N.	INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS
Anı	nex A: Defined Terms

Note: Updates/changes in 2014 are in blue font. Hyperlinks are in green font.

A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

Number of Directors per Articles of Incorporation ¹	13
Actual number of Directors for the year	13 ²

(a) Composition of the Board

Complete the table with information on the Board of Directors:

Director's Name	Type [Executive (ED), Non- Executive (NED) or Independent Director (ID)]	If nominee, identify the principal	Nominator in the last election (if ID, state the relationship with the nominator)	Date first elected	Date last elected (if ID, state the number of years served as ID) ³	Elected when (Annual/ Special Meeting)	No. of years served as director ⁴
Manuel V. Pangilinan			(5)	11/24/98	06/10/14	Annual Meeting ("AGM")	16.1
Napoleon L. Nazareno	ED		(5)	11/24/98	06/10/14	AGM	16.1
James L. Go	NED	JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGSHI)	(5)	11/03/11	06/10/14	AGM	3.2
Helen Y. Dee	` '		(5)	06/18/86	06/10/14	AGM	28.5
Ray C. Espinosa	ED		(5)	11/24/98	06/10/14	AGM	16.1
Juan B. Santos	NED	Social Security System (SSS)	(6)	01/25/11	06/10/14	AGM	3.9
Setsuya Kimura	NED	NTT DOCOMO, Inc. (NTTD)	(7)	07/05/11	06/10/14	AGM	3.5
Hideaki Ozaki	` '		(7)	12/06/11	06/10/14	AGM	3.1
Artemio V. Panganiban	ID		(8)	4/23/13	06/10/14 [ID: 1.7]	AGM	1.7
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	ED		(5)	03/29/11	06/10/14	AGM	3.8
Pedro E. Roxas	ID		(8)	03/01/01	06/10/14 [ID: 2.5]	AGM	(9)
Alfred V. Ty	ID		(8)	06/13/06	06/10/14 [ID: 2.5]	AGM	(10)
Tony Tan NED Caktiong		(7)	07/08/08	06/10/14	AGM	6.5	

¹ A copy of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, as amended (the "Articles of Incorporation") is posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/Articles-of-Incorporation-and-By-laws/pse_amended-articles_revised_2014.pdf?sfvrsn=0

² There were three (3) independent directors for the entire fiscal year 2014.

³ Reckoned from the election immediately following January 2, 2012. (ACGR footnote)

⁴ Reckoned from the date of first election as director up to December 31, 2014.

⁵ Several stockholders including PTIC, MPRI and BTF Holdings, Inc.

⁶ Several stockholders including SSS.

Several stockholders including NTTD and NTTC.

⁸ Several individuals and corporate stockholders, including Ma. Criselda B. Guhit, Leo I. Posadas, Nerissa S. Ramos, Adelaida C. Manuel, Abner Tito L. Alberto, Kathyrn A. Zarate, Erlinda L. Alvero, BTF Holdings, Inc., PTIC and MPRI.

⁹ Elected on, and served as Independent Director since, March 1, 2001; total term served as Independent Director up to December 31, 2014 is 13.8 years.

¹⁰ Elected on, and served as Independent Director since, June 13, 2006; total term served as Independent Director up to December 31, 2014 is 8.6 years.

(b) Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted. Please emphasize the policy/ies relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of minority shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibilities.

PLDT's corporate governance system is embodied in two (2) fundamental policies: the *PLDT Manual on Corporate Governance* (the "*PLDT CG Manual*")¹¹ and the *Code of Business Conduct and Ethics* (the "*PLDT Code of Ethics*")¹².

The *PLDT CG Manual*, as amended, was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors on March 26, 2010 pursuant to Philippine SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, Series of 2009, otherwise known as the *Revised Code of Corporate Governance* (the "SEC CG Code"). It supersedes the Company's *Manual on Corporate Governance* approved and adopted on September 24, 2002, as amended on March 30, 2004 and January 30, 2007. The *PLDT CG Manual* defines our corporate governance framework and structure. Together with the *Articles of Incorporation* and the Company's *By-Laws*, as amended ("By-Laws")¹³, it assigns and delineates functions and responsibilities, and entrusts powers, authorities and resources for the execution of such functions and responsibilities. The *PLDT CG Manual* provides, among other matters, the composition and responsibilities of the Board, the Company's duties towards its shareholders in general, its minority shareholders and its other stakeholders, and the Company's obligation to comply with applicable disclosure rules.

The *PLDT Code of Ethics*, on the other hand, defines the Company's corporate governance values of *Accountability*, *Integrity*, *Fairness* and *Transparency*, which the Company shall observe in the conduct of its business. It sets the governance and ethical standards that shall govern and guide all business relationships of the Company, its directors, officers and employees. It is through the *PLDT Code of Ethics* that the Company promotes a culture of good corporate governance based on the aforementioned values.

The implementation of the *PLDT CG Manual* and the *PLDT Code of Ethics* is guided by other related policies, guidelines and procedures which the Company has adopted, such as the Company's policies on conflict of interest, gifts, sponsorship and entertainment, supplier and vendor relations, and whistleblowing.

Board Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Board are set out in the *PLDT CG Manual* and *By-Laws*. The general responsibilities of the Board are to exercise corporate powers and conduct the business of the Company in consonance with good corporate governance principles and to foster the long term success of the Company and secure its sustained competitiveness. The major specific responsibilities of the Board include the following: (a) select and appoint the CEO and other officers; (b) determine, together with Management, the Company's vision, mission and strategic objectives; (c) oversee Management's implementation of business strategies, plans and policies, financial reporting and internal control systems, enterprise risk management, compensation policies and programs, and succession planning for senior management; and (d) ensure that the Company has an effective internal audit system, compliance program, investor relations program, communication program for sectors in the community in which the Company operates or which are directly affected by its operations, and an independent audit mechanism. The Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, Governance and Nomination Committee, Executive Compensation Committee and Technology Strategy Committee, assist the Board in the performance of its responsibilities.

Duties to Shareholders and Minority Stockholders

The *PLDT CG Manual* mandates that the Company shall respect and uphold the rights of stockholders, including the right to vote, pre-emptive right, the right to inspect corporate books and records, the right to timely receive relevant information, the right to dividends, and the appraisal right. The *PLDT CG Manual* also provides that it is the duty of the Board to facilitate the exercise of stockholders' rights, including stockholders' participation in annual or special meetings. Related to this, the Company, in addition to the requirements in the *Corporation Code*, promptly posts notices of annual meetings or special meetings on the Company website, along with the agenda, Information Statement and Annual Report; conducts voting by poll in stockholders' meeting and promptly posts the voting results on the Company website; and sends to all its stockholders its financial statements (contained in the Annual Report) at least 15 business days prior to its annual meeting without need for any request. The Company also explores and implements steps to reduce excessive or unnecessary costs that impede stockholders' participation in order to encourage stockholders to attend annual and special stockholders' meetings and to act with transparency and fairness at such meetings.

In addition to the foregoing stockholder rights, minority stockholders have the right to nominate candidates for directors, including independent directors, and the right to cumulative voting which enables minority shareholder representation on the Board. The rights of minority stockholders are protected through the Company's compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations and observance of best practices which increase the quality of Board oversight and lessen the risks arising from conflicts of interest, such as the election of independent directors in the Board, the all-independent director

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/corporate-governance-files/CG-Manual-/pldt-manual-on-corporate-governance-.pdf?sfvrsn=0.

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/policies/pldt-code-of-business-conduct-and-ethics.pdf?sfvrsn=4.

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/Articles-of-Incorporation-and-By-laws/pldt-by-laws-(amended).pdf?sfvrsn=0.

¹¹ A copy of the *PLDT CG Manual* is posted at:

¹² A copy of the *PLDT Code of Business Conduct and Ethics* is posted at:

¹³ A copy of the *By-Laws* is posted at:

composition of the Audit Committee, and the majority membership of independent directors in the Governance and Nomination Committee and Executive Compensation Committee; and with relevant Company policies on the handling of conflicts of interest and related party transactions which provide for the appropriate review, approval and disclosures of such relationships and transactions.

Respect for Stakeholders

PLDT recognizes that fulfilling its obligations to its various stakeholders is an integral aspect of good corporate governance. The Company's philosophy regarding its various stakeholders is embodied in the *PLDT CG Manual* and the *PLDT Group Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement* which considers as an integral part of the Company's business the imperative to help improve the overall well-being of the Filipino people. To achieve this goal, the Company proactively addresses the interests of its various stakeholders. As we seek to enhance value for our shareholders, we recognize our responsibility to: (a) provide quality products and services for our customers; (b) develop our employees; (c) work with our suppliers and business partners in an ethical and mutually beneficial manner; (d) care for the environment; and (e) improve our communities.

Disclosure Duties

It is the Company's policy to make timely disclosures of material information and transactions that could potentially affect the market price of the Company's shares and such other information which are required to be disclosed pursuant to the *Securities Regulation Code* ("*SRC*") and its Implementing Rules and Regulations including, without limitation, earnings results, acquisition or disposal of significant assets, off balance-sheet transactions, related party transactions, Board membership changes, shareholdings of Directors and Officers and any changes thereto, and remuneration of Directors and Officers. The Company files with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and the Philippine Stock Exchange ("PSE") all written disclosures or reports on material information and transactions in accordance with the *SRC* and its Implementing Rules and Regulations and the established procedures of the SEC and the PSE regarding such matters.

(c) How often does the Board review and approve the vision and mission?

The Company's Mission/Vision guides the overall strategic direction and plans and is thereby periodically reviewed and evaluated by the Board at least once a year during the review by the Board of such strategic direction, plans and budgets. The Mission/Vision and the corporate strategy were reviewed by the Board as part of its annual strategic planning session in the last financial year.

(d) Directorship in Other Companies

(i) Directorship in the Company's Group 14

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company's Board of Directors who hold the office of director in other companies within its Group:

Director's Name	Corporate Name of the Group Company	Type of Directorship (Executive, Non- Executive, Independent). Indicate if director is also the Chairman ¹⁵
Manuel V. Pangilinan	Smart Communications, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Connectivity Unlimited Resources Enterprise Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Francom Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman
	PH Communications Holdings Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman
	PLDT Global Corporation (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Digital Telecommunications Phils., Inc.	Non-Executive
	Digitel Mobile Phils., Inc.	Non-Executive
	PLDT Global Investments Holdings, Inc. (formerly SPi Global Holdings, Inc.)	Non-Executive, Chairman
	PLDT Online Investments PTE Ltd. (incorporated in Singapore)	Non-Executive, Chairman
	PLDT Digital Investments PTE Ltd. (incorporated in Singapore)	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Manila Electric Company	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Meralco PowerGen Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Beacon Electric Asset Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman

¹⁴ The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the Company. (ACGR footnote)

¹⁵ Excludes directorships in 2014 which have been relinquished as of the date of this report.

Napoleon L. Nazareno	Smart Communications, Inc.	Executive, President & CEO	
Napoleon E. Nazareno	ACes Philippines Cellular Satellite Corp.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	Mabuhay Investments Corporation	Executive, Chairman, President & CEO	
	ePLDT, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	PLDT Global Corporation	Non-Executive	
	·		
	Digital Telecommunications Phils., Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	Digitel Mobile Phils., Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman Non-Executive	
	PLDT Global Investments Holdings, Inc. (formerly SPi Global Holdings, Inc.)	Non-executive	
	PLDT Online Investments PTE Ltd. (incorporated in Singapore)	Non-Executive	
	PLDT Digital Investments PTE Ltd. (incorporated in Singapore)	Non-Executive	
	PLDT Communications and Energy Ventures Inc. (formerly, Pilipino Telephone Corporation)	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	Smart Broadband, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	Wolfpac Mobile, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	i-Contacts Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	Connectivity Unlimited Resources Enterprise Inc.	Executive, President & CEO	
	Francom Holdings, Inc.	Executive, President & CEO	
	Primeworld Digital System, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman	
	PH Communications Holdings Corporation	Executive, President & CEO	
	Beacon Electric Asset Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive	
	Manila Electric Company	Non-Executive	
	Meralco PowerGen Corporation	Non-Executive	
Ray C. Espinosa	Bonifacio Communications Corporation	Non-Executive	
	Manila Electric Company	Non-Executive, General Counsel	
	Beacon Electric Asset Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive	
	Meralco PowerGen Corporation	Non-Executive	
James L. Go	Manila Electric Company	Non-Executive	
	Meralco PowerGen Corporation	Non-Executive	
Artemio V. Panganiban	Manila Electric Company	Independent Director	
Pedro E. Roxas	Manila Electric Company	Independent Director	
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	ePLDT, Inc.	Executive, Corporate Secretary	
	PLDT Global Investments Holdings, Inc. (formerly SPi Global Holdings, Inc.)	Executive, Corporate Secretary	

(ii) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company's Board of Directors who are also directors of publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Director's Name	Name of Listed Company	Type of Directorship (Executive, Non-Executive, Independent). Indicate if director is also the Chairman
Manuel V. Pangilinan	First Pacific Company Limited (listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)	Executive
	Metro Pacific Investments Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman
	Philex Mining Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman
Napoleon L. Nazareno	First Pacific Company Limited (listed in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)	Non-Executive
Helen Y. Dee	EEI Corporation	Non-Executive
	National Reinsurance Corporation of the Philippines	Non-Executive, Chairman
	PetroEnergy Resources Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman

	Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman		
	Seafront Resources Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman		
Ray C. Espinosa	Lepanto Consolidated Mining Company	Independent Director		
James L. Go	JG Summit Holdings, Inc.	Executive, Chairman, CEO		
	Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corporation	Executive, Chairman		
	Universal Robina Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman		
	Robinsons Land Corporation	Non-Executive, Chairman		
	Robinsons Retail Holdings, Inc.	Executive, Deputy CEO		
	Cebu Air, Inc.	Non-Executive		
Artemio V. Panganiban	Petron Corporation	Independent Director		
	Bank of the Philippine Islands	Independent Director		
	First Philippine Holdings Corporation	Independent Director		
	Metro Pacific Investments Corporation	Independent Director		
	Robinsons Land Corporation	Independent Director		
	GMA Network	Independent Director		
	GMA Holdings	Independent Director		
	Asian Terminals, Inc.	Independent Director		
	Jollibee Foods Corporation	Non-Executive		
Pedro E. Roxas	Roxas Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive, Chairman		
	Roxas & Company, Inc.	Executive, Chairman, President & CEO		
	BDO Private Bank	Independent Director		
Juan B. Santos	First Philippine Holdings Corporation Non-Executive			
	Philex Mining Corporation	Non-Executive		
	Alaska Milk Corporation	Non-Executive		
Tony Tan Caktiong	Jollibee Foods Corporation	Executive, Chairman, CEO		
	First Gen Corporation	Independent Director		
Alfred V. Ty	GT Capital Holdings, Inc.	Non-Executive, Vice Chairman		

(iii) Relationship within the Company and its Group

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors, which links them to significant shareholders in the company and/or in its group:

Director's Name	Name of the Significant Shareholder	Description of the relationship
Manuel V. Pangilinan	Philippine Telecommunications Investment Corporation (PTIC)	Chairman of the Board of Directors and proxy or duly authorized representative of PTIC to represent and vote the PLDT shares of common stock of PTIC in the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of PLDT ("AGM"). PTIC owns 12.05% of PLDT's outstanding common stock. ¹⁶
	Metro Pacific Resources, Inc. (MPRI)	Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and duly appointed proxy or authorized representative of MPRI to represent and vote the PLDT shares of common stock of MPRI in the AGM. MPRI owns 9.98% of PLDT's outstanding common stock. ¹⁶
Napoleon L. Nazareno	PTIC	Director of PTIC which owns 12.05% of PLDT's outstanding common stock.
	MPRI	Director of MPRI which owns 9.98% of PLDT's outstanding common stock.

¹⁶ In addition to the 26,034,263 shares and 21,556,676 shares of PLDT common stock owned on record by PTIC and Metro Pacific Resources, Inc., or MPRI, respectively, both of which are Philippine affiliates of First Pacific, 7,653,703 ADRs, whose underlying common shares represents approximately 3.54% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT are owned by a non-Philippine wholly-owned subsidiary of First Pacific. The common shares and the underlying common shares of the ADRs owned by PTIC, MPRI and the non-Philippine wholly-owned subsidiary of First Pacific (collectively referred to herein as First Pacific Group), collectively represents 25.6% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as at December 31, 2014.

	BTF Holdings, Inc. (BTFHI)	Director of BTFHI which owns 100% of PLDT's outstanding voting preferred stock.
Ray C. Espinosa	PTIC	Director and Corporate Secretary of PTIC which owns 12.05% of PLDT's outstanding common stock.
	MPRI	Director of MPRI which owns 9.98% of PLDT's outstanding common stock.
	BTFHI	Director of BTFHI which owns 100% of PLDT's outstanding voting preferred stock.
James L. Go	JG Summit Group	Chairman and CEO of JG Summit Holdings, Inc. 17
Setsuya Kimura	NTT DOCOMO, Inc. (NTTD)	Director, Network Department of NTTD. NTTD owns 10.55% of PLDT's outstanding common stock. 18
Hideaki Ozaki	NTT Communications Corporation (NTTC)	Vice President of Planning, Global Sales/Global Business of NTTC. NTTC owns 5.85% of PLDT's outstanding common stock.

(iv) Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats in other companies (publicly listed, ordinary and companies with secondary license) that an individual director or CEO may hold simultaneously? In particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies imposed and observed? If yes, briefly describe other guidelines:

	Guidelines	Maximum Number of Directorships in other companies	
Executive Director	The Governance and Nomination Committee of the PLDT Board of Directors shall ensure that the Executive Directors, Independent Directors, Non-Executive Directors who serve as full-time executives in other corporations shall submit themselves to a low-indicative limit on directorships in other corporations. The capacity of the	Please see the standard described in the second column under <i>Guidelines</i> .	
Non-Executive Director	director to diligently and efficiently perform his/her duties and responsibilities to the Company should not be compromised. The Company has not set a one-size fits all quantitative limit on directorships which may not give due regard to differences in individual capabilities and nature of directorships. The Company		
CEO	has instead adopted, as embodied in the <i>PLDT CG Manual</i> , a performance-based standard that directorships should not compromise the capacity of a director to serve and perform his duties and responsibilities to the Company diligently and efficiently.		

¹⁷ The total shareholdings of JG Summit Group is 17,305,625 shares, of which 17,208,753 shares are beneficially owned by JGSHI, 86,723 shares are beneficially owned by Express Holdings, Inc., 10,148 shares are beneficially owned by Ms. Elizabeth Yu Gokongwei and 1 share is beneficially owned by Mr. James L. Go, all held on record by PCD Nominee Corporation, collectively representing 8.0% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as at December 31, 2014. Based on a certification signed by a duly authorized officer of JGSHI, under the By-Laws of JGSHI, each of the Chairman and CEO of JGSHI (Mr. James L. Go) and President and Chief Operating Officer of JGSHI (Mr. Lance Y. Gokongwei) is authorized to vote the 17,208,753 common shares of PLDT owned by JGSHI and to appoint and/or sign proxies in behalf of JGSHI in connection with the Annual Meeting.

¹⁸ In addition to the 22,796,902 common shares owned on record by NTT DOCOMO, NTT DOCOMO also owns 8,533,253 American Depositary Shares (ADSs) whose underlying common shares represent approximately 3.95% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT. The common shares and the underlying common shares of the ADSs owned by NTT DOCOMO collectively represents 14.50% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as at December 31, 2014.

(e) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company's Board of Directors who directly and indirectly own shares in the company:

	Number of Direct shares		% of Capital Stock	
Name of Director		Number of Indirect shares / Through (name of record owner)	% of Common Capital Stock	% of Total Outstanding Capital Stock
Manuel V. Pangilinan	244,450	1,000	0.113605	0.036851
Napoleon L. Nazareno	6,427	13,872 (PCD Nominee Corporation or PCD)	0.009395	0.003048
James L. Go	57,914	77,000 (PCD)	0.062444	0.020256
Helen Y. Dee	98	1080 (PCD) ¹⁹	0.000545	0.000177
Ray C. Espinosa	13,043	2,700 (PCD)	0.007287	0.002364
Artemio V. Panganiban	1	1,770	0.000820	0.000266
Juan B. Santos	2	-	0.000001	0.000000
Setsuya Kimura	1	-	0.000000	0.000000
Hideaki Ozaki	1	-	0.000000	0.000000
Pedro E. Roxas	21	210 (PCD) ²⁰	0.000107	0.000035
Alfred V. Ty	1	-	0.000000	0.000000
Tony Tan Caktiong	1	-	0.000000	0.000000
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	39	660 (PCD)	0.000324	0.000105
TOTAL	321,999	98,292	0.194529	0.063101

2) Chairman and CEO

(a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views.

Yes	٧	No	
-----	---	----	--

Identify the Chair and CEO:

Chairman of the Board	Manuel V. Pangilinan
CEO/President	Napoleon L. Nazareno

(b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEO.

	Chairman	Chief Executive Officer
Role	 Provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the Board works effectively and performs its duties responsibly. 	• Have the general care, supervision and management of the business and affairs of the corporation, subject to the control of the Board.
		• Exercise such functions and all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may, from time to time, be assigned to him by the Board or as prescribed in the <i>By-Laws</i> .
		 Provide leadership for management in developing and implementing business strategies, plans and budgets.

¹⁹ Includes 835 shares for the account of Michelle Y. Dee-Santos and 245 shares under the name of Helen Y. Dee, both through PCD Nominee Cornoration

²⁰ Buyer is a Trust controlled by Mr. Roxas for his children through PCD Nominee Corporation.

Accountabilities

Deliverables

- Ensure that Board meetings are held in accordance with the *By-Laws* and annual schedule is approved by the Board.
- Preside at all meetings of the stockholders and Board of Directors.
- Supervise the preparation of the agenda of each meeting in coordination with the Corporate Secretary, taking into consideration the proposals of the CEO, Management and Directors of the Company.
- Assist in assuring compliance with and performance of the corporate governance policies and practices.
- Ensure that the lines of communication and flow of information between Management and the Board are maintained.

- See that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried to effect, subject to the right of the Board to delegate any specific powers, except as may by statute be exclusively conferred on the President, to any officer or officers of the Company.
- In the absence of the Chairman of the Board, preside at all meetings of the stockholders and the Board
- Ensure that the business and affairs of the Company are managed in a sound and prudent manner and operational, financial and internal controls are adequate and effective to ensure reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguarding of assets and compliance with laws, rules, regulations and contracts.
- With the assistance of the rest of Management, provide the Board with a balanced, understandable and accurate account of the Company's performance, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects, on a regular basis.

3) Explain how the board of directors plans for the succession of the CEO/Managing Director/President and the top key management positions?

Our Board is committed to ensure the continuity of executive leadership as a critical factor in sustaining the success of the PLDT Group. To this end, a succession planning process referred to as Leadership Succession Planning and Development has been established. This enterprise-wide process covers senior management positions, including the President and CEO. Reflecting the significance that the Chairman of the Board attaches to succession planning, the First Pacific Leadership Academy was reorganized to facilitate the succession planning process within the PLDT Group and other companies affiliated with First Pacific. The Board's involvement in Leadership Succession Planning and Development is performed through its Executive Compensation Committee (ECC), which reviews and updates the criteria for employment and promotion, as well as any training and development plans for senior management, keeps track of their performance and development, and reviews their potential career paths.

4) Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experience and background of directors in the board? Please explain.

Among the specific duties and functions of the Board as enumerated in the *PLDT CG Manual*, the Board is tasked to ensure a high standard of governance for the Company and to promote and protect the interest of the Company, its stockholders and other stakeholders. In this regard, the Board has the duty to implement a process of selection of Directors to ensure a mix of knowledge, expertise and experience and balance among Independent, non-Executive and Executive Directors in the context of the needs of the Board, and that each Director can add value and contribute independent judgment to the formulation of sound corporate strategies and policies.

Further, the Charter of the Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)²¹ of the Board directs the GNC, as part of its nomination function, to pre-screen and shortlist candidates nominated to become a member of the Board in accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications set forth in the Charter and such other factors which the GNC may deem appropriate, such as judgment, skill, experience with other business organizations of a size comparable to that of the Company, the interplay of a candidate's experience with the experience of other Directors, and possible conflict of interest.

For the efficient and effective performance of this function, the GNC uses the Company's *Guidelines on the Search, Screening and Selection of Directors*²² and related *Screening Checklist* which contains, among others, the criteria and qualifications for directorship and a matrix on the skills, expertise and experience relevant to the responsibilities of the Board.

Does it ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company belongs to? Please explain.

A copy of the Governance and Nomination Committee Charter, as amended ("GNC Charter") is posted at: http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Governance%20and%20Nomination%20Committee%20Charter.pdf.

²² See http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/compliance/corporate-governance-materials/acgs/guidelines-on-the-search-screening-and-selection-of-directors-.pdf?sfvrsn=0.

The Company ensures that at least one non-executive director has experience in the industry that the Company belongs to, i.e., the telecommunications industry. For the covered year 2014, the Company had as non-executive directors Mr. Setsuya Kimura, Mr. Hideaki Ozaki and Mr. James L. Go, who all have experience in the telecommunications industry.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors:

	Executive Non-Executive Independent Direct		Independent Director		
Role	Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors are members of the Board which I responsibility for fostering the long-term success of the Company and securing its su competitiveness, and the authority to exercise the corporate powers, conduct the busine control the properties of the Company in order to perform such responsibility.				
	All directors have a three-fold duty of obedience, diligence and loyalty to the Company as set in the <i>PLDT CG Manual</i> : (a) to act within the scope of power and authority of the Company ar Board; (b) to exercise his best care, skill, judgment and observe utmost good faith; and (c) to the best interest of the Company and for the common benefit of the Company's stockholder other stakeholders.				
	All directors must devote the time and attention necessary to properly discharge their fit duties and must exercise independent judgment.				
Accountabilities			Independent Directors shall participate of the Board as set forth in the PLDT CG		
Deliverables	Manual, including to: (a) select and appoint the CEO and other Officers; (b) determine, together with Management, the Company's vision, mission and strategic objectives; (c) oversee Management's implementation of business strategies, plans and policies and overall performance, financial reporting and internal control systems, enterprise risk management, compensation policies and programs, and succession planning for senior management; and (d) ensure that the Company has an effective internal audit system, compliance program, investor relations program, communication program for sectors in the community in which the Company operates or which are directly affected by its operations, and an independent audit mechanism.				
	In addition to the foregoing:				
	Executive Directors shall perform the functions and duties of the offices which they occupy as executive officers of the Company. The President & CEO shall have general care and management of the business operations of the Company and shall ensure that: (a) the business of the Company is managed in a sound and prudent manner; and (b) the operational, financial and internal controls are adequate and effective. The other Executive Directors shall assist the President & CEO by performing the functions of their respective offices.				
	Independent Directors, as members of the Audit Committee which under the <i>PLDT CG Manual</i> shall be composed entirely of Independent Directors, shall collectively perform the functions of the said committee, which include selection, appointment or dismissal of independent auditors; oversight over the integrity of the Company's accounting and financial reporting principles and policies, financial statements and their independent audit, and internal control system, compliance with applicable laws and regulations, enterprise risk management, and audit process; and review of material related party transactions. Independent Directors, as members comprising the majority of the Governance and Nomination Committee and Executive Compensation Committee, shall exercise oversight and provide guidance on matters concerning governance, nomination and compensation.				
		"Other Executive, Non-Execution on Accountabilities/Delivera	tive and Independent Directors" hereto bles.		

Provide the company's definition of "independence" and describe the company's compliance to the definition.

"Independent Director" means a person who is independent of Management and who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is free from any business or other relationship with the Company which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director of the Company.

The GNC pre-screens the candidates nominated for election as Independent Directors and determines if they are eligible for election as such, taking into consideration the qualifications of directors, the independence criteria/standards provided in the *By-Laws, PLDT CG Manual* and Charters of the Board Committees, and such other independence criteria/standards as may be considered and recommended by the GNC and approved by the Board.

Please refer to Annex C-A.4: "Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors" hereto attached for a detailed definition of "independence". Such definition is also set forth in the PLDT CG Manual and each of the Board Committees' Charters.

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for independent directors? If after two years, the company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no more than four additional years? Please explain.

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2011, the Company limits the term of independent directors to 5 consecutive years. After the completion of the five-year service, an independent director shall no longer be eligible for election as such, unless such independent director has undergone a "cooling off period" of 2 years. If such independent director is reelected after the "cooling off period", he can only serve for 5 additional years after which he is perpetually barred from being elected as such. In accordance with the SEC's interpretative guidelines, the application of the term limit shall begin upon election on or after January 2, 2012.

5) Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors)

(a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate any changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:

Name	Position	Date of Cessation	Reason
None			

(b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal, reinstatement and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes adopted (including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

Procedure	Process Adopted	Criteria		
a. Selection/Appointment				
(i) Executive Directors	1. All nominations for election of directors by stockholders shall be submitted in writing to the Board of Directors through the Chairman of the Board and the Secretary. 2. The Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC) shall then pre-screen and shortlist candidates nominated to become members of the Board. 3. Thereafter, the GNC will determine, identify and prepare a final list of the qualified Director and Independent Director nominees and recommend that the Board approve such final list and recommend to stockholders the qualified nominees included in the final list for election in the annual meeting of stockholders. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted.	 Owner of at least one (1) share of stock of the Company Have a college education or equivalent academic degree At least 21 years old Possess integrity and probity Have a practical understanding of the business of the Company or previous business experience Have attended a seminar on corporate governance or issued an undertaking to attend such a seminar as soon as practicable. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Criteria. 		
(ii) Non-Executive Directors	Same as the process for Executive Directors.	Same as the criteria for Executive Director.		
(iii) Independent Directors	Same as the process for Executive Directors. In addition, the GNC pre-screens the candidates nominated for election as Independent Directors and	Same as the criteria for Executive and Non- Executive Directors. In addition, Independent Directors are subject to the criteria for Independent Directors enumerated in <i>Annex C-A.4: "Other</i>		

determines if they are eligible for Executive, Non-Executive and Independent election as such, taking into Directors" and definition consideration the qualifications "Independence"). directors and independence criteria/ standards specified in the By-Laws, PLDT CG Manual and Board Committees' Charters, and such independence criteria/ standards as may be considered and recommended by the GNC and approved by the Board. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. b. Re-appointment (i) Executive Directors Same as the process for Same the criteria for the as Selection/Appointment. Selection/Appointment Executive of (ii) Non-Executive Directors Directors. (iii) Independent Directors for the Same as the criteria Selection/Appointment of Independent Directors. c. Permanent Disqualification 1. The GNC may consider and (i) Executive Directors Among others: recommend to the Board the 1. Any person convicted or adjudged guilty permanent disqualification of a of any of the offenses or specified crimes; Director based on the grounds 2. Any person who, by reason of specified in the By-Laws and PLDT misconduct, after hearing, is permanently CG Manual. enjoined by a final judgment or order of the 2. Any permanent disqualification Commission or any court or administrative of a Director recommended by body of competent jurisdiction from: (a) the GNC to be valid and effective acting as an underwriter, broker, dealer, must be approved by the Board etc.; (b) acting as director or officer of a and comply with the bank, quasi-bank, trust company, requirements of applicable laws, investment house, or investment company; rules and regulations. (c) engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice in any of the capacities mentioned in subparagraphs (a) and (b) above. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Criteria for Permanent Disqualification. Same as the criteria for the Permanent (ii) Non-Executive Directors Disqualification of Executive Directors. (iii) Independent Directors Same as the criteria for the Permanent Disgualification of Executive Directors. In addition, Independent Directors are permanently disqualified under Item (iv) of Added Restrictions in the Criteria for Selection/Appointment of Independent Directors. Please refer to Annex C-A.4: "Other Executive, Non-Executive Independent Directors" hereto attached (see definition of "Independence"). d. Temporary Disqualification (i) Executive Directors 1. Refusal to comply with the disclosure 1. The GNC recommends to the

	Board the temporary disqualification of a Director based on the grounds specified in the <i>By-Laws</i> and <i>PLDT CG Manual</i> . 2. Any temporary disqualification of a Director recommended by the GNC to be valid and effective must be approved by the Board and comply with the requirements of applicable laws, rules and regulations. 3. A temporarily disqualified Director shall take the appropriate action to remedy or correct the disqualification. If he fails or refuses to do so for unjustified reasons, the disqualification shall become	requirements of the <i>SRC</i> and its Implementing Rules and Regulations; 2. Absence in more than fifty percent (50%) of all Board meetings during his incumbency or any twelve (12) month period during said incumbency; 3. Dismissal or termination for cause as director of any corporation covered by the <i>SEC CG Code</i> ; 4. Being under preventive suspension by the Company (in the case of an Executive Director); and 5. If any of the judgments or orders cited in the grounds for permanent disqualification has not yet become final. Please refer to <i>Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors"</i> hereto attached for the detailed Criteria for Temporary	
(ii) Non-Executive Directors	permanent. Please refer to <i>Annex C-A.5:</i>	Disqualification. Same as the criteria for the Temporary	
(iii) Independent Directors	"Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted.	Disqualification of Executive Directors, except Item 4.	
e. Removal	Adopted		
(i) Executive Directors (ii) Non-Executive Directors	PLDT follows the procedure set forth under Sec. 28 of the <i>Corporation Code</i> , i.e., any director of the company may be removed from office by a vote of the stockholders holding or	May be with or without cause.	
(iii) Independent Directors	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted.		
(iii) Independent Directors f. Re-instatement	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process		
	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the	Same as the criteria for the Selection/	
f. Re-instatement	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the Selection/Appointment of Execu-	Same as the criteria for the Selection/ Appointment of Executive Directors.	
f. Re-instatement (i) Executive Directors	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the	,	
f. Re-instatement (i) Executive Directors (ii) Non-Executive Directors	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the Selection/Appointment of Execu-	,	
f. Re-instatement (i) Executive Directors (ii) Non-Executive Directors (iii) Independent Directors	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the Selection/Appointment of Execu-	,	
f. Re-instatement (i) Executive Directors (ii) Non-Executive Directors (iii) Independent Directors g. Suspension	representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting duly called for such purpose. Please refer to Annex C-A.5: "Changes in the Board of Directors" hereto attached for the detailed Procedure/Process Adopted. Same as the process for the Selection/Appointment of Executive Directors.	Appointment of Executive Directors.	

Note: The foregoing information are set forth in the *By-Laws, Governance and Nomination Charter* and/or the PLDT's *Board of Director/s Screening Checklist*.

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting (2014)

Name of Director	Votes Received
Artemio V. Panganiban	327,738,545
Pedro E. Roxas	328,527,012
Alfred V. Ty	330,713,241
Helen Y. Dee	324,382,165
Ray C. Espinosa	327,448,687
James L. Go	324,053,683
Setsuya Kimura	326,394,619
Napoleon L. Nazareno	329,337,035
Manuel V. Pangilinan	330,570,314
Hideaki Ozaki	324,378,015
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	326,896,103
Juan B. Santos	326,444,355
Tony Tan Caktiong	326,444,365

6) Orientation and Education Program

(a) Disclose details of the company's orientation program for new directors, if any.

At the start of the service of a new director, the Chairman, President & CEO, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Secretary and Chief Governance Officer give a newly appointed director a briefing on the Company's structure and business, the responsibilities of the Board and its Committees and how each operates and the schedule of Board meetings, among others. The new director is also furnished with copies of all relevant information about the Company and policies applicable to the directors, including the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, Annual Report, PLDT CG Manual, PLDT Code of Ethics, the Charters of the Board Committees, and PLDT's Handbook on Corporate Governance.

(b) State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senior Management²³ for the past three (3) years:

Date and venue	Торіс	Speaker/s
For Year 2014		
For the Board of Directors: December 4, 2014 Manila AB Rooms Makati Shangri-la Hotel	CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: WHAT TO EXPECT FROM THE SEC CORPORATE GOVERNANCE TRENDS & CURRENT TOPICS IN DEVELOPED ECONOMIES & THEIR APPLICATION IN THE PHILIPPINES & OTHER ASEAN COUNTRIES	HON. TERESITA J. HERBOSA Chairperson, Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission MR. GRAHAM WINTER, Partner and MS. KELLY AUSTIN, Partner Gibson Dunn
April 1, 2014 PLDT Boardroom 7/F Ramon Cojuangco Building Makati	BRIEFING ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS UNDER US LAWS AND REGULATIONS AND FOREIGN CORRUPT PRACTICES ACT OF 1977	MR. GARTH W. BRAY Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

²³ Senior Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company. (ACGR footnote)

For Senior and Middle Managers December 1, 2014 Meralco Theater	21 st CENTURY LEADERSHIP AND GOVERNANCE: THRIVING AMID CHANGE, COMPLEXITY, AND LOTS OF CHOICES	MR. CHRIS LOWNEY Chairman Catholic Health Initiatives
For Year 2013 For the Board of Directors: December 2, 2013 Manila AB Rooms Makati Shangri-la Hotel	ENSURING EFFECTIVE BOARD OVERSIGHT OF ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE: EMERGING TRENDS AND LESSONS LEARNED	MR. WINTHROP SWENSON Partner, Compliance Systems Legal Group
For Senior and Middle Managers: November 26, 2013 Meralco Theater	HANDLING ETHICAL DILEMMAS: TOOLS AND TECHNIQUES	PROF. GRETCHEN WINTER, J.D. Executive Director, Center for Professional Responsibility University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign
For Year 2012 For the Board of Directors: November 19, 2012 Meralco Lighthouse For Officers: November 20, 2012 Meralco Theater	NAVIGATING THE NEW WORLD OF BUSINESS NAVIGATING THE NEW WORLD OF BUSINESS*	DR. THOMAS DONALDSON, PhD Mark O. Winkelman Professor, Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania Director, the Zicklin Center for Business Ethics Research, the Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania

^{*}Note: The content for these enhancement sessions has been customized for Officers.

(c) Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the year.

In accordance with the *PLDT CG Manual*, PLDT provides as part of its education and communication program, continuous training for its Board, senior management, officers, executives, and employees, which includes an annual enhancement session conducted by internationally known experts to share their insights and interact with the Board, senior management and officers. PLDT has organized and conducted nine (9) corporate governance enhancement sessions for the Board since 2007. Further, in furtherance of the Company's Leadership Succession Planning and Development Process, the Executive Compensation Committee (ECC) reviews training and development plans for senior management and officers, and offers additional training and development opportunities through the First Pacific Leadership Academy.

The corporate governance training and enhancement sessions attended by our directors in the year 2014 are set forth in the table below.

Name of Director/Officer	Date of Training	Program	Name of Training Institution
Manuel V. Pangilinan	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Oct 15, 2014	Synopsis on Legal and Regulatory issues: Revised Listing Rules on Connected Transactions	Speaker: Graham Winter Partner, Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

Napoleon L. Nazareno	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Oct 15, 2014	Synopsis on Legal and Regulatory issues: Revised Listing Rules on Connected Transactions	Speaker: Graham Winter Partner, Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Ray C. Espinosa	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
	Mar 31, 2014	ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard Orientation	Mr. Ricardo Nicanor N. Jacinto President & CEO, Institute of Corporate Directors
Helen Y. Dee	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
	Mar 22, 2014	Seminar on Corporate Governance	Leonardo G. Matignas, Jr. Partner, SGV & Co.
James L. Go	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn

	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Juan B. Santos	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Setsuya Kimura	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Hideaki Ozaki	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Artemio V. Panganiban	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
	Mar 31, 2014	ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard Orientation	Mr. Ricardo Nicanor N. Jacinto President & CEO, Institute of Corporate Directors
Pedro E. Roxas	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC

		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner
	Apr 1, 2014	Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
	Mar 31, 2014	ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard Orientation	Mr. Ricardo Nicanor N. Jacinto President & CEO, Institute of Corporate Directors
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	Dec 4, 2014	Corporate Governance: What To Expect From the SEC	Speaker: Hon. Teresita J. Herbosa Chairperson, Philippine SEC
		Corporate Governance Trends & Current Topics in Developed Economies & Their Application in the Philippines & Other ASEAN Countries	Speakers: Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner Gibson Dunn
	Dec 1, 2014	21 st Century Leadership and Governance: Thriving Amid Change, Complexity, and Lots of Choices	Speaker: Mr. Chris Lowney Chairman Catholic Health Initiatives
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP
Tony Tan Caktiong	Aug 12, 2014	Corporate Governance Seminar	SGV & Co.
Alfred V. Ty	Apr 29, 2014	Distinguished Corporate Governance Speaker Series	Institute of Corporate Directors Speaker: John Colvin
	Apr 1, 2014	Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements Under U.S. Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act Of 1977	Speaker: Mr. Garth W. Bray Partner, Sullivan & Cromwell LLP

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1) Discuss briefly the company's policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senior management and employees:

Business Conduct & Ethics	Directors	Senior Management	Employees
The PLDT Code of Ethics sets out the Company's business principles and values and aims to promote a culture of good			

corporate governance. It provides standards that govern and guide all business relationships of PLDT, its directors, officers and employees, especially with respect to the following:

- Compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, including anti-graft and corruption laws;
- Ethical handling of conflicts of interest, corporate opportunities and confidential information;
- Protection and proper use of company assets;
- Fair dealing with employees, customers, service providers, suppliers, and competitors;
- Compliance with reporting and disclosure obligations to the relevant regulators and to investors;
- Compliance with disclosure and financial reporting controls and procedures;
- Assessment and management of risks involved in business endeavors; and
- Adoption of international best practices of good corporate governance in the conduct of business.

		_	
(2)	Conflic	t of I	ntaract

The Company has a Conflict of Interest Policy that seeks to ensure that members of the organization always act in the best interest of the company and must not be motivated by personal considerations and relationships that interfere with their independent judgment. Specifically, it aims to ensure that work-related actions are based on sound business principles and judgment devoid of bias or partiality. It enjoins all personnel to be aware of the possibility of such bias and partiality in dealings with various entities or individuals in the course of or in relation to their work. The policy mandates that directors, officers, executives, employees, and consultants who find themselves in a potential or actual conflict of interest situation should promptly disclose the matter and, as applicable, seek approval from the proper authorities in accordance with the policy. Unless otherwise authorized by the Company, the person concerned is required to inhibit himself from any action, transaction, discussion, evaluation, or decision involving such conflict of interest. The policy also mandates directors, officers, executives, employees and consultants to avoid competing with the Company on a business opportunity or acquiring an interest adverse to that of the Company. The policy also prohibits the Company from granting personal loans to directors or officers, unless allowed by applicable laws and regulations.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: PLDT'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY ("CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY")²⁴

(b) Conduct of Business and Fair Dealings

The *PLDT Code of Ethics* enjoins directors, officers and employees to: (a) avoid taking unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of material facts, or any unfair dealing practice; and (b) deal fairly with the Company's customers, service providers, suppliers, competitors and employees.

(c) Receipt of gifts from third parties

The Company has a *Gifts, Entertainment and Sponsored Travel Policy* that defines the guidelines on the handling of gifts, entertainment and sponsored travel offered by third parties that have business dealings with the Company. It provides safeguards so that the custom of giving gifts is handled in accordance with the principles of integrity, accountability, fairness and transparency. It aims to prevent the occurrence of situations or actions that could significantly affect the objective and effective performance of an employee's duties. It prohibits the solicitation of gifts, sponsored travel, and entertainment from such third parties. In addition, receipt and acceptance of gifts voluntarily given by such third parties are handled in accordance with the safeguards set forth in this policy and such gifts should be less than the minimal threshold amount set by the Company. Further, the guidelines require full disclosure of the facts and circumstances surrounding offers and/or acceptance of such gifts, entertainment and sponsored travel.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: PLDT'S POLICY ON GIFTS, ENTERTAINMENT AND SPONSORED TRAVEL ("GIFTS POLICY")²⁵

(d) Compliance with Laws & Regulations

The *PLDT Code of Ethics* enjoins directors, officers and employees to: (a) engage in honest conduct and comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including prohibitions on insider trading, both in letter and spirit. Demands brought on by prevailing business conditions or perceived pressures are not excuses for violating any law, rules or regulations; (b) personally adhere to the standards and restrictions imposed by those laws, rules and regulations; and (c) avoid the direct or indirect commission of bribery and corruption of representatives of governments or regulators to facilitate any transaction or gain any perceived or actual favor or advantage, excluding permissible additional payments for routine governmental actions allowed by all applicable laws and regulations.

(e) Respect for Trade Secrets/Use of Nonpublic Information

The PLDT Code of Ethics and the PLDT CG Manual enjoin directors, officers and employees: (a) to maintain and safeguard the confidentiality of information entrusted by the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliates, customers, business partners, or such other parties with whom the Company relates, except when disclosure is authorized or legally mandated (confidential information includes any non-public information that might be of use to competitors, or harmful to the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliates, customers, business partners, or such other parties with whom the Company relates, if disclosed); (b) to follow Company policy and applicable laws regarding business records retention and ensure that records are not altered, concealed, destroyed or falsified to impede, obstruct or influence any investigation by, or proceeding before any official Company committee or body, governmental, regulatory or judicial body having jurisdiction; (c) to avoid trading any of the Company's securities or those of its subsidiaries and affiliates using price sensitive information that is not normally available publicly, and obtained by reason of position, contact within, or other relationship with the Company; and (d) not to communicate material non-public information about and involving

²⁴ See also 2013 Annual Report, p. 41 and http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices.

²⁵ See also 2013 Annual Report, p. 41 and http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices.

the Company, including any act, transaction, development or event unless the Company is ready to simultaneously disclose the material non-public information to the SEC, PSE and other regulatory bodies having jurisdiction (this rule shall not apply if the disclosure is made to: [i] a person who is bound by a duty to maintain trust and confidence to the Company, such as, but not limited to, the Company's consultants, auditors, legal counsels, investment bankers, financial advisers; and [ii] a person who agrees in writing to maintain in strict confidence the disclosed material information and will not take advantage of it for his personal gain); (e) use Company property and resources, including Company time, supplies and software, efficiently, responsibly and only for legitimate business purposes; and (f) protect the assets of the Company from loss, damage, misuse or theft.

(f) Use of Company Funds, Assets and Information The PLDT Code of Ethics enjoins directors, officers and employees to: (a) use Company property and resources, including Company time, supplies and software, efficiently, responsibly and only for legitimate business purposes; (b) protect the assets of the Company from loss, damage, misuse or theft; (c) maintain and safeguard the confidentiality of information entrusted by the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliates, customers, business partners, or such other parties with whom the Company relates, except when disclosure is authorized or legally mandated. Confidential information includes any non-public information that might be of use to competitors, or harmful to the Company, its subsidiaries, affiliates, customers, business partners, or such other parties with whom the Company relates, if disclosed; (d) follow Company policy and applicable laws regarding business records retention and ensure that records are not altered, concealed, destroyed or falsified to impede, obstruct or influence any investigation by, or proceeding before any official Company committee or body, governmental, regulatory or judicial body having jurisdiction; and (e) avoid trading any of the Company's securities or those of its subsidiaries and affiliates using price sensitive information that is not normally available publicly, and obtained by reason of position, contact within, or other relationship with the Company.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

(g) Employment & Labor Laws & Policies The Company's policy is to comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, which include employment and labor laws. In accordance with the said policy, the Company complies with the labor laws and regulations on, among others, the prohibition of child labor and on the payment of minimum wage. The *PLDT Personnel Manual* sets forth the Company's policies on hiring and placement, work schedule and working conditions, salary and benefits programs, performance appraisal, promotions or movements, training and development, and disciplinary action, which comply with, if not exceed, the requirements under employment and labor laws. It is also the Company's policy to develop its employees. In line with this, the Company ensures that its employees are provided with relevant training and development programs suited to their needs. The Company also supports programs and activities that promote employees' well- being. The Company deals with its employees' unions fairly and with transparency and honors the terms of its collective bargaining agreements with such unions.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: PLDT PERSONNEL MANUAL

(h) Disciplinary action

The Company has a structured disciplinary system to ensure fair treatment of employees in furtherance of the recognized need to preserve order and harmony within the organization. Said disciplinary system provides for preliminary investigation, investigation proper, respondent's opportunity to be heard (notice to explain), decision and recommendation, and review process. The offenses and corresponding penalties are defined in the PLDT Personnel Manual's Table of Penalties. A Committee on Employee Discipline is responsible for final evaluation and approval of a disciplinary action against an employee involving suspension of thirty (30) days or more or dismissal. For employees with the rank of Vice-President and above, the Committee on Officer Discipline evaluates, reviews and recommends the appropriate disciplinary action to the Board of Directors or President & CEO, as the case may be. In addition, under the PLDT Code of Ethics, the Company may impose disciplinary action and/or file appropriate civil and criminal action against "violators", defined as: (a) persons who commit prohibited acts or who fail to implement prescribed acts when there is an obvious opportunity to do so; (b) employees who knowingly abet such acts of commission or omission or who fail to report such acts that violate the PLDT Code of Ethics; and (c) persons of authority who fail to impose the necessary disciplinary measures against violators.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: PLDT PERSONNEL MANUAL

(i) Whistle Blower

The Company has an *Expanded Whistleblowing (EWB) Policy* ("*Whistleblowing Policy*") that encourages the disclosure by Company personnel of any violation of corporate governance rules or policies, questionable accounting or auditing matters, and offenses covered by the Table of Penalties in the *PLDT Personnel Manual*. At the heart of this policy is the ability and

opportunity of anyone in the Company, acting in good faith, to freely communicate and expect official action on observed such violations, including the option to file anonymous complaints. In addition, it establishes mechanisms and procedures designed to ensure confidentiality and fairness in the handling of a disclosure or complaint and to protect whistleblowers and witnesses from any retaliation.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY²⁶

(j) Conflict Resolution

The Corporate Governance Office is responsible for applying the *PLDT Code of Ethics* to specific situations in which questions or concerns may arise, and has the authority to interpret and decide on such issues arising from the implementation of the *PLDT Code of Ethics*. Any director, officer or employee is encouraged to contact the Corporate Governance Office when in doubt about the best course of action in a particular situation relating to a subject matter of the *PLDT Code of Ethics*.

With respect to grievance handling, *i.e.*, a complaint made by an individual, employee, a group of employees or by the Union for a review or appeal of a decision of a supervisor/division head or of the results or interpretation or application of the terms of existing CBA or established working conditions, the Company has established a structured grievance system to ensure fair treatment of employees, deal with employee complaints and to resolve problems. The grievance system establishes an opportunity to settle grievances at 3 levels, namely: (a) Division/Customer Service Zone Head; (b) Union-Management Grievance Committee; and (c) Board of Arbitrators.

IMPLEMENTING POLICY: PLDT PERSONNEL MANUAL

2) Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to all directors, senior management and employees?

Yes. The *PLDT Code of Ethics* has been disseminated to all PLDT directors, officers and employees through the Company's continuing education and communication program on corporate governance. The *PLDT Code of Ethics* is taken up and discussed in training and enhancement sessions. Copies of the *PLDT Code of Ethics* are distributed to employees. Directors, officers and executives are furnished with the *PLDT Handbook on Corporate Governance*, which contains a copy of the *PLDT Code of Ethics*. Copies of the *PLDT Code of Ethics* are made available for download by employees through PLDT's corporate governance website at: http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices and the PLDT InfoCentral intranet portal. Employees were also provided with the *CG Primer* which includes a simplified discussion of the *PLDT Code of Ethics*.

3) Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

The Company implements and monitors compliance with its corporate governance policies ("CG Policies"), which include the PLDT Code of Ethics, through its governance monitoring and evaluation system which consists of the following:

- 1. Annual performance self-assessment conducted by the Board and the Board Committees. Our Board conducts a self-assessment each calendar year to evaluate the performance of the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and the individual directors, which includes relevant criteria regarding governance and business ethics in accordance with the Company's CG Policies. Each Board Committee also conducts an annual self-assessment of its performance.
- 2. Review of the effectiveness of the Company's CG Policies and their implementation every two years. The review results and recommendations for improvement are reported by the Corporate Governance Office to the Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC) for approval.
- 3. Annual compliance evaluation conducted by Management. PLDT monitors and assesses compliance with corporate governance rules and policies through a cross-functional evaluation system whereby the heads of the various business and support units/groups conduct an evaluation of their unit/group's compliance using an evaluation questionnaire consisting of the governance regulations applicable and relevant to their respective functions, including the requirements of the SEC CG Code and the PSE Corporate Governance Guidelines. The evaluation results are reported to the President & CEO and the GNC.
- 4. Implementation of the *Whistleblowing Policy*. Compliance with CG Policies, among others, is monitored through the whistleblowing system, which receives and handles concerns and complaints of non-compliance therewith.
- 5. Other monitoring and survey tools. As part of the implementation of CG Policies, the Company conducts and evaluates the feedback from and results of: (a) training through face-to-face learning interventions and online learning modules; and (b) an annual focus group discussion across a wide cross-section of Company personnel. The Company has also instituted a follow-through survey for newly-hired employees which is intended to track improvements in their observance of the CG Policies and values over the first five (5) years of employment, as well as the employee's perception of the level of observance of the CG Policies and values by his/her unit; and developed an ethics perception survey which will provide quantitative information that can be more easily tracked, managed and be made the basis for development and review of programs, policies and initiatives.

²⁶ See also 2013 Annual Report, p. 41 and the following links: http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices and http://www.pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/resources-for-personnel.

A more detailed discussion of the Company's governance monitoring and evaluation system is also presented in *PLDT's 2013 Annual Report* ("2013 Annual Report"), pp. 30-46. A copy of the 2013 Annual Report is posted at: http://pldt.com/investor-relations/annual-reports.

4) Related Party Transactions

(a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company's policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and recording of related party transactions between and among the company and its parent, joint ventures, subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including their spouses, children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the Board.

Related Party Transactions	Policies and Procedures	
(1) Parent Company	PLDT's Guidelines on the Proper Handling of Related Party Transactions	
(2) Joint Ventures	(the "RPT Guidelines") ²⁷ provides the process of review, approval and disclosure of the Company's RPTs. Guided by Philippine Accounting	
(3) Subsidiaries	Standard 24 on Related Party Disclosures ("PAS 24"), RPTs are reviewed	
(4) Entities Under Common Control	and approved by appropriate authorities designated in the <i>RPT Guidelines</i> . The review determines whether an RPT meets the following standards: (1) the RPT is on arm's length terms; and (2) the RPT is in the best interest of PLDT and its stakeholders, as a whole, considering the relevant	
(5) Substantial Stockholders		
(6) Officers including spouse/ children/ siblings/parents	circumstances. Material RPTs are reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of Independent Directors, and approved by the	
(7) Directors including spouse/ children/ siblings/parents	Board. The Board of Directors may require that an RPT it has approve submitted to the stockholders for consideration and ratification.	
(8) Interlocking director relationship of Board of Directors	The Head of Financial Reporting and Controllership Sector, in coordination with the Company's Disclosure Committee, shall be responsible for the disclosure of RPTs in the relevant financial reports of the Company as required under <i>PAS 24</i> and other applicable disclosure requirements.	

(b) Conflict of Interest

(i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

Identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders may be involved.

PLD ⁻ busi	nila Electric Company ("Meralco") provides electricity to
PLD ⁻ busi	
In 2 who Atta pole facili PLD Serv Corp PLD Co., All fe	iness. The rates charged by Meralco are the same as those in unrelated parties. 2009, PLDT and Smart Communications, Inc. ("Smart"), a polly-owned subsidiary of PLDT, renewed their respective Pole archment Contracts with Meralco wherein Meralco leases its espaces to accommodate PLDT and Smart's network lities. Thas an existing Outside and Inside Plant Contracted vices Agreement with Meralco Industrial Engineering Services poration (MIESCOR), a subsidiary of Meralco. Thas insurance policies with Republic Surety and Insurance, Inc. ("RSIC"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Meralco. Tees and payments are made directly to Meralco, MIESCOR or C, as the case may be. Pangilinan is the Chairman of Meralco and PLDT.
Napoleon L. Nazareno Plea	ase see note on Mr. Pangilinan above on transactions with ralco and its subsidiaries. Mr. Nazareno is a director of both

 $^{^{\}it 27}$ See $\mbox{\it http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/our-stakeholders}.$

	Meralco and PLDT, and the President and CEO of PLDT. Under the Founder NSP Air Time Purchase Agreement ("ATP") entered into with ACeS International Limited ("AIL"), PLDT was granted the exclusive right to sell AIL services, through ACeS Philippines Cellular Satellite Corporation or ACeS Philippines ("ACeS"), as national services provider in the Philippines. Fees are directly paid to AIL. ACeS currently owns 36.99% of AIL. Mr. Nazareno is the Chairman of ACeS and a director and the President and CEO of PLDT.
Helen Y. Dee	PLDT has insurance policies with Malayan Insurance Company ("Malayan") wherein premiums are directly paid to Malayan. Ms. Dee is director of Malayan and PLDT.
James L. Go	PLDT has agreements with certain JG Summit Holdings, Inc. ("JGSHI") subsidiaries, namely Universal Robina Corporation ("URC") and Robinsons Land Corporation ("RLC"). There were also other transactions such as airfare, electricity, marketing expenses and bank fees with other JGSHI subsidiaries. Payments and fees are paid directly to the relevant JGSHI subsidiaries. Mr. Go is the Chairman and CEO of JGSHI, the Chairman of both URC and RLC and a director of PLDT.
Artemio V. Panganiban	See note on Mr. Pangilinan above. Hon. Panganiban is an independent director of both Meralco and PLDT.
Pedro E. Roxas	See note on Mr. Pangilinan above. Mr. Roxas is an independent director of both Meralco and PLDT.
Alfred V. Ty	PLDT has transactions in the ordinary course of business with Metrobank (where Mr. Ty is the Corporate Secretary), for bank payment facility; and Lexus (where Mr. Ty is Chairman), Toyota (where Mr. Ty is the Vice Chairman) and various dealers of Toyota, for the purchases of Company vehicles, parts and service, but the fees paid by the Company to the said firms are well below 2% of the consolidated gross revenues of each of Metrobank, Lexus and Toyota and, thus, deemed immaterial and would not affect the independence of Mr. Ty.
Name of Officer/s	
Name of Significant Shareholders:	
Metro Pacific Resources, Inc. JGSHI	Asia Link B.V. ("ALBV"), an affiliate of Metro Pacific Resources, Inc., provides technical support services and assistance in the operations and maintenance of the cellular business of Smart. Please see note on Mr. Go above.
NTT Communications Corporation	NTT Communications provides PLDT with technical, marketing
("NTT Communications")	and other consulting services for various business areas of PLDT. NTT Communications and PLDT have cooperative arrangements for conventional international telecommunications services to enhance their respective international businesses.
	NTT World Engineering Marine Corporation, an affiliate of NTT Communications, provides PLDT with offshore submarine cable repair and other allied services for the maintenance of PLDT's domestic fiber optic network submerged plant. NTT Worldwide Telecommunications Corporation, an affiliate of
	NTT Communications, has given a license to PLDT to market and manage data and other services under the "Arcstar" brand to its corporate customers in the Philippines. PLDT has also been given the right to use the trade name "Arcstar" and its related trademarks.
NTT DOCOMO	NTT DOCOMO provides services of certain key personnel in connection with certain aspects of the business of PLDT and Smart.
Other Related Parties	PLDT and certain of its subsidiaries provide telephone, data communication and other services to various related parties at arm's length similar to transactions with other customers.

The Company's policy is to publicly disclose only such related party transactions or conflicts of interest which are so required to be publicly disclosed pursuant to PAS 24. Internally, related party transactions and conflicts of interest are required to be disclosed to the Company's appropriate authorities in accordance with the RPT Guidelines and Conflict of Interest Policy which provide appropriate mechanisms and safeguards, including the review, approval and disclosure of related party transactions and conflicts of interest by designated authorities within the Company.

A more detailed discussion is provided in the 17-A Annual Report under Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Note 25 – Related Party Transactions.

(ii) Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and significant shareholders.

	Directors/Officers/Significant Shareholders
Company	The <i>Conflict of Interest Policy</i> requires directors, officers, executives, employees, and consultants who find themselves in a potential or actual conflict of interest situation to promptly disclose the matter to designated approving authorities of the Company. Unless otherwise authorized by the appropriate approving authority, the person concerned is required to inhibit himself from any action, transaction, discussion, evaluation, or decision involving such conflict of interest. The policy also prohibits the Company from granting personal loans to directors or officers, unless allowed by applicable laws and regulations.
	The RPT Guidelines provides the procedures for the review, approval and disclosure of related party transactions in order to ensure that they are fair, on arm's length terms, and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders, as a whole. Material related party transactions are reviewed by the Audit Committee which is composed entirely of independent directors and approved by the Board. The Board of Directors may require that RPT it has approved be submitted to the stockholders for consideration and ratification. Disclosures of RPTs in relevant financial reports are made in accordance with PAS 24 and other applicable disclosure requirements.
Group	Transactions of the Company with other members of the Group are subject to the requirements and safeguards provided in the <i>Conflict of Interest Policy</i> and <i>RPT Guidelines</i> , as well as their corresponding policies regarding conflict of interest and related party transactions in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations on related party transactions.

5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(a) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a family, ²⁸ commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

No such relationship between the holders of significant equity is known to the Company.

Names of Related Significant Shareholders	Type of Relationship	Brief Description of the Relationship

(b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the holders of significant equity (5% or more) and the company:

Names of Related Significant Shareholders	Type of Relationship	Brief Description
Metro Pacific Resources, Inc.	Technical Assistance Agreement between ALBV, an affiliate of Metro Pacific Resources, Inc., and Smart, a wholly-owned subsidiary of PLDT	ALBV provides technical support services and assistance in the operations and maintenance of the cellular business of Smart.
NTT Communications	Service Agreement with NTT	NTT World Engineering Marine

²⁸ Family relationship up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity. (ACGR footnote)

-

	World Engineering Marine Corporation, an affiliate of NTT Communications	Corporation provides offshore submarine cable repair and other allied services for the maintenance of PLDT's fiber optic network submerged plant.
	Advisory Services Agreement	NTT Communications provides PLDT with technical, marketing and other consulting services for various business areas of PLDT.
	Conventional International Telecommunications Services Agreement	NTT Communications and PLDT have cooperative arrangements for conventional international telecommunications services to enhance their respective international businesses.
	Arcstar Licensing Agreement and Arcstar Service Provider Agreement with NTT Worldwide Telecommunications Corporation, an affiliate of NTT Communications	PLDT markets and manages data and other services under NTT Communications' "Arcstar" brand to its corporate customers in the Philippines. PLDT has also been given the right to use the trade name "Arcstar" and its related trademarks.
NTT DOCOMO	Advisory Services Agreement	NTT DOCOMO provides services of certain key personnel in connection with certain aspects of the business of PLDT and Smart.
Metro Pacific Resources, Inc. and certain affiliates of the First Pacific Group, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO	Cooperation Agreement	The relevant parties extended certain rights of NTT Communications under the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement and the Shareholders Agreement to NTT DOCOMO.
		Further details are provided in <i>Item B.5.c</i> below.

A more detailed discussion is provided in the 17-A Annual Report under Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions and Note 25 – Related Party Transactions.

(c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of the company:

Name of Shareholders	% of Capital Stock affected (Parties)	Brief Description of the Transaction
Metro Pacific Resources, Inc. and certain affiliates of the First Pacific Group, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO	First Pacific Group – 25.57% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as of December 31, 2014. NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO – 20.35% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as of December 31, 2014.	Cooperation Agreement among certain affiliates of the First Pacific Group, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO which provides for, among other things, restriction on ownership of shares of PLDT by NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO, limitation on competition, and business cooperation. Please refer to Annex C-B.5: "Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations" for a more detailed description.

6) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the corporation and third parties, including regulatory authorities.

	Alternative Dispute Resolution System
Corporation & Stockholders	Stockholders who have matters for discussion or concerns directly relating to the

	business of the Company may initially elevate such matters or concerns to: (a) the Corporate Secretary; (b) the Investor Relations Officer; (c) Management; or (d) the Board.
Corporation & Third Parties	The Company complies with, abides and is guided by, the policy set forth in Republic Act No. 9285, otherwise known as the "Alternative Dispute Resolution Act of 2004", in handling conflicts or differences between the Company and third parties, including regulators, in that the Company considers and explores with
Corporation & Regulatory Authorities	the other party or parties involved mutually acceptable alternative means or procedures for resolving such dispute that are provided by law prior to resorting to court action, to the extent that such is feasible and will not prejudice the rights and interests of the Company.

Further details are provided in Annex C-B.6: "Alternative Dispute Resolution" hereto attached.

C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE

1) Are Board of Directors' meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?

Yes. The schedule of Board meetings is determined at the beginning of the year.

2) Attendance of Directors

Board	Name	Date of Election ²⁹	No. of Meetings Held during the year	No. of Meetings Attended	%
Chairman	Manuel V. Pangilinan	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Napoleon L. Nazareno	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Ray C. Espinosa	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	12	92
Member	James L. Go	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Setsuya Kimura	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Hideaki Ozaki	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	11	85
Member	Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Juan B. Santos	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Member	Tony Tan Caktiong	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	11	85
Member	Helen Yuchengco-Dee	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	11	85
Independent Director	Artemio V. Panganiban	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Independent Director	Pedro E. Roxas	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100
Independent Director	Alfred V. Ty	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	13	13	100

3) Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If yes, how many times?

Yes, in accordance with Sec. 2.1.6 (e) of the *PLDT CG Manual*, the Board shall hold executive sessions with the Independent Directors and non-Executive Directors, excluding Executive Directors, at least once a year and at such other times as the Board

The members of the Board of Directors are appointed annually for a one-year term. In this table, the dates of election pertain to the covered year 2014, *i.e.*, for the term of office beginning on June 14, 2013 and ending June 10, 2014 and for the term of office beginning on that date and ending June 9, 2015. The number of meetings held and attended pertains to the meetings in 2014.

may deem necessary or appropriate. Such executive sessions shall be presided by the Chairman of the Governance and Nomination Committee, except if said Chairman is an Executive Director, in which case, by an Independent Director or non-Executive Director designated by the Board.

4) Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

The *By-Laws* provide that at any meeting of the Board of Directors, a majority of the number of the Directors as specified in the *Articles of Incorporation* shall constitute a quorum. At any meeting of the Board of Directors at which there is a quorum, all matters approved by at least a majority of the Board of Directors present at such meeting shall be valid as a corporate act, except for such matters which require the vote of majority of all the members of the Board as prescribed by the law or the *By-laws*

This quorum requirement is consistent with Section 25 of the *Corporation Code* which provides that unless the articles of incorporation or by-laws provide for a greater majority, a majority of the number of directors as fixed in the articles of incorporation shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of corporate business, and every decision of at least a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which there is a quorum shall be valid as a corporate act, except for the election of officers which shall require the vote of all members of the board.

A majority of directors is apparently sufficient to constitute a quorum considering that under the *Corporation Code*, for the approval of major corporate actions (such as extension or shortening corporate term, increase or decrease in capital stock, incurrence, creation or increase in bonded indebtedness, sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of assets, investment of corporate funds in another corporation or business or for any other purpose, amendment of articles of incorporation, merger or consolidation and dissolution) the voting requirement at the Board level is only a majority vote and the two thirds (2/3) voting requirement applies to stockholders' approval/ratification of such corporate actions.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in each of the 13 meetings of the Board of Directors held in 2014 there was a quorum consisting of more than two-thirds of the entire membership of the Board of Directors.

5) Access to Information

(a) How many days in advance are board papers³⁰ for board of directors meetings provided to the board?

Board papers are supplied at least 5 business days in advance of the meeting. In addition, Item 2.4.1(c) of the *PLDT CG Manual* provides that in order to enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their duties and responsibilities, Management shall provide the Directors/Board with adequate and timely information about the matters to be taken up in their Board meetings and, upon the request of any Director or the Board, make presentations on specific topics and respond to further inquiries in relation thereto during Board meetings. The Directors shall have independent access to Management.

(b) Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes. In accordance with Secs. 2.1.4(p) and 2.4.1(c) of the *PLDT CG Manual*, to ensure a high standard of governance for the Company and to promote and protect the interest of the Company, its stockholders and other stakeholders, the Board shall, among others, ensure that the Board and Board Committees are enabled to obtain independent professional advice at the Company's expense and have access to Management as they may deem necessary or appropriate to carry out their duties; and in order to enable the members of the Board to properly fulfill their duties and responsibilities, Management shall provide the Directors/Board with adequate and timely information about the matters to be taken up in their Board meetings and, upon the request of any Director or the Board, make presentations on specific topics and respond to further inquiries in relation thereto during Board meetings. The Directors shall have independent access to Management.

(c) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

The *PLDT CG Manual* provides the following duties and responsibilities of the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary: (a) be loyal to the mission, vision and objectives of the Company; (b) perform their duties and responsibilities set out in Article VIII of the *By-Laws;* (c) be responsible for the safekeeping and preservation of the integrity of the minutes of Board meetings and other official records of the Company; (d) work fairly and objectively with the Board, Management and stockholders; (e) inform the Directors of the schedule and agenda of Board meetings and ensure that Management provides them complete, accurate and relevant information; (iv) attend all Board meetings, except when justifiable causes prevent them from doing so; and (v) ensure that all Board procedures, rules and regulations are strictly followed by the Directors.

In case the Corporate Secretary or Assistant Corporate Secretary is also the compliance officer, s/he shall perform the

³⁰ Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting. Information includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets, forecasts and internal financial documents. (ACGR footnote)

following duties of the said officer: (a) monitor compliance with the provisions and requirements of the *PLDT CG Manual*, the *SEC CG Code* and such other laws, circulars, rules and regulations issued in relation thereto; (b) assist the Board and the GNC in the performance of their governance functions, including their duties to oversee the formulation or review and implementation of the corporate governance structure and policies of the Company, and to assist in the conduct of a self-assessment of the performance and effectiveness of the Board, the Board Committees and individual Board members. The Corporate Governance Office (CGO) assists in facilitating training of directors and keeping directors updated regarding relevant statutory and regulatory changes. The CGO has three (3) functional units which correspond to the three E's of corporate governance, namely, Corporate Governance Education, Corporate Governance Engineering and Corporate Governance Enforcement, all under the leadership of the Chief Governance Officer.

In 2014, the positions of Corporate Secretary and Chief Governance Officer were held in concurrent capacity by the same individual. In the performance of her dual functions, the Corporate Secretary-Chief Governance Officer assists the Chairman in preparing the Board agenda, facilitating the training of directors, and keeping directors updated regarding any relevant statutory and regulatory changes.

(d) Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain should the answer be in the negative.

Yes. In accordance with Sec. 2.5.1 of the *PLDT CG Manual*, the Corporate Secretary and Assistant Corporate Secretary shall, among others, possess appropriate administrative, interpersonal and legal skills, be aware of the laws, rules and regulations necessary in the performance of their duties or responsibilities, and have at least an understanding of basic financial and accounting matters. The current Corporate Secretary and the Assistant Corporate Secretary are both duly-licensed attorneys- at-law.

(e) Committee Procedures

Yes

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get information necessary to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

Committee	Details of the procedures
Executive	n/a^{31}
Audit: Audit Committee (AC)	In accordance with Sec. 4.1(c) of the <i>Audit Committee Charter</i> , as amended (" AC Charter ") ³² , written notices of AC meetings (specifying the date, place and time, and matters to be discussed at the meeting) are sent by the AC Secretariat (Internal Audit team) to the concerned AC Members/Advisors a month before, or at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting. Materials for the AC meetings are sent to concerned Members and Advisors at least three (3) days before the scheduled meeting.
	Further, per Sec. 4.4(a) of the <i>AC Charter</i> , any other notice or document to be given or issued to the Members/Advisors may be served by the Committee upon any Member/Advisor either (i) personally, or (ii) by sending it by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such Member/Advisor at his address and, in any case where the address of a Member/Advisor is outside the Philippines, by prepaid airmail or courier, or (iii) by facsimile transmission.
	The AC Member or Advisor can request from the AC Secretariat for further information relevant to the AC meetings personally, or via mail, email or telephone/facsimile numbers.
Nomination: Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)	In accordance with Sec. 4.1(c) of the <i>GNC Charter</i> ³³ , written notices of GNC meetings (specifying the date, place and time, and matters to be discussed at the meeting) are sent by the GNC Secretariat (Corporate Governance Office) to the concerned GNC Members/Advisors at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting, endeavoring, in practice, however to provide the notice at least two (2) weeks in advance. Materials, documents, papers and all other pertinent information are provided at least one (1) week prior to the scheduled meeting.
	Further, per item 4.4(a) of the GNC Charter, any other notice or document to be given

 $^{^{\}rm 31}\,$ The Board of Directors has not created or delegated its powers to an Executive Committee.

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Audit%20Committee%20Charter.pdf.

³² A copy of the *Audit Committee Charter* is posted at:

³³ A copy of the *Governance and Nomination Committee Charter* is posted at: http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Governance%20and%20Nomination%20Committee%20Charter.pdf

or issued to the Members/Advisors may be served by the Committee upon any Member/Advisor either (i) personally, or (ii) by sending it by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such Member/Advisor at his address and, in any case where the address of a Member/Advisor is outside the Philippines, by prepaid airmail or courier, or (iii) by facsimile transmission.

The GNC Member or Advisor can request from the GNC Secretariat for further information relevant to the GNC meetings personally, or via mail, email or telephone/facsimile numbers.

Remuneration: Executive Compensation Committee (ECC)

In accordance with Item 4.1(c) of the *Executive Compensation Committee Charter*, as amended ("*ECC Charter*")³⁴, written notices of ECC meetings (specifying the date, place and time, and matters to be discussed at the meeting) are sent by the ECC Secretariat (Human Resources) to the concerned ECC Members/Advisors at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting. Materials, documents, papers and all other pertinent information are likewise provided at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting.

Further, per item 4.4(a) of the *ECC Charter*, any other notice or document to be given or issued to the Members/Advisors may be served by the Committee upon any Member/Advisor either (i) personally, or (ii) by sending it by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such Member/Advisor at his address and, in any case where the address of a Member/Advisor is outside the Philippines, by prepaid airmail or courier, or (iii) by facsimile transmission.

The ECC Member or Advisor can request from the ECC Secretariat for further information relevant to the ECC meetings personally, or via mail, email or telephone/facsimile numbers.

Others (specify): Technology Strategy Committee ("**TSC**")

In accordance with Item 4.1(c) of the *Technology Strategy Committee Charter, as amended* ("*TSC Charter*")³⁵, written notices of TSC meetings (specifying the date, place and time, and matters to be discussed at the meeting) are sent by the TSC Secretariat to the concerned TSC Members/Advisors at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting. Materials, documents, papers and all other pertinent information are likewise provided at least three (3) days prior to the scheduled meeting.

Further, per item 4.4(a) of the *TSC Charter*, any other notice or document to be given or issued to the Members/Advisors may be served by the Committee upon any Member/Advisor either (i) personally, or (ii) by sending it by mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such Member/Advisor at his address and, in any case where the address of a Member/Advisor is outside the Philippines, by prepaid airmail or courier, or (iii) by facsimile transmission.

The TSC Member or Advisor can request from the TSC Secretariat for further information relevant to the TSC meetings personally, or via mail, email or telephone/facsimile numbers.

For all the committees listed above, the Chairman of the Committee and/or any of its Members/Advisors may meet separately with Management, the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and/or the external auditor/s of the Company to discuss any matter that the Committee or any of the foregoing persons or firms believe should be discussed privately. The Committee may also request any Officer, Executive or employee of the Company or the Company's outside counsel or external auditor to attend a meeting of the Committee or to meet with any Member, Advisor or consultant of the Committee. (Common provision set forth in Sec. 2.3 of the AC Charter, GNC Charter, ECC Charter and TSC Charter).

6) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide details:

Procedures Details

Per Section 2.1.4(p) of the *PLDT CG Manual*, the Board shall ensure that the Board and the Board Committees are enabled to obtain independent professional advice at the Company's expense and have access to Management as they may deem necessary or appropriate to carry out their duties.

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Executive%20 Compensation%20 Committee%20 Charter.pdf.

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Technology%20Strategy%20Committee%20Charter.pdf.

 $^{^{\}rm 34}\,$ A copy of the Executive Compensation Committee Charter is posted at:

³⁵ A copy of the *Technology Strategy Committee Charter* is posted at:

Per Sections 2.2 and 2.3 of the Charters of the Board Committees (AC Charter, GNC Charter, ECC Charter and TSC Charter):

- The Committee shall have the resources and authority appropriate to discharge its responsibilities, including the authority to engage and obtain external advice, counsel or consultancy services as it deems appropriate without need for Board approval.
- The Chairman of the Committee and/or any of its Members/Advisors may meet separately with Management to discuss any matter that the Committee or any of the foregoing persons believe should be discussed privately. The Committee may also request any Officer, Executive or employee of the Company or the Company's outside counsel or external auditors to attend a meeting of the Committee or to meet with any Members, Advisors or consultants of the Committee.

7) Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors (during its most recent term) on existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

Existing Policies	Changes	Reason
Manual on Corporate Governance (or PLDT CG Manual)	The PLDT CG Manual was amended to include provisions pertaining to the stakeholders of the Company in accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2014. A copy of the amended CG Manual is posted at http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/corporate-governance-files/CG-Manual-/pldt-manual-on-corporate-governancepdf?sfvrsn=0.	Pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 9, Series of 2014, the PLDT CG Manual was amended to reflect the amendments to the Revised Code of Corporate Governance.

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS

1) Remuneration Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneration of the CEO and the four (4) most highly compensated management officers:

Process	CEO	Top 4 Highest Paid Management Officers
(1) Fixed remuneration	Guaranteed Annual Cash Compensation ("GACC") consisting of the 12 months Basic Pay ("Basic Pay"), one month Midyear Bonus, 13 th Month Pay, Christmas Bonus and Longevity Pay. Monthly Basic Pay is determined based on the salary range applicable for the position. The salary range is determined on the basis of benchmark market rates.	GACC consisting of the 12 months Basic Pay, one month Midyear Bonus, 13 th Month Pay, Christmas Bonus and Longevity Pay. Monthly Basic Pay is determined based on the salary range applicable for the position. The salary range is determined on the basis of benchmark market rates.
(2) Variable remuneration	Performance-based pay in terms of percentage of the GACC. Range is 0% to 60% of the GACC. Actual payout is dependent on the achievement of the Core Net Income target of the PLDT Group.	Performance-based pay in terms of percentage of the Officer's GACC. Range is 0% to 60% of the GACC. Actual payout is dependent on the achievement of the Core Net Income target of the PLDT Group.
(3) Per diem allowance		
(4) Bonus		-
(5) Stock Options and other financial instruments	-	
(6) Others (specify): Long Term Incentive Plan	Cash Plan based on the achievement of the 3-year cumulative Consolidated Core Income Target of the PLDT Group. Individual Target	Cash Plan based on the achievement of the 3- year cumulative Consolidated Core Income Target of the PLDT Group. Individual Target Awards are determined based on a multiple of

Awards are determined based on a	the GACC.
multiple of the GACC.	

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executive Directors

Disclose the company's policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensation package. Explain how the compensation of Executive and Non-Executive Directors is calculated.

	Remuneration Policy	Structure of Compensation Packages	How Compensation is Calculated
Executive Directors	Executive Directors get their regular compensation and benefits from PLDT on top of a <i>per diem</i> which is given based on attendance in Board and Board Committee Meetings (Php 250,000 per Board Meeting and Php 125,000 per Board Committee Meeting, effective January 2014).	Similar to compensation structure of other Officers of the Company.	Similar to computation of compensation of other Officers of the Company.
Non- Executive Directors	PLDT does not provide compensation and benefits for Non-Executive Directors. They are only given a <i>per diem</i> based on attendance in Board and Board Committee Meetings (Php 250,000 per Board Meeting and Php 125,000 per Board Committee Meeting, effective January 2014).		_

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benefits-in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

Remuneration Scheme	Date of Stockholders' Approval
Executive, Non-Executive and	Not applicable. Under Sec. 30 of the Corporation Code, per diems are excluded from
Independent Directors do not	compensation which is subject to approval by a majority vote of stockholders. On
receive remuneration or	September 30, 2014, the Board of Directors approved the increase in director's fee
benefits, in their capacity as	from P200,000 to P250,000 for Board meeting attendance and from P75,000 to
such. They only receive per diem	P125,000 for Board Committee meeting attendance, retroactive to January 2014. The
for attending Board and Board	director's fee was last adjusted in January 2009. The Executive Compensation
Committee Meetings. The	Committee recommended the increase based on the results of the survey on Board
current per diem rates for	remuneration conducted by Towers Watsons Philippines, Inc., which considered the
Directors is Php 250,000 per	size of the PLDT Group in terms of revenues, net income and total assets, that PLDT is
Board Meeting and Php 125,000	listed in the NYSE, and PLDT's directors do not receive compensation with a variable
per Board Committee Meeting.	component other than the director's fees/per diem for attendance in Board/Board
	Committee meetings. The results showed that PLDT is larger than most of the
	companies surveyed and close to the market 90 th percentile in terms of revenues, and
	the annual remuneration of PLDT's directors was approximately 30 percent lower than
	the annual remuneration of other companies in the 90 th percentile.

3) Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:

The data on the aggregate compensation of Executive Directors excludes that pertaining to Mr. Napoleon L. Nazareno whose compensation comes from Smart Communications, Inc.

	Remuneration Item	Executive Directors	Non-Executive Directors (other than independent directors)	Independent Directors
(a)	Fixed Remuneration	Php 19,621,699.00		
(b)	Variable Remuneration	Php 9,667,815.00		
(c)	Per diem Allowance	Php 9,125,000.00	Php 22,175,000.00	Php 13,750,000.00
(d)	Bonuses			
(e)	Stock Options and/or other financial instruments			
(f)	Others			
	Total	Php 38,414,514.00	Php 22,175,000.00	Php 13,750,000.00

	Other Benefits	Executive Directors	Non-Executive Director (other than independent directors)	Independent Directors
1)	Advances			
2)	Credit granted			
3)	Pension Plan/s Contributions			
(d)	Pension Plans, Obligations incurred			
(e)	Life Insurance Premium	Php 374,106		
(f)	Hospitalization Plan	Actual; 100% covered		
(g)	Car Plan	Php 6,000,000		
(h)	Others (Specify)			
	Total	Php 6,374,106		

4) Stock Rights, Options and Warrants

(a) Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company's Board of Directors who own or are entitled to stock rights, options or warrants over the company's shares:

Director's Name	Number of Direct Option/Rights/ Warrants	Number of Indirect Option/Rights/ Warrants	Number of Equivalent Shares	Total % from Capital Stock

(b) Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual Stockholders' Meeting:

Incentive Program	Amendments	Date of Stockholders' Approval	
PLDT Group has adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) under which certain Officers and Executives of the PLDT Group who are identified as qualified participants will be granted plan awards based on the achievement of the PLDT Group's Cumulative Consolidated Core Net Income Targets for the 3-year performance cycle 2012, 2013 and 2014.	Adoption of the 2012-2014 PLDT Group LTIP. The LTIP covering the performance cycle January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2012 was terminated since the profit targets for the covered performance cycle were no longer achievable. There were no payouts under the 2010 to 2012 LTIP.	Not applicable. The PLDT Group LTIP is approved only up to the level of the Board of Directors and thereafter promptly disclosed to the SEC and PSE and in the financial reports.	

5) Remuneration of Management

Identify the five (5) members of management who are \underline{not} at the same time executive directors and indicate the total remuneration received during the financial year:

Name of Officer/Position	Total Remuneration		
Ernesto R. Alberto			
Rene G. Bañez			
Anabelle L. Chua	P171,861,798.61		
Isaias P. Fermin			
Menardo G. Jimenez, Jr.			

E. BOARD COMMITTEES

1) Number of Members, Functions and Responsibilities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibilities and the power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

Committee	No. of Members		Committee	Functions	Key	Power		
	Executive Director (ED)	Non- executive Director (NED)	Independent Director (ID)	Charter		Responsibilities		
Executive	n/a ³⁶							
Audit: <i>Audit</i> Committee (AC)			3	Committee Charter: The <i>AC Charter</i> was approved on March 29, 2011 by the Board of Directors. Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers of the Audit Committee:				
					•	urpose or function is esponsibilities for:	to assist the	
				 the integrity of the Company's accounting and financial reporting principles and policies, and system of internal controls, including the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the independent audit thereof; 				
				 the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; the Company's assessment and management of enterprise risks including credit, market, liquidity, operational and legal risks; and the Company's audit process and the performance of the Company's internal audit organization and External Auditor, including the External Auditor's qualifications and independence. The Audit Committee's primary responsibility is oversight. The Audit Committee has oversight responsibilities and powers over the following areas: 				
				 External auditors; Internal auditors; Financial reporting principles and policies and system of internal control; Enterprise risks; and Legal and regulatory compliance The Audit Committee's functions, key responsibilities and 			d system of	
							ihilities and	
				powers are se	t forth in com ons of the Charte	plete detail in the ers of the Board Con	AC Charter.	
Nomination: Governance		2	3	Committee Charter: The <i>GNC Charter</i> was approved on September 28, 2010 by the Board of Directors.				
and Nomination		Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers of the Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC):						
Committee (GNC)				The GNC's nomination-related primary purposes or functions are the following:				
				 Review and evaluate the qualifications of the persons nominated to the Board as well as those nominated to other positions requiring appointment by the Board; 				
				2. Identify pe	rsons believed	to be qualified	to become	

 $^{^{\}rm 36}$ The Board of Directors has not created or delegated its powers to an Executive Committee.

			members of the Board and/or the Board Committees; and
			 Assist the Board in making an assessment of the Board's effectiveness in the process of replacing or appointing new members of the Board and/or Board Committees.
			The GNC has key responsibilities and powers over the following nomination-related matters:
			 Nomination of Directors and Independent Directors; Pre-screening nominee Independent Directors; Preparation and recommendation to the Board of the final list of qualified nominee Directors and Independent Directors;
			 Recommending qualified Director or Independent Director in case of a vacancy; Recommending qualified persons as Board Committees members; and
			 Evaluation of qualifications of persons nominated for Board-appointed positions.
			In addition to the foregoing matters that pertain to nomination, the GNC has the following functions, responsibilities and powers pertaining to governance:
			 Oversee the development and implementation of corporate governance principles and policies;
			Assist the Board in developing and implementing the Board's performance evaluation process;
			Review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's corporate governance structures, principles and policies;
			 Establish the appropriate evaluation system for monitoring and assessing compliance with the corporate governance policies;
			5. Oversee the continuing corporate governance communication and education programs; and
			6. Consider, resolve and/or submit its recommendations to the Board on corporate governance issues.
			The GNC's nomination and governance functions, key responsibilities and powers are set forth in complete detail in the GNC Charter.
Remuneration: Executive	 2	3	Committee Charter: The <i>ECC Charter</i> was approved on November 4, 2010 by the Board of Directors.
Compensation Committee (ECC)			Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers of the Executive Compensation Committee (ECC):
(200)			The ECC's primary purposes or functions are to:
			 Provide guidance to and assist the Board in developing a compensation philosophy or policy consistent with the culture, strategy and control environment of the Company;
			Oversee the development and administration of the Company's executive compensation programs, including long term incentive plans and equity based plans for Officers and Executives; and
			3. Assist the Board in the performance evaluation of and succession planning for Officers, including the CEO, and in overseeing the development and implementation of professional development programs for Officers.
			The ECC has key responsibilities and powers over the following:
			 Compensation philosophy; Compensation policies and programs for the President & CEO, Directors and other members of management and key personnel; and
			ney personner, and

			 Development programs and succession planning.
			The ECC's functions, key responsibilities and powers are set forth in complete detail in the ECC Charter.
Others (specify): ³⁷			Committee Charter: The <i>TSC Charter</i> , as amended, was approved on September 28, 2010 by the Board of Directors.
Technology Strategy Committee			Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers of the Technology Strategy Committee (TSC):
(TSC)			The TSC's primary purposes are to assist and enable the Board to:
			 review and approve the strategic vision for the role of technology in the Company's overall business strategy, including the technology strategy and roadmap of the Company;
	2	3	2. fulfill its oversight responsibilities for the Company's effective execution of its technology-related strategies; and
			ensure the optimized use and contribution of technology to the Company's business and strategic objectives and growth targets.
			The TSC's primary responsibility is oversight. The TSC has key responsibilities and powers over the following:
			 Review of the Company's major technology strategy; and Assisting the Board to achieve an understanding of the technologies needed for strategic growth plans.
			The TSC's functions, key responsibilities and powers are set forth in complete detail in the TSC Charter.

2) Committee Members

(a) Executive Committee: n/a^{37}

(b) Audit Committee (AC)

Length of Service Office Name Date of No. of No. of Appointment³⁸ Meetings Meetings in the Committee Held Attended (years) Jun 14, 2013 Chairman Pedro E. Roxas 100 12.8 10 10 Jun 10, 2014 (ID) Member Artemio V. Panganiban Jun 14, 2013 10 10 100 1.7 (ID) Jun 10, 2014 Jun 14, 2013 Member Alfred V. Ty 10 9 90 4.3 Jun 10, 2014 (ID) Advisor/Audit Corazon S. Dela Paz-Jun 14, 2013 100 10.8 Committee Bernardo³⁹ Jun 10, 2014 Financial Expert Advisor Roberto R. Romulo Jun 14, 2013 88 12.3 Jun 10, 2014 Advisor James L. Go Jun 14, 2013 100 3.2

37

³⁷ The Board of Directors is advised by several advisors comprising the Advisory Board/Committee, which provides guidance and suggestions, as necessary, on matters deliberated during Board meetings. While nominally referred to as the Advisory Board/Committee, it is not a separate functional committee to which the Board delegates the performance of specific Board functions or responsibilities. Six (6) advisors comprise the Advisory Board/Committee, namely, Oscar S. Reyes, Roberto R. Romulo, Benny S. Santoso, Washington Z. SyCip, Orlando B. Vea and Christopher H. Young.

³⁸ Audit Committee members are appointed annually for a one-year term. In this and subsequent tables regarding Board Committees, the dates of appointment pertain to the covered year 2014, *i.e.*, for the term of office beginning on June 14, 2013 and ending June 10, 2014 and for the term of office beginning on that date and ending June 9, 2015. The number of meetings held and number of meetings attended pertain to the meetings in 2014 while the length of service in the committee is reckoned from the date of first appointment up to December 31, 2014.

³⁹ Appointed as Audit Committee Financial Expert since March 30, 2004, and continued as such after her resignation as a director on October 3, 2008 (per Board resolution dated November 4, 2008).

(NED)		Jun 10, 2014				
Advisor	Setsuya Kimura	Jun 14, 2013	8	8	100	3.5
(NED)		Jun 10, 2014				

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

The qualifications of Audit Committee members as provided in Section 3.2 of the AC Charter are as follows:

- (a) Each Member must be financially literate and the Chairman must have accounting or related financial management expertise, as such qualifications are interpreted by the Board in its business judgment.
- (b) Each Member shall be a Philippine citizen if so required under applicable Philippine laws and regulations and/or the *By-Laws*.

Profile of Audit Committee Members:

Mr. Pedro E. Roxas

Mr. Roxas is the Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer/President of Roxas Holdings Inc. and Roxas and Company, Inc., holding and investments companies, and an independent director of Meralco and BDO Private Bank, which are reporting or PSE-listed companies. He is also the Chairman, President or a director of companies or associations in the fields of agribusiness, sugar manufacturing and real estate development, including Brightnote Assets Corporation, Club Punta Fuego, Inc., and Philippine Sugar Millers Association, and a member of the Board of Trustees of the Philippine Business for Social Progress and Fundacion Santiago (where he is also the President). He also serves as a member of the Governance and Nomination, and Executive Compensation Committees of the PLDT Board of Directors. Mr. Roxas received his Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the University of Notre Dame, Indiana, U.S.A.

Former Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban

Former Chief Justice Panganiban was first elected as an independent director of PLDT on April 23, 2013. He currently serves as an independent director of Meralco, Petron Corporation, Bank of Philippine Islands, First Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investment Corp., Robinsons Land Corporation, GMA Network, GMA Holdings, and Asian Terminals Inc., and a regular director of Jollibee Foods Corp., all of which are PSE-listed companies. He also holds directorships in Metro Pacific Tollways Corporation and Tollways Management Corporation. He serves as a member of the Governance and Nomination, and Executive Compensation Committees of the PLDT Board of Directors and was an independent member of the Advisory Board/Committee of PLDT since June 9, 2009. He is the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity and Chairman-Emeritus of the Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., President of the Manila Cathedral-Basilica Foundation, Chairman of the Board of Advisers of the Metrobank Foundation, Inc., Asian Institute of Management Ramon V. Del Rosario, Sr., C.V. Starr Center for Corporate Governance, and University of Asia and the Pacific, senior adviser of the Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company and V. Mapa Falcon Honor Society, adviser of Doubledragon Properties Corp., and a column writer of the Philippine Daily Inquirer. Hon. Panganiban served the Supreme Court of the Philippines for more than 11 years, first as Justice (October 10, 1995 to December 20, 2005) and later, as Chief Justice (December 21, 2005 to December 6, 2006) during which he sat concurrently as Chairperson of the Presidential Electoral Tribunal, Judicial and Bar Council and Philippine Judicial Academy. He was the recipient of numerous awards in recognition of his role as jurist, practicing lawyer, professor, civic leader, Catholic lay worker and business entrepreneur, including as "The Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century" given by the Supreme Court on the occasion of his retirement from the Court. Hon. Panganiban obtained his Bachelor of Laws Degree (Cum Laude) from the Far Eastern University in 1960 and was conferred a Doctor of Laws (Honoris Causa) by the University of Iloilo (1997), Far Eastern University (2002), University of Cebu (2006), Angeles University (2006) and Bulacan State University (2006). He was co-founder and past president of the National Union of the Students of the Philippines.

Mr. Alfred V. Ty

Mr. Ty is the Vice Chairman of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. and the Corporate Secretary of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, both of which are PSE-listed companies. He is also the Vice Chairman of Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation, the President of Federal Land, Inc., the Chairman of Lexus Manila, Inc., Cathay International Resources, Inc., and Bonifacio Landmark Realty & Development Corporation, a director of Global Business Power Corp. and a trustee of Metrobank Foundation, Inc., Norberto Tytana Foundation and GT-Metro Foundation, Inc. He also serves as a member of the Governance and Nomination, and Executive Compensation Committees of the PLDT Board of Directors. Mr. Ty received his Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration from the University of Southern California.

Through their education and experience as Chairman of the Board or Chief Executive Officer of other companies, they possess accounting or related financial management competencies, more specifically: (a) an understanding of generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") and financial statements; (b) an ability to assess the general applications of GAAP; (c) experience in reviewing or analyzing financial statements; (d) an understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial reporting; and (e) an understanding of audit committee functions.

In addition, one of the advisors of the Audit Committee, Ms. Corazon S. de la Paz-Bernardo, is a certified public accountant who was the first woman to be admitted partner of Price Waterhouse International in 1973 and the first woman to be named Senior Partner and Chairperson of Joaquin Cunanan & Co./PricewaterhouseCoopers-Philippines (now Isla Lipana &

Co.) in 1981, a position she occupied for twenty (20) years until June 30, 2001. She was also a member of the Price Waterhouse World Firm Limited Board from 1992 to 1995.

Describe the Audit Committee's responsibility relative to the external auditor.

The Audit Committee's key responsibilities relative to the external auditor include the following: review of the qualification, performance and independence of the external auditor; selection and appointment of the external auditor or replacement of the external auditor as the Audit Committee may deem necessary or appropriate; review of all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the external auditor and all fees to be paid for such services; review of the external auditor's Auditor Statement on its internal quality control procedures; ensuring the rotation at least every five (5) years or such other period as required by applicable law or regulation of the external auditor or its lead audit partner; considering reports submitted by the external auditor in accordance with applicable Auditing Standard; and ensuring that the external auditor has unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to enable the performance of its audit functions.

The Audit Committee's responsibilities relative to the external auditor are set forth in complete detail in Sections 1 and 3 of the AC Charter-Schedule, Duties and Powers as provided in Annex C-E.1: "Audit Committee" hereto attached and in the AC Charter.

(c) Nomination Committee: Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)

Office	Name	Date of Appointment ⁴⁰	No. of Meetings Held	No. of Meetings Attended	%	Length of Service in the Committee (years)
Chairman	Manuel V. Pangilinan (NED)	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	10.2
Member (ED)						
Member (NED)	Setsuya Kimura	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	3.5
Member (ID)	Artemio V. Panganiban	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	5.6
	Pedro E. Roxas	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	11.9
	Alfred V. Ty	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	1	33	8.6
Member	Non-Voting Members: Menardo G. Jimenez, Jr.	Jun 14, 2013	3	3	100	4.3
	Wienardo G. Jimenez, Jr.	Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	4.5
	Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa- Chan (ED)	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	6.8

(d) Remuneration Committee: Executive Compensation Committee (ECC)

Office	Name	Date of Appointment ⁴¹	No. of Meetings Held	No. of Meetings Attended	%	Length of Service in the Committee (years)
Chairman	Manuel V. Pangilinan (NED)	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	3.5
Member (ED)						
Member (NED)	Setsuya Kimura	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	3.5
Member (ID)	Artemio V. Panganiban	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	1.7
(.2)	Pedro E. Roxas	Jun 14, 2013	3	3	100	13.6

 $^{^{40}}$ Governance and Nomination Committee members are appointed annually for a one-year term. See footnote no. 38.

 $^{^{41}}$ Executive Compensation Committee members are appointed annually for a one-year term. See footnote 38.

	Alfred V. Ty	Jun 10, 2014 Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	2	67	8.6
Member	Non-Voting Member: Menardo G. Jimenez, Jr.	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	4.3

(e) Others (Specify)⁴²

Provide the same information on all other committees constituted by the Board of Directors:

(i) Technology Strategy Committee (TSC)

Office	Name	Date of Appointment ⁴³	No. of Meetings Held	No. of Meetings Attended	%	Length of Service in the Committee (years)
Chairman	Manuel V. Pangilinan (NED)	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	2	67	7.6
Member (ED)	Napoleon L. Nazareno	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	7.6
	Ray C. Espinosa	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	7.6
Member (NED)	Setsuya Kimura	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	3.5
	James L. Go	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	3.2
Member (ID)						
Member	Non-voting members:					
	Oscar S. Reyes	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	7.6
	Orlando B. Vea	Jun 14, 2013 Jun 10, 2014	3	3	100	6.6

3) Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes in committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

Name of Committee	Name	Reason
Executive	n/a ⁴⁴	
Audit: Audit Committee (AC)		
Nomination: Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)	-	
Remuneration: Executive Compensation Committee (ECC)	-	
Others (specify): Technology Strategy Committee (TSC)		

⁴² See footnote 37.

Technology Strategy Committee members are appointed annually for a one-year term. See footnote 38.

The Board of Directors has not created or delegated its powers to an Executive Committee.

4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

 $\label{eq:decomposition} \textbf{Describe the work done by each committee and the significant issues addressed during the year.}$

Name of Committee	each committee and the significant issues addressed du Work Done	Issues Addressed
Executive	n/a ⁴⁴	
Audit: Audit Committee (AC)	 Reviewed and approved for retention the existing AC Charter until the next review in 2015. Discussed with internal audit group and external auditor the overall scope and plans for their respective audits, and the results of their examinations and evaluations of PLDT Group's internal controls and overall quality of the PLDT Group's financial reporting. Reviewed and approved all audit and non-audit services provided by external auditor to the PLDT Group and the related fees, and concluded that the non-audit fees are not significant to impair their independence. Discussed with external auditor the matters required to be discussed by the prevailing applicable Auditing Standard and its independence from the PLDT Group and the PLDT Group's management. Received from PLDT Group's Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Officer periodic status reports on PLDT Group's ERM activities. Reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements of the PLDT Group as at and for the year ended December 31, 2013 with the PLDT Group's management, which has the primary responsibility for the financial statements, and with the external auditor responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the PLDT Group's audited financial statements with PFRS. Reviewed and discussed with Finance Officers PLDT's unaudited consolidated quarterly financial statements and reports in the first three quarters of 2014. Reviewed SGV's performance and qualifications, including management's recommendation, and on the basis thereof, approved the appointment of SGV as the PLDT Group's external auditor. Discussed with the General Counsel and the Head of Regulatory Affairs and Policies Office the matters regarding the Company's compliance with Board policies and applicable laws and regulations. 	
Nomination: Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)	 Nomination Function: Pre-screened nominee Directors and Independent Directors. Submitted to the Board the final list of qualified nominee Directors and Independent Directors for election at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting. Reviewed the qualifications of officers and recommended their appointment or reappointment. Governance Function: Reviewed corporate governance policies and their implementation. Reviewed and approved the corporate governance continuing education and communication program and the corporate 	Compliance with applicable regulations and conformance with the PLDT CG Manual Continuous improvement of the Company's corporate governance standards

governance themes for the annual posters and calendars for the ensuing year. Assisted the Board in implementing the Board Assessment, including the performance evaluation of Board Committees and individual Directors. • Reviewed, noted and, as applicable, approved the conflict of interest disclosures and the implementation of the Periodic Conflict of Interest (COI) Disclosure System. Reviewed the whistleblowing cases and the handling thereof. Received the results of the Governance and Ethics Survey. Reviewed and approved the Annual Corporate Governance Report and noted the PSE Corporate Governance Disclosure Report. · Received reports on governance enhancement initiatives in the Company and its subsidiaries. Received updates on various proposed CG Reports/Scorecards/Awards, such as the SEC Annual Corporate Governance Report, ASEAN CG Scorecard and PSE Bell Awards. Remuneration: • Discussed and approved the pay-out of the 2013 Effectiveness and competitiveness of the **Executive Compensation** Variable Pay for Officers and Executives. Company's compensation strategy and Committee (ECC) • Discussed and approved the 2014 Variable Pay its implementation Targets and the corresponding Variable Pay payout Levels. Discussed and approved the proposed new salary structure for Officers and recommended by Management implementation retroactive to January 1, 2014. Discussed and approved the 2014 Merit Increase for Officers and Executives. • Discussed and submitted for approval of the Board proposed improvement in the Board Meeting Fee and Committee Meeting Fee. Others (specify): • Discussed the status of the PLDT Group's Effectiveness of the PLDT Group's Technology Strategy initiatives to improve the business, operation technology strategy in line with, or in Committee (TSC) and quality of service. support of, the Group's various Discussed the status of and updates on the PLDT businesses; and optimization of the use Group's technology roadmap. of the PLDT Group's technology, Discussed the Technology Group budget for network and IT infrastructure to achieve network, platforms and IT infrastructure for strategic objectives and growth targets

2015.

5) Committee Program

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant issues in the improvement or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

Name of Committee	Planned Programs	Issues to be Addressed
Executive	n/a ⁴⁴	
Audit: Audit Committee (AC)	Conduct of usual executive sessions with key operating officers regarding significant risks pertaining to their areas of responsibility	For the regular update and better understanding of the Audit Committee members
Nomination: Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)	 Nomination Function: Pre-screening and submission to the Board of the final list of qualified nominee Directors and Independent Directors for election at the Annual Stockholders' Meeting Review of the qualifications of officers for appointment or re-appointment Governance Function: Review of the continuing education and communication program for incoming year, including the appropriate enhancements session 	To ensure continued compliance with applicable regulations and conformance with the <i>PLDT CG Manual</i> To sustain the continuous improvement of the Company's corporate governance standards
	for Directors and Officers and the corporate governance themes for the annual posters for the following year Review of corporate governance policies and their implementation Assist in the implementation of the Board Assessment for the current year, including the performance evaluation of Board Committees and individual Directors Review of conflict of interest disclosures Review of whistleblowing cases and the handling thereof Review of the Corporate Governance Report for previous year and other governance-related compliance reports Other governance enhancement projects, including online systems for conflict of interest and gifts disclosures and the upgrade of the corporate governance website	
Remuneration: Executive Compensation Committee (ECC)	 Annual review of compensation policy with comparatives to market and peer companies Obtain information on best compensation practices of best managed companies abroad 	To maintain the competitiveness of the Company's compensation structures and practices
Others (specify) Technology Strategy Committee (TSC)	 Update on the Group's technology roadmap Briefing on the Group's technology budget Briefing on new technology 	To enable the Technology Strategy Committee to assist the Board in the performance of its oversight responsibilities on the Company's technology strategy and roadmap

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1) Disclose the following:

(a) Overall risk management philosophy of the company;

The PLDT Group's commitment to effective management of risk is encompassed in the PLDT Group Risk Management Philosophy as follows:

The PLDT Group operates in a complex and dynamic business environment which gives rise to a variety of risks that can be both threat and opportunity. Recognizing that these risks are an integral part of its business, the PLDT Group is committed to managing its overall risk exposure in a systematic way and in such a manner that supports its strategic decision-making process. Accordingly, the PLDT Group employs a comprehensive, integrated risk management program, effected across all levels of the organization, with the goal of identifying, analyzing and managing the Group's risks to an acceptable level, so as to enhance opportunities, reduce threats, and thus sustain competitive advantage. The PLDT Group believes that an effective risk management program will contribute to the attainment of objectives by PLDT and its subsidiaries, thus creating value for the business and its stakeholders.

This philosophy statement is contained in the PLDT Group Risk Management Policy Manual approved in December 2011.

(b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and commenting on the adequacy thereof;

The Audit Committee has received from and discussed with the PLDT Group's Enterprise Risk Management Officer periodic status reports on PLDT Group's enterprise risk management activities for 2014. The Audit Committee shall include such discussion in its 2014 *Audit Committee Report*. A copy of the Audit Committee Report shall also be included in PLDT's 2014 Annual Report.

The PLDT Group Risk Management Philosophy Statement, the Enterprise Risk Management framework, the guidelines governing the process, and the roles and responsibilities for its implementation are contained in the *PLDT Group Risk Management Policy Manual*. This manual was reviewed and endorsed for approval by Napoleon L. Nazareno, President and CEO of the PLDT Group, and was also presented and approved initially by the PLDT Audit Committee and subsequently by the Board of Directors.

(c) Period covered by the review;

The review covered the period from January 2014 to December 2014.

(d) How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors' criteria for assessing its effectiveness; and

The Group Enterprise Risk Management Department (GRMD) reports to the PLDT Audit Committee on a quarterly basis and to the PLDT Board of Directors on a semi-annual basis on developments with regard to the Group's risk management activities. Discussion merits continuous evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management practices.

(e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

A review was conducted for the year 2014, as noted above. Such will likewise be reported in the 2014 *Audit Committee Report* for inclusion in PLDT's 2014 Annual Report.

2) Risk Policy

(a) Company

Give a general description of the company's risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure	Risk Management Policy	Objective
 Fast and Disruptive Pace of Technological Change 	Continuously monitor new technologies and review the organization's technological architecture.	To ensure the capability and capacity of the Group's technological architecture to support new products and services that address new markets and needs.
Evolving Business Model	Keep abreast of new technological business developments that may affect the business model employed by the PLDT	To manage risks related to new technologies, changes in consumer behavior and service substitution.

	Group.	
3. Organization and People	Take a proactive approach toward talent recruitment, talent retention, talent development and succession planning. Management policies also include the implementation of new performance metrics that will ensure a culture of innovation, collaboration and customer experience.	To manage manpower and talent requirements given the changing industry landscape.
Network Quality & Consistency and IT Systems	Continuously review the capacity and capability of the PLDT Group's network and IT systems quality and reliability.	To enhance the ability of our network to support customer usage, in particular in relation to the anticipated surge in demand for mobile data. In addition, this policy ensures the ability of the PLDT Group's IT systems to continuously support operations.
5. Hazards	Develop and implement business continuity plans. Management policies also acknowledge the important role of insurance in protecting the PLDT Group from losses resulting from hazardous events.	To ensure that the PLDT Group is protected from losses resulting from hazards such as fire, typhoon, flood, earthquake, etc.
6. Market Dynamics	Strengthen business analytics, adjust pricing strategies and enhance customer service.	To manage risks related to competition, margin erosion and market saturation.
7. Vendor-related Issues	Follow a multi-vendor strategy, as well as the implementation of a Vendor Accreditation Process by the Vendor Management Office.	To protect the PLDT Group from over-dependency on a particular vendor.
8. Regulatory and Political Developments	Closely manage the regulatory environment and continuously update compliance functions.	To manage risks related to regulatory developments.
9. Information Security and Privacy	Thoroughly implement regulations and guidelines related to information security and privacy.	To mitigate the Company's risk from breach of confidentiality, system viruses and information theft.

(b) Group⁴⁵

Give a general description of the Group's risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure	Risk Management Policy	Objective
Fast and Disruptive Pace of Technological Change	Same as the corresponding entry in the preceding table (Item F.2.a)	Same as the corresponding entry in the preceding table (Item F.2.a)
Evolving Business Model	- same as above-	- same as above-
Organization and People	- same as above-	- same as above-
 Network Quality & Consistency and IT Systems 	- same as above-	- same as above-
5. Hazards	- same as above-	- same as above-
6. Market Dynamics	- same as above-	- same as above-
7. Vendor-related Issues	- same as above-	- same as above-

-

 $^{^{\}rm 45}\,$ The PLDT Group adopted and implements a Group-wide approach to enterprise risk management.

 Regulatory and Political Developments 	- same as above-	- same as above-
Information Security and Privacy	- same as above-	- same as above-

(c) Minority Shareholders

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders' voting power.

There is a risk that the groups of shareholders which hold a significant number of the Company's outstanding shares with voting rights may not act in the interest of other shareholders or stakeholders of the Company. This risk is managed by the Company through compliance with laws and regulations that protect minority shareholders; oversight of the Board and Board Committees, whose independence is underscored by the involvement of Independent Directors; and the implementation of Company policies intended to protect the rights of minority shareholders, including the *PLDT CG Manual, Conflict of Interest Policy* and *RPT Guidelines*.

3) Control System Set Up

(a) Company

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the company:

Risk Exposure	Risk Assessment (Monitoring and Measurement Process)	Risk Management and Control (Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)
Strategic, Operational, Financial and Compliance Risks	The ERM process used by the Group Enterprise Risk Management Department is based on the ISO 31000 standard on risk management.	The ERM Framework adopted by the PLDT Group requires all its members, including PLDT, to select and implement a treatment strategy to address high-priority risks. Suitable risk treatment strategies and action plans are developed by operational units. The risk owner shall be responsible for coordinating and engaging the different teams involved in the implementation of the strategies and action plans. Appropriate resources are then made available to ensure these plans are implemented effectively. The proper implementation of treatment strategies are documented creating an audit trail for periodic audits by Internal Audit and/or external auditors to test compliance with agreed upon policies and strategies.

(b) Group⁴⁶

Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the company:

Risk Exposure	Risk Assessment (Monitoring and Measurement Process)	Risk Management and Control (Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)
Strategic, Operational, Financial and Compliance Risks	The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework adopted by the PLDT Group is based on the principles and framework promulgated by the Group Enterprise Risk Management Department based on the ISO 31000 standard on risk management.	The ERM Framework adopted by the PLDT Group requires all its members to select and implement a treatment strategy to address high-priority risks. Suitable risk treatment strategies and action plans are developed by operational units. The risk owner shall be responsible for coordinating and engaging the different teams involved in the implementation of the strategies and action plans. Appropriate resources are then made available to ensure these plans are implemented effectively. The proper implementation of treatment strategies are documented creating an audit trail for periodic

⁴⁶ See footnote 45.

-

audits by Internal Audit and/or external auditors to test compliance with agreed upon policies and strategies.

(c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:⁴⁷

Committee/Unit	Control Mechanism	Details of its Functions
Audit Committee (AC)	Oversight at the Board level on the Company's risk assessment and management policies and processes.	Assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for, among others, the Company's assessment and management of enterprise risks.
Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC)	Oversight at the Board level on the Company's development and implementation of corporate governance principles and policies.	Management of integrity risks and reputational risks related to unethical business and employee practices.
Group Enterprise Risk Management Department	Reports to the PLDT Audit Committee on a quarterly basis and to the PLDT Board of Directors on a semi-annual basis on developments with regard to the PLDT Group's risk management activities. Discussion merits continuous evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management practices.	Promulgates, encourages, and practices an integrated risk management framework for the organization, focusing on ensuring that critical risks are identified, evaluated, treated and monitored across all functions and units within the PLDT Group.
Internal Audit	Provides independent and objective assurance and consulting services based on approved risk-based audit plans.	Objective evaluation of the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.
Corporate Governance Office	Assists and reports to the Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC) regarding the development and implementation of corporate governance principles and policies, including the conduct of education & communication programs on corporate governance and implementation of the Whistleblowing Policy.	Assists and reports to the GNC on the management of integrity risks and reputational risks related to unethical business and employee practices.

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

1) Internal Control System

Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:

- (a) Explain how the internal control system is defined for the company;
- (b) A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and whether they consider them effective and adequate;
- (c) Period covered by the review;
- (d) How often internal controls are reviewed and the directors' criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system; and
- (e) Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

The Company defines Internal Control according to the COSO Framework (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission's "Internal Control–Integrated Framework") as updated in May 2013, as:

"a process, effected by the Company's Board of Directors, Management and other personnel, designed to provide

⁴⁷ The committee and bodies of corporate governance enumerated above functionally report to the Board or Board Committees and provide control mechanisms at the entity-level and as part of the governance and oversight at the Board level. Control mechanisms are implemented at the operational level by operating units such as the Human Resources Group, Finance Group, Supply Chain, Asset Protection and Management Group, Business Continuity Committee, Integrated Revenue Management, Information Asset Protection and Assurance, and Regulatory Affairs and Policies.

reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives relating to operations, reporting and compliance."

Our Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the Company's system of internal controls.

In addition, starting with our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2006 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (U.S. SEC), our Management is required to include annually its assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) in addition to the audited financial statements (FS) as at the end of the most recent fiscal year.

2) Internal Audit

(a) Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit function.

Role	Scope	Indicate whether In-house or Outsource Internal Audit Function	Name of Chief Internal Auditor/ Auditing Firm	Reporting process
Per PLDT Internal Audit (IA) Charter: The role of the Internal Audit Organization is to determine whether PLDT's structure of risk management, control, and governance processes, as designed and represented by Management, is adequate and functioning.	Per PLDT IA Charter: The mission of the PLDT Internal Audit Organization is to provide independent, objective assurance and consulting services designed to add value and improve PLDT's operations, and to help PLDT accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control, and governance processes.	In-house IA function	Jun R. Florencio, (Chief Audit Executive or CAE)	Functionally to the Audit Committee, and administratively to the President and CEO

(b) Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Auditor or the accounting /auditing firm or corporation to which the internal audit function is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?

In accordance with Section 2.1 of the Schedule of the *Audit Committee Charter*, the Audit Committee reviews the appointment, removal and replacement of the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer who shall functionally report directly to the Committee, and ensures that the internal audit organization shall be free from interference by outside parties in the performance of its work.

The Chief Audit Executive or the head of the internal audit organization, together with other officers, is appointed by the Board of Directors during its Organizational Meeting immediately following the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

(c) Discuss the internal auditor's reporting relationship with the audit committee. Does the internal auditor have direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties and personnel?

In accordance with Section 3.8 of the Schedule of the *Audit Committee Charter*, the Audit Committee meets to have separate sessions periodically, with Management, with the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and with the External Auditor as the Committee may deem necessary to surface issues warranting the attention of the Committee.

PLDT's Internal Audit Charter, in pertinent part, mandates that, to provide for the independence of the Internal Audit Organization, its personnel report to the Chief Audit Executive, who reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively to the President and Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Audit Executive and staff of the Internal Audit Organization are authorized to: (a) have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property, and personnel; (b) have full and free access to the Audit Committee; (c) allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine scopes of work, and apply the techniques required to accomplish audit objectives; and (d) obtain the necessary assistance of personnel in units within PLDT where they perform audits, as well as other specialized services from within or outside PLDT.

(d) Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those employed by the third-party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

Name of Audit Staff	Reason
1 auditor	Transfer/promotion to organizational unit outside of Internal Audit
2 auditors	Resignation

(e) Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit's progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination trends.

Progress Against Plans	The plans and objectives for the year are substantially completed at year end.
Issues ⁴⁸	Overall, there are no significant issues based on the results of the reviews.
Findings ⁴⁹	Overall, there are no significant findings based on the results of the reviews.
Examination Trends	Certain policies and procedures need updating due to various reorganizations and realignment of functions within the Company.

[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:

- 1. Preparation of an audit plan inclusive of a timeline and milestones;
- 2. Conduct of examination based on the plan;
- 3. Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;
- 4. Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;
- Determination of the pervasive issues and findings ("examination trends") based on single year result and/or year-to-year results;
- 6. Conduct of the foregoing procedures on a regular basis.]⁵⁰

(f) Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been implemented under the column "Implementation."

Policies & Procedures	Implementation
Audit Planning and Risk Assessment Methodology	Implemented
Audit Fieldwork and Working Paper Guidelines	Implemented
Audit Reporting Guidelines	Implemented
Audit Follow-up Guidelines	Implemented
Quality Assurance and Improvement Program (QAIP)	Implemented

(g) Mechanism and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial analysts, investment banks and rating agencies (example, restrictions on trading in the company's shares and imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an external auditor may provide to the company):

Auditors	Financial	Investment	Rating
(Internal and External)	Analysts	Banks	Agencies
Internal Auditors: The following procedures are being done by IA to ensure its staff's independence and objectivity: • The IA Division Heads check the assigned auditor's independence from the internal client, area or function to be audited through the "Division Head Review Checklist for	the Company's b that it deals transactions whic being deemed as	usiness transaction with. The polic th are or may haw Conflict of Intere	cts the integrity of ns with all entities by provides that we the potential of st transactions are of such a conflict of

⁴⁸ "Issues" are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations. (ACGR footnote)

50

⁴⁹ "Findings" are those with concrete basis under the company's policies and rules. (ACGR footnote)

 $^{^{\}rm 50}\,$ This is an explanatory statement contained in the SEC-ACGR Form.

Audit Staffing" portion of the Audit Plan.

- IA executives and staff accomplish and update, quarterly or as necessary, the Update Information and Declaration of Relatives form. This form indicates the employee's relative(s) in PLDT and its subsidiaries/affiliates, and is being used as references in assessing the auditor's independence.
- IA executives and staff are given copies of the IA Code of Ethics. IA executives and staff issue, on an annual basis, their respective signed copies of their Statement of Commitment to the Code of Ethics expressing renewal of their commitment to uphold its principles and undertake its rules of conduct.
- Annually, the Chief Audit Executive confirms to the Audit Committee the organizational independence of IA.

External Auditors:

The following are the Audit Committee's procedures for its evaluation of external auditor independence:

- The Audit Committee, at least annually, evaluates all existing relationships between the external auditor and PLDT, including audit partner relationships that might affect the external auditor's ability to act objectively. Such matters are discussed and clarified with the external auditor prior to appointment/re-appointment.
- The Audit Committee, at least annually, requests and evaluates:
 - a. Information from the external auditor regarding its policies and procedures for maintaining independence.
 - b. Confirmation in the engagement letter that the external auditor's performance of the work will not impair independence
- External auditor's required communications to the Audit Committee include a formal statement delineating all relationships between the external auditor and the Company (Statement as to Independence) as required by the prevailing applicable Independence Standards, among others.

interest transaction cannot be avoided, the conflicted person is required to submit a written disclosure of such conflict to a designated approving authority in order to ensure the transparency in such transaction. Secondly, the conflicted person is required to inhibit himself/herself from being involved at any stage of the transactional flow. Finally, the conflicted person is required to secure approvals from the designated approving authority in order that appropriate safeguards are put in place.

Moreover, the Company has established counterparty limits in order to manage and control credit risk of the financial institutions. These limits are reviewed periodically based on latest available financial data on our counterparties' credit ratings, capitalization, asset quality and liquidity. The Company ensures that its outstanding deposits with any counterparty shall not exceed the assigned limit. In addition, the Company also limits outstanding deposits with any counterparty to a maximum of 15% of total investible funds. With these measures in place, funds are well distributed, and no bank will have more than 15% share of the Company's investible funds at any time.

With respect to the financial analysts, including those from the rating agencies, they are covered by their own corporate governance rules that ensure their independence. In particular, analysts are not allowed to buy stocks that they cover.

(h) State the officers (preferably the Chairman and the CEO) who will have to attest to the company's full compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such confirmation must state that all directors, officers and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as mandated by the Code and that internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance.

Under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, Series of 2013, the submission of the certificate of compliance with the SEC CG Code has been discontinued. Prior to such discontinuance, or until 2012, PLDT certificate of compliance was signed by the Chief Governance Officer and President & CEO as required under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 3, Series of 2007. In case the SEC should revive or reinstate the requirement for listed companies to submit a certificate of compliance, such certificate will be attested to by the Chief Governance Officer, Chairman and President & CEO of PLDT, if so mandated by the SEC.

The PLDT CG Manual, which adopted substantially all of the provisions of the SEC CG Code, the PLDT Code of Ethics and other implementing policies which contain the respective duties of the directors, officers and employees have been disseminated to them and the Company implements communication and education programs on corporate governance to enhance understanding of such duties and foster a culture of good governance and ethical business practices and conduct.

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company's policy and activities relative to the following:

The Company's policy on its engagement with its various stakeholders is embodied in the *PLDT CG Manual* and the *PLDT Group's Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement*:

At the PLDT Group of Companies, Corporate Social Responsibility is grounded on the belief that an integral part of its business is the imperative to help improve the overall well-being of the Filipino people. To achieve this goal, we will address proactively the interests of our various stakeholders. We believe that as we seek to enhance value for our shareholders, we have a responsibility to:

- Provide quality products and services for our customers
- Develop our employees
- Work with our suppliers and business partners in an ethical and mutually beneficial manner
- Care for the environment
- Improve our communities.

We are conscious about the proper management of our finite and fragile environment and are taking tangible measures to lessen our carbon footprint. We will continue to invest in technical business solutions that both cut our costs and help save the environment.

By succeeding as a corporation, we create wider opportunities for employment, entrepreneurship and the greater well-being of all Filipinos. We believe that as we help raise the overall economic welfare of the Filipino, we expand the market of our products and services. The creed of our business strategy is the desire to change lives for the better.

The Company carries out this policy through specific implementing policies, guidelines and relevant programs and activities, as set forth below.

Activities Policy Customers' Our customers include residential customers, small and Enhanced customer experience medium enterprises (SMEs) and corporate customers welfare upgrading the competencies and skills of customer covering large companies, organizations service representatives; government. streamlining payment handling operations; and renovating business offices and payment We strive to satisfy our customers' expectations and centers. concerns regarding quality of service, pricing, New customer touch points were added application process, service provisioning process, repair through InfoTouch and an improved and restoration service and the billing process. We interactive voice response system (IVRS) to continuously engage with our customers through provide greater convenience various touch points and "Voice of the Customer customers. Programs", through which we are able to know and • Entered into partnership with Hong Kong understand our customers' communication products based PCCW Global to undertake a new and service needs, address their concerns and identify international fiber optic project, the Asiaareas where we could further enhance customer Africa-Europe 1 (AA-1) Cable System, which experience. will further increase PLDT's international bandwidth capacity and raise the resiliency of our overseas links as it enhances the quality of data and internet connections for our customers. • Pursuing with business partners the introduction of a fully managed service offering that is expected to ultimately redound to the benefit of patients resulting from quicker, higher-quality results and diagnosis by specialists. • Launched PLDT Fiber Link Expansion coinciding with Bohol province's 160th foundation day to help boost BPO and tourism industries in the quake-hit region. The launch of the P700-million DFON fiber optic link project aims to help accelerate Bohol's recovery from the 7.2 magnitude earthquake that hit the province in October 2013.

• Expanded PLDT's Time-Division Duplex-Long Term Evolution (TD-LTE) network to over 400 cell sites at the end of September 2014, providing high-speed internet services to more Filipino homes and further strengthening connections all over the country, especially those in remote towns and provinces.

• Developed and promoted such products as: PLDT Fibr, the most powerful residential broadband service to serve residential areas in different parts of the country; myBro, the leading wireless broadband for the home with innovative plans and bundles to suit the various needs of customers for wireless connectivity; Cloud UCaaS, an all-in-one, smarter Unified Communications Service; Telpad Dual Core, the world's first online landline; Negosyo Boost with Sun Fixed Load Plan, the first landline, data and mobile convergent group offering for SMEs with a complete suite of wireless solutions of voice, broadband and mobility; and Cloud Managed Security that aims to address the increasingly complex security requirements of SMEs conducting their operations online.

See Annex C.H.1: "Customer's Welfare" hereto attached for further details on the activities undertaken by the Company for its customers.

- Accreditation of suppliers conducted based on established standards.
- Competitive bidding implemented as the primary mode for supplier selection
- Adoption of relevant contract terms that confirm and guarantee supplier's agreement to abide with laws, rules and PLDT standards relating to industrial relations obligations, environment, health and safety, intellectual property rights and other applicable laws
- Communication of the Company's corporate governance policies to suppliers.
- Regulation of gifts, entertainment and other forms of gratuities given by suppliers to PLDT employees, officers, and vice versa.

Supplier/ contractor selection practice PLDT shall promote and implement standards of relationship with its suppliers that embody the principles of the *PLDT Code of Ethics* as well as the values of fairness, integrity, transparency and accountability.

As of December 2014, PLDT has around 1,000 accredited suppliers which serve the requirements of the PLDT Group, ranging from capital expenditures to operating expenditure items, as well as services. The Company aspires to maintain mutually beneficial relationships only with suppliers that uphold PLDT's core values of fairness, accountability, integrity, and transparency in their own businesses. Pursuant to this, the Company's Supplier/Contractor Relations Policy ("Supplier Relations Policy") provides for the general principles to be followed in vendor selection. Suppliers must be accredited before they may engage in business with PLDT. Among the criteria for accreditation are financial capability, technical capability, compliance with applicable laws, including those pertaining to industrial relations, environment, health and safety and intellectual property rights. The Company's purchases, as a general rule, are made on the basis of competitive bidding of accredited and qualified suppliers, in accordance with the aforementioned policy.

See

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Environmentally friendly valuechain The Company's policy on the environment is embodied in the *PLDT Group's Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Statement* which provides, in pertinent part, that we believe that as we seek to enhance value for our shareholders, we have a responsibility to, among others, care for the environment and improve our communities.

We are conscious about the proper management of our finite and fragile environment and are taking tangible measures to lessen our carbon footprint. We will continue to invest in technical business solutions that both cut our costs and help save the environment.

The Company implements this policy through various environmental and community programs. It also has an Environmental, Health and Safety Committee which ensures adherence of the Company's environmental programs to government regulatory requirements and the establishment and implementation of programs for the conservation of energy and water.

Community Interaction

PLDT operates in communities all over the Philippines, which include local residents, non-governmental organizations and other sectors in the communities, and is aware that these communities are concerned about PLDT's products and services and how they are affected by the operations of the Company. As a telecommunications provider, PLDT provides products and services that connect people and enable them to manage the constraints of time and place more efficiently. As a corporation, PLDT creates wider opportunities for employment, entrepreneurship and greater well-being. As a corporate citizen, PLDT engages with the communities, including the sectors directly affected by its operations, through CSR projects in education, health, community, environment, livelihood development, youth development and sports, and disaster relief operations.

- Balik Baterya Program in partnership with PBSP and Motolite which promotes recycling of used lead-acid batteries (ULAB) and proper disposal of hazardous waste from batteries.
- PLDT TELEpuno tree-planting
- PLDT's 66K M.V.P. (Movement for Volunteerism and Partnership) Trees environmental greening project
- Tree-planting project in Cebu Hillylands
- Mangrove planting in Iloilo
- Earth Day celebration's eLakad (ecological Lakad) fun walk
- River Clean-up and Mangrove Reforestation in Iloilo City
- "Shore it Up: Rescue, Restore, Revive" environmental awareness program
- The 1st Philippine International River Summit
- North Luzon Expressway Flowering Program
- Sacred Compact of Mutual Recognition with the *Higaunen-Talandig-Bukidnen* Tribe
- Partnership with the Philippine Eagle Foundation

See Annex C.H.1: "Environmentally Friendly Value Chain" hereto attached for more details on the Company's environmental programs and activities.

- 1. Education and Arts
 - PLDT Infoteach Outreach Program
 - Teachers Development Programs
 - eLearning Ville Program
 - Philippine Digital Literacy for Women
 - Balik Eskwela Project
 - Sining Buhay Para sa Kalikasan: a collage art-making project
 - Support for Kariton Klasrum Project
 - Donation of school/learning facilities, personal computers
 - Akapela Open
 - Gabay Guro (2G) Program: provides scholarship to aspiring teachers
- 2. Health
 - PLDT medical and dental missions
 - Bloodletting project
 - Feeding program
- 3. Livelihood
 - Donation of old telephone directories
 - PLDT TELEpuno livelihood component
- 4. Emergency Response
 - Relief operations, medical and dental missions, and feeding programs to calamity victims
- 5. Other Community Activities
 - Various outreach programs
 - Community/religious events sponsorships

See Annex C.H.1 "Community Interaction" hereto attached for more details on the Company's community interaction activities.

Anticorruption programmes

The Company's policy against corruption and bribery is set forth in the *PLDT Code of Ethics*, and further reinforced in specific policies, such as the *Gifts Policy*,

- 1. Continuing Corporate Governance Education and Communication
 - Training and enhancement sessions on

and procedures

Supplier Relations Policy and Corporate Governance Guidelines for Suppliers, which likewise prohibit bribery involving third parties in business dealings with the Company. These policies are implemented through anticorruption programs and measures such as internal controls, training and communication, the whistle blowing system, third party due diligence, and support for and participation in multisectoral anti-corruption initiatives to eliminate graft and corruption.

anti-bribery and anti-corruption

Communication initiatives: advisories and updates on corporate governance, newsletters, newsbriefs, posters, videos and other publications

corporate governance, which includes

- 2. Compliance and Controls Monitoring
 - PLDT's SOX 404 internal control systems; accounting and auditing controls
 - Vendor accreditation and performance review
 - Anti-bribery and corporate governance provisions in procurement contracts
 - Guidelines on handling of donations

3. Enforcement

- Implementation of the whistleblowing system
- Penalty of dismissal for bribery

Safeguarding creditors' rights

The Company's policy towards creditors and other business partners and the safeguarding of creditors' rights are embodied in the PLDT Code of Ethics and the General Practice on Stakeholder Engagement. The Company shall observe and maintain its core business principles of accountability, integrity, fairness, and transparency in its relationships with its creditors and other business partners.

See: http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/ourstakeholders

- Periodic submission to creditors of Certified Financial Statements, No Default Certification and Certification on Compliance with Financial **Ratio Limits**
- Full financial disclosures in SEC Forms 17-A & 17-Q (Annual and Quarterly Reports)
- Disclosure of material information, such as earning results and risk exposures relating to loan covenants
- Managing the debt profile with debt maturities well spread out to comply with financial ratios and other loan covenants PLDT's credit ratings with Fitch, Moody's and Standard and Poor's remain at investment grade as of September 2014. In 2012, PLDT became the first Philippine corporation accorded investment grade status with the upgrade of its foreign and local credit ratings by the said three credit rating agencies.

Does the company have a separate corporate responsibility (CR) report/section or sustainability report/section?

Yes, as may be viewed from the Company's latest posted 2013 Annual Report.

PLDT has incorporated its corporate social responsibility (CSR) report in its Annual Report while the PLDT-Smart Foundation (PSF) publishes its own annual report. PSF is one of the vehicles through which PLDT carries out its CSR strategy and activities.

See PLDT Group CSR Report in 2013 Annual Report, pp. 24-28.

Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

(a) What are the company's policy for its employees' safety, health, and welfare?

Our employees have a broad range of concerns which includes working conditions, skills training, career opportunities, health and safety, and work-life balance.

The Company ensures that its employees are provided relevant training programs suited to their needs. Dedicated staff and facilities are made available for the training and development programs of the Company.

The Company organizes programs that support the well-being of employees, allows them to participate in PLDT's CSR activities and obtains their feedback on company concerns. In accordance with the PLDT Personnel Manual, the Company provides medical benefits for our employees, which include hospitalization, doctor consultation, medicines and laboratory tests. The Company monitors and submits reports on employee health and safety in accordance with applicable regulations.

(b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

For safety:

The Environmental, Health and Safety (EHS) programs being implemented by the Company resulted to an accumulation of 25,428,528 safe man-hours without lost time accidents in 2014.

For health and welfare:

The Company shoulders the medical cost for employees who become ill, inclusive of medicines, hospital confinements and post-operative rehabilitation. Part of the preventive medical approach is to subject employees to Annual Physical Examination (96.02% compliance rate as of December 2014). Continuous medical education fora are being conducted monthly to address common health issues such as diabetes, hypertension, and cardio-pulmonary disease (63 conducted in 2014).

The Company ensures that work-life balance is achieved by promoting sports and recreation programs with 55 various events (including voice, theater and dance workshops, song writing, basketball, bowling, volleyball, badminton, track and field, Frisbee, table tennis, football, family fun day, wellness program, etc.) that covered and engaged about 85% of employees in 2014. Likewise, the Company aims to empower its employees by providing them livelihood workshops and seminars (baking, food processing, reflexology, etc.) to engage them in productive activities that have potential for family income augmentation.

We file with the Bureau of Working Conditions of the Department of Labor and Employment the following: (a) Annual Medical Report; (b) Annual Work Accident/Illness Exposure Data Report; and (c) Report on Health and Safety Organization. These reports contain data such as preventive/emergency occupational health services, summary report of diseases, report of immunization program, health education and counseling services, hazards in the workplace, work-related injuries (disabling and non-disabling), and occupational safety and health programs undertaken by the Company.

(c) State the company's training and development programmes for its employees. Show the data.

PLDT has an established Training and Development program for all its employees covering behavioral, business skills, telecoms and IP technology, business systems as well as supervisory and leadership training. Annually, it trains its employees on various courses covering the different course categories earlier mentioned. It operates a Telecommunications Training and Education Center (TelTEC) at its Innolab Building in Mandaluyong City where most of the trainings are delivered, and also conducts trainings in its regional offices. TelTEC houses a good number of standard training rooms and technical training laboratories, a well-equipped corporate library, as well as dorm facilities that are being used by employees for training and development activities.

In 2014, PLDT's Training Development and Career Center produced 16,457 classroom training graduates and 407 computer-based training graduates. Total employees trained numbered 6,089 (86% of total employee population). Training is delivered by around 34 full time trainors and more than 100 training resource persons coming from line, as well as training service providers from outside PLDT.

PLDT provides continuous training for its Board and Management. The highlight of this continuing education and communication program is the annual enhancement session which is conducted by internationally-known experts who share their experience, expertise and insights to PLDT's Board and Management. PLDT has organized and conducted nine (9) annual enhancement sessions for the Board since 2007. In 2014, five (5) experts in the field of corporate governance and ethics were invited to address PLDT's Board, senior management and middle management.

A session for PLDT Directors entitled *Briefing on Corporate Governance Requirements under US Laws and Regulations and Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977* was held on April 1, 2014 where Mr. Garth W. Bray, Partner of the Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, was the resource speaker. Discussed at the session were the corporate governance requirements mandated in U.S. laws and regulations, such as Board Independence, Board Committees membership and functions, the adoption of a Code of Ethics, exemptions granted to foreign-private issuers, disclosure controls and procedures, insider trading, and whistleblowing procedures and processes. The speaker also talked about the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (FCPA) and its anti-bribery provisions and its accounting and transparency requirements, otherwise known as its books & records and internal control provisions. He also touched on recent trends and developments of enforcement action taken by U.S. authorities regarding the FCPA.

An enhancement session for PLDT Directors was held on December 4, 2014, the invited speakers of which were SEC Chairperson Teresita Herbosa and Mr. Graham Winter, Partner and Ms. Kelly Austin, Partner of the Hong Kong Office of global firm Gibson Dunn and Crutcher. Chairperson Herbosa talked about *What to Expect from the SEC*. Mr. Winter and Ms. Austin, who both have extensive experience in complex corporate transactions, including cross-border M&A transactions, privatizations, capital markets transactions, joint ventures, private equity transactions and international corporate finance transactions, discussed *Corporate Governance Trends and Practices in Advanced Economies*.

For our senior and middle management, a separate enhancement session was held December 1, 2014. Mr. Chris Lowney, current chairman of the Catholic Health Initiatives, former Managing Director of J.P. Morgan Chase and Co. in New York, Tokyo, Singapore and London, and author of the books *Heroic Leadership* and, more recently, *Pope Francis: Why He Leads the Way He Leads*, discussed his thoughts on 21st Century Leadership and Governance: Thriving Amid Change, Complexity, and Lots of Choices.

(d) State the company's reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyond short-term financial measures.

The PLDT Group's compensation philosophy establishes the guiding principles for the compensation plan of each company under the PLDT Group, and has the following major principles and objectives:

- The primary aim is to attract and retain quality employees.
- Pay for Position: incorporates pay for the importance of the position with respect to the internal organization and considers the external market covering the pay practices of competitors and other comparator companies.
- Pay for Performance:
 - incorporates pay for performance focusing on Company, team, and individual performance to help achieve business objectives;
 - Pay for Performance is to be given more weight and importance than other pay components;
 - provides for long term incentives through stock options to promote an ownership mindset. Long-term
 incentives shall include home mortgage plans, shadow (phantom) stock plans and other forms of Golden
 Handcuffs for better performers; and
 - provides for short term incentives through variable pay to reward individual and team performance that
 contribute to the achievement of corporate goals and objectives. Short-term incentives shall include sales
 incentives and non-cash recognition awards.
- Pay for Person: incorporates pay for competencies and skills of the individual that are valuable to the Company.
- The compensation philosophy is communicated to all employees.

4) What are the company's procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning illegal (including corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

Under the relevant Company's policies, employees may submit their complaints, including concerns, to the immediate Executive Head, the Human Resources Group (HR) or through the Company's whistleblowing system.

A. Immediate Executive Head

Upon receipt of complaint, the Executive Head shall issue a Notice To Explain (NTE) to the concerned employee/s. The Executive Head evaluates the employee's explanation and submits his recommendation to HR-Industry/Labor Relations. HR-Industry/Labor Relations validates the recommendation submitted to ensure that the administrative sanction to be applied is justified. For sanctions of less than 30 calendar days suspension or reprimand/final warning, HR-Industry/Labor Relations notifies the Executive Head to implement the recommendation. For sanctions of more than 30 days suspension or dismissal, HR-Industry/Labor Relations endorses the case to the Committee on Employee Discipline (CED). The CED deliberates and resolves the case. HR-Industry/Labor Relations thereafter notifies the Executive Head to implement the CED's decision and monitors compliance.

B. Human Resources Group

Upon receipt of complaint, HR-Industry/Labor Relations refers the matter to the appropriate investigating unit. The report on the investigation results is forwarded to the concerned Executive Head. The Executive Head handles the said report in the same manner as in the procedure for handling complaints submitted directly to him by employees, as described above.

C. Whistleblowing System

Upon receipt of a complaint through the whistleblowing reporting system, the Corporate Governance Office (CGO) conducts a preliminary evaluation of the complaint. Should the CGO find the complaint sufficient in form and substance, it shall refer the complaint to the appropriate investigating unit for handling and further investigation. The report on the investigation results is submitted to the CGO for monitoring and endorsement to the immediate Executive Head, or other appropriate authority, for the conduct of the due process procedures and the imposition of the appropriate sanction as may be warranted, in accordance with the abovementioned Company procedures. The CGO monitors the developments in the cases reported and ensures proper reporting to the Audit Committee and the Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC).

For complaints about violations of the *PLDT CG Manual*, the GNC, after proper investigation, notice and hearing, determines and recommends to the Chairman of the Board, the appropriate penalty for any such violation, subject to further review and approval by the Board. The Audit Committee is mandated to obtain and consider any reports and responses thereto submitted by the External Auditor as required in the applicable Auditing Standards, including reports related to detection of fraud and illegal acts, whether or not material, that involve Management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal controls, and that cause a material misstatement of the financial statements.

In all processes and activities related to the handling of a report, complaint or disclosure under the *Whistleblowing Policy*, whether or not submitted anonymously, the identities of the whistleblower and witnesses are kept strictly confidential. Retaliation against a whistleblower or any witness to a case is prohibited and shall be dealt with by the Company.

I. DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

1) Ownership Structure

(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more

Class of Shares: COMMON

Shareholder	Number of Shares	Percent (to Class)	Beneficial Owner
Philippine Telecommunications Investment Corporation ⁵¹	26,034,263 ⁵²	12.05	Same as record owner
Metro Pacific Resources, Inc. 53	21,556,676 ⁵³	9.98	Same as record owner
NTT Communications Corporation ⁵⁴	12,633,487	5.85	(54)
NTT DoCoMo, Inc. ⁵⁵	22,796,902 ⁵⁶	10.55	(55)
JG Summit Group ⁵⁷	17,305,625	8.01	(57)
PCD Nominee Corporation ⁵⁸	79,173,984	36.65	(58)
J.P. Morgan Hong Kong Nominees Limited ⁵⁹	41,462,667	19.19	(59)

Based on a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of Philippine Telecommunications Investment Corporation, or PTIC, the Chairman of the Board of PTIC, Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan, has the continuing authority to represent PTIC at any and all meetings of the stockholders of a corporation in which PTIC owns of record or beneficially any shares of stock or other voting security, and to sign and deliver, in favor of any person he may deem fit, a proxy or other power of attorney, with full power of delegation and substitution, authorizing his designated proxy or attorney-in-fact to vote any and all shares of stock and other voting securities owned of record or beneficially by PTIC at any and all meetings of the stockholders of the corporation issuing such shares of stock or voting securities.

This account also includes 17, 305, 625 shares beneficially owned by JG Summit Group. Please refer to footnote 58.

Based on available information, none of the owners of the PLDT common shares registered under PCD, owned more than 5% of PLDT's outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2014, except for the JG Summit Group as provided above, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd-Clients' Acct and Deutsche Bank Manila-Clients A/C, which owned approximately 8.93% and 8.89%, respectively of PLDT outstanding common stock as of such date. PLDT has no knowledge if any beneficial owner of the shares under The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd-Clients' Acct and Deutsche Bank Manila-Clients A/C, owned more than 5% of PLDT's outstanding common stock as of such date.

⁵⁹ J. P. Morgan Hong Kong Nominees Limited (formerly J. P. Morgan Asset Holdings (HK) Limited) holds shares as nominee of JP Morgan Chase Bank, successor depository under the Common Stock Deposit Agreement, dated October 14, 1994, as amended on February 10, 2003, between JP Morgan Chase Bank and the holders of ADRs, evidencing ADSs, representing shares of common stock of PLDT (the "Deposit Agreement"). Under the Deposit Agreement, if the depositary does not receive voting instructions form a holder of ADRs, such holder will be deemed to have instructed the depositary to provide a discretionary proxy to a person designated by PLDT for the purpose of exercising the voting rights pertaining to the shares of common stock underlying ADS of such holder of ADRs, except that no discretionary proxy will be given with respect to any matter as to which substantial opposition exists or which materially and adversely affects the rights of the holders of such ADRs.

⁵² In addition to the 26,034,263 and 21,556,676 common shares owned of record respectively by PTIC and Metro Pacific Resources, Inc., or MPRI, both of which are Philippine affiliates of First Pacific Company Limited, or First Pacific, 7,653,703 ADS, whose underlying common shares represent approximately 3.54% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT, are owned by a non-Philippine wholly-owned subsidiary of First Pacific. The common shares and the underlying common shares of the ADS owned by PTIC, MPRI and the non-Philippine wholly-owned subsidiary of First Pacific (referred to herein as "First Pacific Group") collectively represents 25.57% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as of the Record Date.

⁵³ Based on a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of MPRI, Mr. Manuel V. Pangilinan has been appointed as proxy or duly authorized representative of MPRI to represent and vote the PLDT shares of common stock of MPRI in the Annual Meeting.

⁵⁴ Based on publicly available information, NTT Communications Corporation, or NTT Communications, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nippon Telegraph and Telephone Corporation, or NTT. Based on a certification signed by a duly authorized officer of NTT Communications, Mr. Jun Sawada is authorized to execute for and on behalf of NTT Communications, endorsements, transfers and other matters relating to the PLDT shares of common stock held by NTT Communications.

⁵⁵ Based on publicly available information, NTT DoCoMo, Inc., or NTT DoCoMo, is a majority-owned and publicly traded subsidiary of NTT. Based on a certification signed by a duly authorized officer of NTT DoCoMo, Mr. Hajime Kii or Mr. Mutsuo Yamamoto is authorized to execute for and on behalf of NTT DoCoMo, endorsements, transfers and other matters relating to the PLDT shares of common stock held by NTT DoCoMo.

⁵⁶ In addition to the 22,796,902 common shares owned on record by NTT DoCoMo, NTT DoCoMo also owns 8,533,253 ADSs whose underlying common shares represent approximately 3.95% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT. The common shares and the underlying common shares of the ADS owned by NTT DoCoMo collectively represents 14.50% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as of the Record Date.

⁵⁷ The total shareholdings of JG Summit Group is 17,305,625, of which 17,208,753 shares are beneficially owned by JG Summit Holdings, Inc. (JGS), 86,723 shares are beneficially owned by Express Holdings, Inc., 10,148 shares are beneficially owned by Ms. Elizabeth Yu Gokongwei and 1 share is beneficially owned by Mr. James L. Go, all held on record by PCD Nominee Corporation, collectively representing 8.01% of the outstanding common stock of PLDT as of the Record Date. Based on a certification signed by a duly authorized officer of JGS, under the By-Laws of JGS, each of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of JGS (Mr. James L. Go) and President and Chief Operating Officer of JGS (Mr. Lance Y. Gokongwei) is authorized to vote the 17,208,753 common shares of PLDT owned by JGS and to appoint and/or sign proxies in behalf of JGS in connection with the Annual Meeting.

PCD Nominee Corporation, PCD, is the registered owner of shares held by participants in the Philippine Depository and Trust Co., or PDTC, a private company organized to implement an automated book entry system of handling securities transactions in the Philippines. Under the PDTC procedures, when an issuer of a PDTC-eligible issue will hold a stockholders' meeting, the PDTC will execute a pro-forma proxy in favor of its participants for the total number of shares in their respective principal securities account as well as for the total number of shares in their client securities account. For the shares held in the principal securities account, the participant concerned is appointed as proxy, with full voting rights and powers as registered owner of such shares. For shares held in the client securities account, the participant concerned is appointed as proxy, with the obligation to constitute a subproxy in favor of its clients with full voting and other rights for the number of shares beneficially owned by such clients.

Class of Shares: VOTING PREFERRED

Shareholder	Number of Shares	Percent	Beneficial Owner
BTF Holdings, Inc. ⁶⁰	150,000,000	100	Same as record owner

Class of Shares: NON-VOTING SERIAL PREFERRED (SERIES IV CUMULATIVE NON-CONVERTIBLE)

Shareholder	Number of Shares	Percent	Beneficial Owner
RCBC Trust Account No. 75044-2	300,000,000	100	PLDT Beneficial Trust Fund

Name of Senior Management	Number of	Number of	% of Capital Stock	
	Direct Shares (Common)	Indirect shares / Through (name of record owner)	% of Common Capital Stock	% of Total Outstanding Capital Stock
Napoleon L. Nazareno	6,427	13,872/PCD Nominee Corp.	0.009395	0.003048
Ernesto R. Alberto				
Rene G. Bañez	1		0.000000	0.000000
Alejandro O. Caeg		200/PCD Nominee Corp.	0.000093	0.000030
Anabelle L. Chua	11,258	770/PCD Nominee Corp.	0.005567	0.001806
Ray C. Espinosa	13,043	7,700/PCD Nominee Corp.	0.009601	0.003114
Jun R. Florencio	15	500/PCD Nominee Corp	0.000238	0.000077
Menardo G. Jimenez, Jr.	22		0.000010	0.000003
Claro Carmelo P. Ramirez ⁶¹	11,500		0.005323	0.001727
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	39	660/PCD Nominee Corp.	0.000324	0.000105
TOTAL	42,305	23,702	0.030551	0.009910

2) Does the Annual Report disclose the following: Yes.

Responses below are in reference to PLDT's Annual Reports:

17-A Annual Report for 2014

20-F Annual Report for 2014

2013 Annual Report (Main Section and Financial Section)

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please indicate the reason for the non-disclosure.

Key risks	Yes ⁶²
Corporate objectives	Yes ⁶³
Financial performance indicators	Yes ⁶⁴
Non-financial performance indicators	Yes ⁶⁵
Dividend policy	Yes ⁶⁶

This account also includes 8,533,253 shares of PLDT common stock underlying ADS beneficially owned by NTT DoCoMo and 7,653,703 shares of PLDT common stock underlying ADS beneficially owned by a non-Philippine wholly-owned subsidiary of First Pacific. Please refer to footnotes 56 and 55.

⁶⁰ A wholly-owned company of the Board of Trustees for the Account of the Beneficial Trust Fund Created Pursuant to the Benefit Plan of PLDT Co., or PLDT BTF. Based on a resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of BTF Holdings, Inc., the Chairman of the Board of PLDT has been appointed as proxy or duly authorized representative of BTF Holdings, Inc. to represent and vote the PLDT shares of voting preferred stock of BTF Holdings, Inc in the Annual Meeting.

⁶¹ Separated from service effective December 31, 2014.

⁶² See 17-A Annual Report, Item 6 – Risks and Uncertainties.

 $^{^{63}}$ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 1 – Description of Business-Strategy.

⁶⁴ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 6 – Selected Financial Data and Key Performance Indicators (Financial).

⁶⁵ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 6 – Selected Financial Data and Key Performance Indicators (Non-Financial) and Item 1 – Description of Business.

⁶⁶ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 5 - Dividends.

Details of whistle-blowing policy	Yes ⁶⁷
Biographical details (at least age, qualifications, date of first appointment, relevant experience, and any other directorships of listed companies) of directors/commissioners	Yes ⁶⁸
Training and/or continuing education programme attended by each director/ commissioner	Yes ⁶⁹
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held during the year	Yes ⁷⁰
Attendance details of each director/ commissioner in respect of meetings held	Yes ⁷¹
Details of remuneration of the CEO and each member of the board of directors/commissioners	Yes ⁷²

3) External Auditor's fee

Name of auditor	Audit Fee	Non-audit Fee
SGV & Co. ⁷³	Php 42M	Php 21M

4) Medium of Communication

List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

For Shareholders/Investing Public:

- Disclosure and filings: submissions to the SEC, United States Securities and Exchange Commission, PSE and New York Stock Exchange of disclosures of material events and transactions and of financial reports in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations
- Annual report: annual compilation primarily of the Company's financial and operating results, industry outlook, corporate and CSR milestones, corporate governance report, enterprise risk management, board of directors and key officers which are mailed to all stockholders, posted on the Company website, and filed with the PSE and NYSE, which in turn post it on their respective websites
- PLDT Company website
- Email: Investor Relations mailing list and mailbox
- Social Media: Company announcements of significant late-breaking news and features using Facebook, Twitter and Instagram
- Stockholders' Meeting: annual gathering of the Company's stockholders and stakeholders during which the Board of Directors reports on the year's financial and operating results and industry outlook
- Investors/Analyst Briefings: presentations at hotel for Half and Full Year Financial and Operating Results; conference calls for Quarterly Financial and Operating Results; announcement of important transactions; individual scheduled calls with Management
- One-on-one meetings with the investing community (investors, buy side and sell side analysts, and credit ratings agency analysts) whether via company visits, participation in investor conferences, or non-deal roadshows
- Press Conferences/Briefings: quarterly reports of the Company's financial and operating results to the telco press

For Employees:

- ACC:ESS magazine: the Company's official monthly publication featuring various significant corporate news, cuttingedge products and services as well as Company events, awards and recognitions
- ACC:ESS Lite: an online version of ACC:ESS magazine featuring late-breaking news, major Company events and awards and undertakings
- PLDT Media E-Mail Blasts: urgent corporate announcements for employees sent via e-mail
- Daily News Clippings: daily round-up of Company news and events and significant breakthroughs and industry news

5) Date of release of audited financial report:

March 3, 2015 (2014 Audited Financial Statements)

⁶⁷ See 20-F Annual Report, Item 16B and pp.23-24 of this report.

⁶⁸ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 9 – Directors and Officers.

⁶⁹ See 20-F Annual Report, Item 16B – Education and Enhancements; 2013 Annual Report, pp. 42-43; and pp. 17-21 of this report.

 $^{^{70}}$ See 2013 Annual Report, Corporate Governance Report – Board Attendance; and p. 29 of this report .

 $^{^{71}}$ See 2013 Annual Report, Corporate Governance Report – Board Attendance; and p. 29 of this report .

⁷² See 17-A Annual Report, Item 10 – Executive Compensation.

⁷³ See 17-A Annual Report, Item 8 – Information on Independent Auditors.

6) Company Website

Does the company have a website disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

Business operations	Yes ⁷⁴
Financial statements/reports (current and prior years)	Yes ⁷⁵
Materials provided in briefings to analysts and media	Yes ⁷⁶
Shareholding structure	Yes ⁷⁷
Group corporate structure	Yes ⁷⁸
Downloadable annual report	Yes ⁷⁹
Notice of AGM and/or EGM	Yes ⁸⁰
Company's constitution (company's by-laws, memorandum and articles of association)	Yes ⁸¹

7) Disclosure of RPT

When RPTs are involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

PLDT's *Guidelines on the Proper Handling of Related Party Transactions* (the "*RPT Guidelines*")⁸² provides the process of review, approval and disclosure of the Company's RPTs. Guided by *PAS 24*, RPTs are reviewed and approved by appropriate authorities designated in the *RPT Guidelines*. The review determines whether an RPT meets the following standards: (1) the RPT is on arm's length terms; and (2) the RPT is in the best interest of PLDT and its stakeholders, as a whole, considering the relevant circumstances. Material RPTs are reviewed by the Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of Independent Directors, and approved by the Board. The Board of Directors may require that an RPT it has approved be submitted to the stockholders for consideration and ratification.

The Head of Financial Reporting and Controllership Sector, in coordination with the Company's Disclosure Committee, shall be responsible for the disclosure of RPTs in the relevant financial reports of the Company as required under *PAS 24* and other applicable disclosure requirements.

Summary of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2014 that had been entered into with related parties:

RPT	Relationship	Nature	Value (in Million Php)
Indirect investment in joint ventures through PCEV: MERALCO	Joint Ventures	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities; Pole rental	412
Meralco Industrial Engineering Services Corporation (MIESCOR)	Subsidiary of Meralco	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	-
Indirect investment in associate through ACeS Philippines: AIL	Associate	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	50
Asia Link B.V. (ALBV)	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accounts Payable	297
NTT World Engineering Marine Corporation	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	29
NTT Communications	Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	19

⁷⁴ See http://pldt.com/about-us/pldt's-business

⁷⁵ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations/press-releases-and-disclosures/financial-results and http://pldt.com/investor-relations/financial-results

⁷⁶ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations and http://pldt.com/investor-relations/presentations

⁷⁷ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/shareholding-structure

⁷⁸ See http://pldt.com/about-us/pldt's-business

⁷⁹ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations/annual-reports

⁸⁰ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/latest-shareholders'-news

⁸¹ See http://pldt.com/investor-relations

⁸² See http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/our-stakeholders

NTT Worldwide Telecommunications Corporation	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	10
NTT DOCOMO	Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	9
JGSHI and Subsidiaries	Major Stockholder of PLDT	Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities	3
Malayan Insurance Co., Inc.	Common Director	Accrued expenses and other current liabilities	5
Various	Various	Trade and other receivables	2,490

Summary of transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014 that had been entered into with related parties:

RPT	Relationship	Nature	Value (in Million Php)
Indirect investment in joint ventures through PCEV:			
MERALCO	Joint Ventures	Repairs and maintenance Rent	2,929 298
MIESCOR	Subsidiary of Meralco	Repairs and maintenance Construction in progress	81 83
Republic Surety and Insurance Co., Inc. or RSIC	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Insurance and security services	3
Indirect investment in associate through ACeS Philippines: AIL	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Cost of sales	25
JGSHI and Subsidiaries	Major Stockholder of	Rent	93
	PLDT	Repairs and maintenance	46
		Communication, training, travel	5
		Selling and Promotions Professional and other	-
		contracted services	-
ALBV	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Professional and other contracted services	222
Malayan Insurance Co., Inc.	Common Director	Insurance and security services	206
NTT DOCOMO	Major Stockholder of PLDT	Professional and other contracted services	67
NTT World Engineering Marine Corporation	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Repairs and maintenance	26
NTT Worldwide Telecommunications Corporation	Associate of Major Stockholder of PLDT	Selling and promotions	15
NTT Communications	Major Stockholder of PLDT	Professional and other contracted services	75
		Rent	12
Various	Various	Revenues	761

J. RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS

1) Right to participate effectively and vote in Annual/Special Stockholders' Meetings

(a) Quorum

Give details on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting as set forth in its By-laws.

Quorum Required

Majority of the shares issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at the annual/special meeting, except as otherwise provided by law. (*By-Laws*, Section 1, Article III)

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

System Used	"One share, One vote" (By-Laws, Section 3, Article III)	
Description	Each stockholder is entitled to one vote for each share of stock held by him. For election of directors, stockholders elect directors individually and cumulative voting applies. i.e., a stockholder may vote his shares for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or distribute such votes on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall think fit. (<i>By-Laws</i> , Section 4, Article III)	

(c) Stockholders' Rights

List any Stockholders' Rights concerning Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting that differ from those laid down in the Corporation Code.

	Stockholders' Rights under The Corporation Code	Stockholders' Rights <u>not</u> in The Corporation Code
Rig	hts Concerning Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting:	
1.	To be furnished with written notice of annual meetings at least two weeks prior to an annual meeting or one week prior to a special meeting, which notice must state the time and place of the meeting	The Company sends to its stockholders notice of annual meeting or special meeting at least 15 business days prior to the meeting. The notice contains not only the time and place thereof but also the agenda for the meeting, which includes each matter to be voted upon by the stockholders. In addition to the notice and agenda, the Company provides each stockholder with the Information Statement and Annual Report required under <i>SRC</i> Rule 20. These materials are also posted on PLDT's website at least 21 days prior to the meeting as soon as they have been cleared by the SEC.
2.	To attend and vote in person or by proxy at stockholders meeting	
3.	To elect and remove directors	
4.	To request for voting by ballot for the purpose of electing directors	• The Company implements voting by poll by means of written voting instructions which are validated, tabulated and cast (as opposed to by show of hands) in stockholders' meeting.
		• The voting results on matters presented for stockholders' approval at the meeting are posted on the Company website immediately after the meeting.
5.	To receive at the annual meeting a financial report of the operations of the corporation for the preceding year, which shall include financial statements, duly signed or certified by an independent certified public accountant	• The Company sends to its stockholders its Annual Report containing the audited financial statements at least 15 business days prior to the annual meeting. The highlights of the financial report are included in the President's Report rendered during the meeting.

6.	To approve certain corporate acts	
7.	To petition for the calling of meeting of stockholders when for any cause there is no person authorized to call a meeting	
Oth	er Rights	
8.	To issuance of certificate of stock or other evidence of stock ownership and be registered as shareholder	
9.	To receive dividends as may be declared by the board of directors out of unrestricted retained earnings	
10.	To participate in the distribution of corporate assets upon dissolution	
11.	To be furnished with the Company's most recent financial statements, upon written request.	 Without need for any request, the Company sends to all its stockholders its financial statements, at least 15 business days prior to its annual meeting.
12.	To inspect records of business transactions and minutes of any meeting, subject to refusal under the circumstances stated in Section 74 of the <i>Corporation Code</i> (such as when a stockholder is not acting in good faith or for a legitimate purpose).	
13.	Preemptive right or right to subscribe to all issues or disposition of shares any class in proportion to their shareholdings, unless such right is denied in the Articles of Incorporation or an amendment thereto	
14.	Appraisal right or the right of a dissenting stockholder to demand for the fair value of his shares in any of those instances provided in Section 81 of the <i>Corporation Code</i> .	

Dividends

The Company pays final and interim cash dividends on common shares in such amount declared by the Board, and fixed cash dividends on preferred shares in such amount or rate and frequency provided in the terms and features of such preferred shares. PLDT's current dividend policy is to pay out 75%⁸³ of its core earnings per share taking into consideration the interest of its shareholders as well as its working capital, capital expenditures and debt servicing requirements. The retention of earnings may be necessary to meet the funding requirements of its business expansion and development programs. However, in the event no investment opportunities arise, it may consider the option of returning additional cash to our shareholders in the form of special dividends up to the 25% balance of our core earnings or share buybacks. It was able to declare dividend payouts of approximately 100% of its core earnings for the seven consecutive years from 2007 to 2013. The accumulated equity in the net earnings of our subsidiaries, which form part of our retained earnings, is not available for distribution unless realized in the form of dividends from such subsidiaries. Dividends are generally paid in Philippine pesos. In the case of shareholders residing outside the Philippines, PLDT's transfer agent in Manila, Philippines, which acts as the dividend-disbursing agent, converts the Philippine peso dividends into U.S. dollars at the prevailing exchange rates and remits the dollar dividends abroad, net of any applicable withholding tax.

Common Stock

Class	Declaration Date	Record Date	Payment Date
Common (Regular dividend)	Mar 4, 2014	Mar 18, 2014	Apr 16, 2014
Common (Special dividend)	Mar 4, 2014	Mar 18, 2014	Apr 16, 2014
Common (Regular dividend)	Aug 5, 2014	Aug 28, 2014	Sep 26, 2014

Voting Preferred Stock

Declaration Date	Record Date	Payment Date
Mar 4, 2014	Mar 20, 2014	Apr 15, 2014

⁸³ As approved by the Board of Directors on August 5, 2014.

Jun 10, 2014	Jun 27, 2014	Jul 15, 2014
Sep 30, 2014	Oct 15, 2014	Oct 15, 2014
Dec. 2, 2014	Dec 19, 2014	Jan 15, 2015

10% Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock

SIP Series	Declaration Date	Record Date	Payment Date
Series HH issued in 2008 (final dividend)	Apr 1, 2014	Feb 14, 2014	May 16, 2014
Series II	Apr 1, 2014	April 30, 2014	May 30, 2014

Series IV Cumulative Non-Convertible Preferred Stock

Declaration Date	Record Date	Payment Date
Jan 28, 2014	Feb 27, 2014	Mar 15, 2014
May 6, 2014	May 27, 2014	Jun 15, 2014
Aug 5, 2014	Aug 20, 2014	Sep 15, 2014
Nov 4, 2014	Nov 20, 2014	Dec 15, 2014

(d) Stockholders' Participation

1-7. State, if any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees. Include in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the stockholders as well as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockholders' meetings.

Measures Adopted	Communication Procedure
Posting and sending out of comprehensive Notice and Agenda of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Information Statement See: PLDT's Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for the 2014 Annual Meeting ("AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014") Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2014/notice-agenda-and-informationpdf?sfvrsn=0 Proxy Form for the 2014 Annual Meeting ("Proxy Form") Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-	Written or printed notice of every annual stockholders' meeting, which notice shall state the date, time and place of the meeting and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given by the Secretary or the by the Assistant Secretary to each stockholder. Such notice may be delivered to the stockholders personally, or enclosed in an envelope with the postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed to each stockholder at his or her last place of residence or business, and posted at a Post Office in the Philippines or in the United States of America. Such Notice must be made at least fifteen business days before the date fixed for the meeting. (<i>By-Laws</i> , Section 1, Article II) Copies of the Information Statement and Annual Report
source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2014/agm- 2014-proxy-forms.pdf?sfvrsn=0	containing the information and disclosures prescribed in <i>SRC</i> Rule 20 are also sent to the stockholders together with the Notice and Agenda.
Disclosure of policy to encourage all shareholders to attend the Annual Meeting and to exercise their right to appoint a proxy in case they could not personally attend said meeting, as set forth in the <i>PLDT CG</i>	On top of sending out the Notice and Agenda, Information Statement and Annual Report as described above, the following are posted in the Company website and made publicly available through access of these links:
Manual and which is implemented through the issuance of letters of the President and CEO to ADR and OTC stockholders and the Annual Meeting Notice and Agenda.	 PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2.b Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/corporate-governance-files/CG-Manual-/pldt-manual-on-corporate-governancepdf?sfvrsn=0
	 Letter of the President to ADR holders Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2013/letter-adr-holders_jpm_final_04-26.pdf?sfvrsn=0
	 Letter of the President to OTC holders Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2013/letter_otc-holders_morrow_final_04-26.pdf?sfvrsn=0

AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014
 Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2013/notice-agenda-and-information-statement.pdf?sfvrsn=0

Shareholders are given the opportunity to raise questions regarding each item of the agenda or express their views or comments on other matters during the Annual Meeting.

Questions may be asked from the floor and the Chairman, any director or responsible officer may respond to such questions or, as necessary or appropriate, the Chairman may refer the matter to the Board, Board Committee or Management for further consideration or resolution.

The *PLDT CG Manual* provides that stockholders may elevate their concerns relating to the business of the Company to the Corporate Secretary, Investor Relations Officer, Management or the Board.

Stockholders may write or call the relevant numbers indicated in the Annual Report and posted in PLDT's Company website.

8. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:

a. Amendments to the company's constitution

The Company complies with Sec. 16 of the *Corporation Code* which provides that any provision in the articles of incorporation may be amended by a majority vote of the board of directors and the vote or written assent of the stockholders representing at least 2/3 of the capital stock without prejudice to the appraisal right of dissenting stockholders. Accordingly, any proposed amendment to the *Articles of Incorporation* will be fully disclosed to the Company's shareholders through the Notice and Agenda and Information Statement for the stockholders' meeting in which such amendment will be presented for stockholders' approval. As a matter of policy, stockholders are encouraged to attend and vote their shares in stockholders meetings, personally or by proxy.

b. Authorization of additional shares

The Company complies with Sec. 38 of the *Corporation Code* which provides, among others, that no corporation shall increase its capital stock unless approved by a majority vote of the board of directors and approved by 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock at a stockholders' meeting duly called for the purpose. Accordingly, any increase in authorized capital stock and issuance of additional shares from such increase in authorized capital stock will be fully disclosed to the Company's shareholders through the Notice and Agenda and Information Statement for the stockholders' meeting in which such increase in capital stock and corresponding amendment to the *Articles of Incorporation* will be presented for stockholders' approval. As a matter of policy, stockholders are encouraged to attend and vote their shares in stockholders meetings, personally or by proxy.

c. Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the company

The Company complies with Sec. 40 of the *Corporation Code* which provides, among others, that a corporation may sell, lease, exchange, mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose all or substantially all of its property and assets upon such terms and conditions and for such consideration as its board of directors may deem expedient, when authorized by at least 2/3 of the outstanding capital stock at a stockholders' meeting duly called for the purpose. Accordingly, any transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company will be fully disclosed to the Company's shareholders through the Notice and Agenda and Information Statement for the stockholders' meeting in which any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company will be presented for stockholders' approval. As a matter of policy, stockholders are encouraged to attend and vote their shares in stockholders meetings, personally or by proxy.

9. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where items to be resolved by shareholders are taken up?

The By-Laws and SRC Rule 20 only require 15 business days for giving out such notices.

- a. Date of sending out notices: May 15, 2014
- b. Date of the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting: June 10, 2014

The Notice and Agenda of the AGM and the Definitive Information Statement for the AGM were posted also on the Company's Investor Relations webpage on May 6, 2014.

Section 1, Article II of the *By-Laws*: Delivery or mailing of notice must be done at least fifteen (15) business days before the date fixed for the meeting and the statement of service of such delivery or mailing shall be entered upon the minutes of meeting and the said minutes as certified correct by the secretary of the meeting and attested by the chairman of the meeting shall be conclusive on the question of service.

10. State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting.

The questions or matters raised by the stockholders for discussion or clarification and the responses thereto are set forth in the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 10, 2014.

11-23. Result of Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting's Resolutions

June 10, 2014 Annual Meeting

Resolution	Approving	Dissenting	Abstaining
(i) Approval of the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2013 contained in the Company's 2013 Annual Report.	330,141,159	7,218	351,942
(ii) Approval of amendment to the Third Article of the Articles of Incorporation to indicate that the place where the principal office of the Company is to be established or located is at Ramon Cojuangco Building, Makati Avenue, Makati City.	630,188,769	10,627	301,293

Election of Directors (2014)		
Name of Director	Votes Received	
Artemio V. Panganiban	327,738,545	
Pedro E. Roxas	328,527,012	
Alfred V. Ty	330,713,241	
Helen Y. Dee	324,382,165	
Ray C. Espinosa	327,448,687	
James L. Go	324,053,683	
Setsuya Kimura	326,394,619	
Napoleon L. Nazareno	329,337,035	
Manuel V. Pangilinan	330,570,314	
Hideaki Ozaki	324,378,015	
Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa-Chan	326,896,103	
Juan B. Santos	326,444,355	
Tony Tan Caktiong	326,444,365	

24. Date of publishing of the result of the votes taken during the most recent AGM for all resolutions:

June 10, 2014

See: PLDT Annual Stockholders Meeting: Summary of Attendance and Votes

Posted at: http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2014/agm-results_06-10-(1).pdf?sfvrsn=0 http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-stockholders/2014/summary-of-attendance.pdf?sfvrsn=0

(e) Modifications

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting regulations during the most recent year and the reason for such modification:

None

Modifications	Reason for Modification

(f) Stockholders' Attendance

(i) Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting Held:

Type of Meeting	Names of Board members/Officers present	Date of Meeting	Voting Procedure (by poll, show of hands,	% of SH Attending in Person	% of SH in Proxy	Total % of SH attendance
Annual	Artemio V. Panganiban Pedro E. Roxas Alfred V. Ty Helen Y. Dee Ray C. Espinosa James L. Go Setsuya Kimura Napoleon L. Nazareno Manuel V. Pangilinan Hideaki Ozaki Ma. Lourdes C. Rausa- Chan Juan B. Santos Tony Tan Caktiong Officers: Ernesto R. Alberto Isaias P. Fermin Anabelle L. Chua Rene G. Bañez Alejandro O. Caeg Menardo G. Jimenez, Jr. Florentino D. Mabasa, Jr. June Cheryl A. Cabal- Revilla Melissa V. Vergel De Dios Gil Samson D. Garcia Oliver Carlos G. Odulio	June 10, 2014	By poll/proxy instruments with voting instructions	0.08% (84)	90.21% ⁽⁸⁴⁾	90.30% ⁽⁸⁴⁾

(ii) Does the company appoint an independent party (inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the ASM/SSMs?

Yes, the Company's tabulation, registration and reporting system has been reviewed and tested by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Related Services 4400 Agreed-upon Procedures issued by the Auditing Standards and Practices Council. Representatives from Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. were present in the Annual Meeting and checked the completeness and accuracy of the encoded proxies and voting instructions received as well as the completeness and accuracy of the attendance and voting reports generated by the system at the June 10, 2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

(iii) Do the company's common shares carry one vote for one share?

If not, disclose and give reasons for any divergence to this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting rights attached to each class of shares.

Yes, shares of Common Stock carry one vote per share.

Shares of Voting Preferred Stock have voting rights at any meeting of the stockholders for the election of directors and for all other purposes, with one vote in respect of each share of Voting Preferred Stock.

Shares of Non-Voting Serial Preferred Stock have no voting rights except as otherwise provided by law. With respect to the corporate actions enumerated in Section 6 of the *Corporation Code*, each share of Non-Voting Serial Preferred Stock entitled to vote carries one vote.

See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III

⁸⁴ Based on outstanding Common Shares and Voting Preferred Shares entitled to vote as of record date.

(g) Proxy Voting Policies

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting.

	Company's Policies
Execution and acceptance of proxies	The <i>Proxy Form</i> must be completed, signed and dated by the stockholder or his duly authorized representative and received by the office of the Corporate Secretary at least seven days before the day of the meeting. The <i>Proxy Form</i> is distributed to the stockholders together with the printed Notice and Agenda, Information Statement and Annual Report.
	If the shares of stock are owned by two or more joint owners, the proxy form must be signed by all of the joint owners.
	If the shares of stock are owned in an "and/or" capacity, the proxy form must be signed by either one of the owners.
	If the shares of stock are owned by a corporation, association, partnership or unincorporated entity, the proxy form must be accompanied by a certification, signed by a duly authorized officer, partner or representative of such corporation, association, partnership or unincorporated entity, to the effect that the person signing the proxy form has been authorized by the governing body or has the power pursuant to the <i>By-Laws</i> , constitutive documents or duly approved policies of such corporation, association, partnership or unincorporated entity, for such purpose.
	A proxy form given by a broker or dealer in respect of shares of stock carried by such broker or dealer for the account of a customer must be supported by a sworn certification that the same is given with the express prior authorization of such customer.
	If any customer of a broker or dealer who is the beneficial owner of shares of stock executes a sub-proxy, the broker or dealer shall certify that the signature on the sub-proxy is the true and genuine signature of its customer.
	See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III Proxy Form, Items 3 (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014 (which is distributed to stockholders together with the Proxy Form)
Notary	Proxies need not be notarized.
	See: Proxy Form, Item 3(a) AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014
Submission of Proxy	The proxy form must be completed, signed and dated by the stockholder or his duly authorized representative, and received at the principal office and mailing address of the Company not later than seven days before the day of the meeting.
	See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III Proxy Form, Item 3 (a)
Several Proxies	Where the Company receives more than one (1) proxy from the stockholder and they are all undated, the postmark dates shall be considered. If the proxies are made on the same date, the one bearing the latest time of day of postmark is counted. If proxies are not mailed, then the time of their actual presentation is considered. That which is presented last will be recognized. Where the same stockholder gives two (2) or more proxies, the latest one given is to be deemed to revoke all former proxies. If a stockholder designates several proxies, the number of shares of stocks represented by each proxy should be specifically indicated in the proxy form. If the proxy forms do not indicate the number of shares, the total shareholdings of the stockholder shall be tallied and the balance thereof, if any, shall be allotted to the holder of the proxy form without the number of shares, If all the proxy forms are in blank, the stocks will be distributed equally among the proxies. (SRC Rule 20, Section 11)
Validity of Proxy	A proxy is valid for the meeting in respect of which it was issued, unless otherwise provided in the proxy.
	See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III
Proxies executed abroad	Solicitation of proxies executed in the United States is done through a proxy solicitation firm. The cost and expenditures incidental to the proxy solicitation is borne by the Company. Proxies executed abroad need not be authenticated unless

	the Corporate Secretary so requests, on a case to case basis, to determine the authenticity of the signatures on the proxies or the due execution of the proxies.
Invalidated Proxy	An owner of shares of stock who has given a proxy has the power to revoke it by a written instrument duly signed and dated, which must be received at the Company's principal office and mailing address or at the office of the Company's transfer agent for common shares, not later than 3 days before the day of the meeting. A proxy is also considered revoked if an individual stockholder attends the meeting in person and expresses his intention to vote in person.
	See: Proxy Form, Item 4 AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014
Validation of Proxy	Validation of proxies shall be done at least five days before the day of the meeting by the Secretary or by a special committee of inspectors composed of the Secretary, Assistant Secretary, and a representative of the transfer agent of the corporation. The decision of the Secretary or the special committee of the inspectors, as the case may be, on the validity of proxies shall be final and binding until and unless set aside by a court of competent jurisdiction.
	See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III
Violation of Proxy	Unless otherwise provided in the proxy, a proxy shall be valid only for the meeting in respect of which such proxy was issued.
	See: By-Laws, Section 3, Article III

(h) Sending of Notices

State the company's policies and procedure on the sending of notices of Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting.

Policies	Procedure
The Company's policy is to send the notices for the Annual Stockholders' Meeting at least 15 business days prior to the fixed date of the meeting.	Written or printed notice of every annual stockholders' meeting, which notice shall set the date, time and place of the meeting and purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given by the Secretary or by the Assistant Secretary to each stockholder. Such notice may be delivered to the stockholders personally, or enclosed in an envelope with the postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed to each stockholder at his or her last known place of residence or business, and posted at a Post Office in the Philippines or in the United States of America.
	See: By-Laws, Section 1, Article II
The Company's policy is to send/deliver the notices for a special meeting at least 15 business days prior to the fixed date of the meeting and the statement of service by such delivery or mailing shall be entered upon the minutes of meeting and the said minutes as certified correct by the secretary of the meeting and attested by the chairman of the meeting shall be conclusive on the question.	Special meetings of the stockholders may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board or 3 of the Directors or by any number of stockholders representing 2/3 of the subscribed capital stock. Notice in writing of such meeting, stating the date, time and place thereof, and the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given by the Secretary or by the Assistant Secretary or in case of his absence, inability, refusal or neglect to act, then by the President, Directors or stockholders calling the said meeting. Such notice may be delivered to the stockholders personally, or enclosed in an envelope with the postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed to each stockholder at his or her last known place of residence or business, and posted at a Post Office in the Philippines or in the United States of America.

(i) Definitive Information Statements and Management Report

Number of Stockholders entitled to receive	June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting:
Definitive Information Statements and	
Management Report and Other Materials	

11,981

Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive Information Statement and Management Report and Other Materials held by market participants/certain beneficial owners	Philippines: June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 15-19, 2014 USA:	
	ADR Holders: June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 15, 2014 OTC Holders: June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 14-15, 2014	
Date of Actual Distribution of Definitive		
Information Statement and Management	Philippines: June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 15-19, 2014	
Report and Other Materials held by stockholders	USA: ADR Holders:	
	June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 15, 2014 OTC Holders:	
	June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: May 14-15, 2014	
State whether CD format or hard copies were distributed	June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting: The Information Statement, Proxy Form and 2013 Annual Report were distributed to stockholders in hard copies, while the unaudited consolidated financial statements with Management Discussions and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2014 under SEC Form 17-Q ("Quarterly Report") were distributed to stockholders at the meeting in CD format.	
If yes, indicate whether requesting stockholders were provided hard copies	The Company was ready to provide a hard copy of the Quarterly Report, but no stockholder requested a hard copy of such report.	

(j) Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders' Meeting include the following:

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only one item.	Yes
Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of first appointment, experience, and directorships in other listed companies) nominated for election/re-election.	Yes
The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed.	Yes
An explanation of the dividend policy, if any dividend is to be declared.	Yes
The amount payable for final dividends.	Yes
Documents required for proxy vote.	Yes

The appointment of independent auditors for the ensuing year (2014) was disclosed in the Information Statement for the June 10, 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting, which was sent together with the Notice and Agenda. However, the said action does not require stockholders' approval. Under Section 2, Article XII of the *By-Laws*, the Audit Committee shall appoint the independent auditors at its regular meeting immediately preceding the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

2) Treatment of Minority Stockholders

(a) State the company's policies with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.

Policies	Implementation
Shareholders shall have the right to nominate candidates directors, including independent directors, and the right to cumulative voting. See: By-Laws, Section 4, Article III and Section 7, Article V	The Company respects these shareholders rights which are measures intended to enable minority shareholder representation in the Board. See: Proxy Form AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014
The Board should be transparent and fair in the conduct of the annual and special stockholders' meetings of the Company. Stockholders should be encouraged to personally attend stockholders' meetings and they should be apprised ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy in case they could not personally attend such meeting. The exercise of that right shall not be unduly restricted and any	All stockholders, regardless of the size of their stockholdings, are encouraged to personally attend stockholders meetings. Aside from issuing a comprehensive Notice, Agenda and Information Statement with attached <i>Proxy Form</i> to all stockholders, PLDT's CEO writes to all ADR and OTC holders calling for their participation in such meetings and in case of inability to do so in person, to exercise their right to be represented and vote their shares, through a proxy.

doubt about the validity of a proxy should be resolved in the stockholder's favor, subject to the requirements of the applicable laws, regulations and the *By-Laws*.

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2(b)

The Board should take the appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary costs and other administrative impediments to the stockholders' participation in meetings, whether in person or by proxy. Relevant and timely information should be made available to the stockholders to enable them to make a sound judgment on all matters brought to their attention for consideration or approval.

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2(c)

It is the duty of the Board to promote the rights of all stockholders, including the minority stockholders, and facilitate the exercise thereof. Stockholders may seek redress for violation of their rights as such in accordance with applicable laws.

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2(a)

The Board shall have such number of Independent Directors constituting at least twenty percent (20%) of the total membership of the Board, but which shall in no case be less than two (2).

The Board shall ensure that: (i) all of the members of the Audit Committee including the chairman thereof, shall be Independent Directors, (ii) at least a majority of the voting members of the Governance and Nomination Committee shall be Directors (one of whom must be an Independent Director); and (iii) at least a majority of the voting members of the Executive Compensation Committee shall be Directors (one of whom must be an Independent Director).

See: PLDT CG Manual, Secs. 2.1.1(b) and 2.2(b)

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2(b)

Letter of the President to ADR holders

Letter of the President to OTC holders

AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014

All postage and courier fees for the delivery of the written notice to the Annual Stockholders' Meeting are fully prepaid by the Company. Likewise, the cost and expenditures incidental to the solicitation of proxies are borne by the Company. Documentary stamps due on executed proxies are also paid by the Company.

See: By-Laws, Sections 1 and 2, Article II;

Proxy Form (last sentence, Item no. 1, "General Information and Instructions")

AGM Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for 2014

Stockholders who have matters for discussion or concerns directly relating to the business of the Company may initially elevate such matters or concerns to: (a) the Corporate Secretary; (b) the Investor Relations Officer; (c) Management; or (d) the Board.

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 3.2 (last paragraph)

The Company complies with the said policies which serve to protect the rights of minority stockholders through the increase in the quality of board oversight and decrease in the risks arising from conflicts of interest. Independent directors play an important role in the review and handling of conflicts of interest and related party transactions.

All members of the Audit Committee are independent directors and majority of the voting members of the Governance and Nomination Committee and Executive Compensation Committee are independent directors.

(b) Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?

Yes. See By-Laws, Section 4, Article III and Section 7, Article V.

K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

Discuss the company's external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed. Disclose who
reviews and approves major company announcements. Identify the committee with this responsibility, if it has been assigned
to a committee.

The Company's external and internal communications policies are reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and top management and then cascaded to Public Affairs Group and Center Heads, and thereafter to senior managers and managers for implementation, evaluation and assessment.

In accordance with the Company's Internal Disclosure Controls and Procedures, major company announcements are reviewed and approved by the Company's Disclosure Committee, which is composed of certain members of senior management, and by the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee, as applicable.

2) Describe the company's investor relations program including its communications strategy to promote effective communication with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public in general. Disclose the contact details (e.g. telephone, fax and email) of the officer responsible for investor relations.

	Details
(1) Objectives	 To achieve optimum value for PLDT shares by making available to the investing community sufficient, timely and accurate information about the Company's financial and operating performance and its strategic direction To keep the lines of communication open with the investing community to be able to gather and address their feedback and concerns, and communicate these with senior management
Principles	PLDT's Investor Relations program is anchored on several principles, including: ensuring the timeliness, accuracy, and sufficiency of information; transparency; and accessibility to both senior management and information.
(2) Modes of Communications	Investor briefings, investor conferences, one-on-one meetings, and conference calls See also the response under Item I.4 on <i>Medium of Communication</i> under <i>Disclosure and Transparency</i> .
(3) Investors Relations Officer	Melissa V. Vergel De Dios Head – PLDT Investor Relations Center 12/F Ramon Cojuangco Building, Makati Avenue, Makati City Telephone no.: (632) 816-8024 Facsimile: (632) 810-7138 Email address: PLDT_IR_Center@pldt.com.ph

3) What are the company's rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the transaction price.

The Company complies with the documentary, substantive and procedural requirements under the *Corporation Code, Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations*, and rules and regulations of the SEC and PSE, regarding acquisition of corporate control in the capital markets, extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets. Such requirements include, without limitation, approvals by the Board of Directors and, as applicable, by the stockholders in meetings duly called and convened for such purposes, prompt, full and fair disclosure of the material terms thereof, conduct of a tender offer (in case of any acquisition of 35% or more of the equity shares of a public company or the acquisition of even less than 35% that would result in ownership of over 51% of the equity shares of a public company), and a fairness opinion from an independent financial adviser. It is also the Board's policy to create a Special Committee composed of independent directors that is authorized to independently review the terms and conditions of any acquisition of corporate control or extraordinary transaction, with the assistance of an independent financial adviser.

In 2014, PLDT engaged Delta Partners Corporate Finance Limited (Delta Partners) as an independent financial adviser in connection with PLDT's global strategic partnership with Rocket Internet AG (Rocket), which involves PLDT's investment of Euro 333 million for a 10% stake in Rocket. As PLDT's financial adviser, Delta Partners assisted in, among others, the commercial due diligence and valuation analysis/review of Rocket.

In 2012, PLDT engaged UBS AG as independent financial advisor in connection with the contemplated sale of PLDT's business process outsourcing business owned by its wholly owned subsidiary PLDT Global Investments Holdings, Inc. (formerly, SPI Global Holdings, Inc.). The sale transaction was completed on April 30, 2013.

In 2011, PLDT's Board of Directors engaged ING Bank N.V. as PLDT's independent financial adviser in connection with the acquisition of 51.55% of the outstanding common shares of Digital Telecommunications Phils., Inc. (Digitel) from the JG Summit Holdings, Inc. Group, and CLSA Exchange Capital as PLDT's independent financial adviser in connection with the acquisition of the remaining 48.45% outstanding common shares of Digitel held by the public shareholders, pursuant to a mandatory tender offer.

L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

Guided by the view that business must have a social purpose, the PLDT Group took on various CSR initiatives to help our people improve their lives through disaster preparedness and response, sustainable livelihood, environmental protection, digital literacy, better quality education, and healthcare. Some of these initiatives are set forth in the following table.

Initiative	Beneficiary
BRIDGE DURING DISASTERS:	
Tulong Kapatid: consolidated disaster preparedness and response effort of the Group	Communities in the provinces of Davao Oriental and Compostela Valley affected by <i>Typhoon Pablo</i> were recipients of food, water and relief goods. Participated in the rehabilitation of super typhoon Yolanda-hit areas by constructing eight learning facilities in Leyte, four in Cebu, another eight in Bohol and two classrooms in Capiz.
CREATING LIVELIHOOD, CARING FOR THE ENVIRONMENT:	
Assisted with training on vermin-compost production	Some of the 80 members of the farm organization <i>Kanlungan</i> received training which can be a source of income and low-cost organic fertilizers.
Donation of 4 high-speed sewing machines	KILOS, a women's organization in Gumian, Infanta Quezon; the sewing machines were used to recycle plastic bags sold at the community market.
TELEpuno Tree-planting Project	Project objective is to rehabilitate the Infanta-Real Watershed Forest Reserve, which provided, as a collateral effect, alternative livelihood project for partner communities in cooperation with the Philippine Business for Social Progress (PBSP).
PLDT's 66K M.V.P. (Movement for Volunteerism and Partnership) Trees	An environmental greening project of PLDT and its affiliates which aims to plant 66,000 trees in Benguet, Pampanga, Bulacan, Marikina, Iloilo and Cebu.
North Luzon Expressway Flowering Program: a joint effort of the PLDT-smart Foundation (PSF) and Metro Pacific Tollways to help in greening the environment	Road users of North Luzon Expressway.
Construction of fish nursery and provision of 5,500 fries	Samahan ng Magbubukid at Mangingisda sa Barangay Cawayan, a farmer organization which served as a partner in the fish production project.
Support for the <i>Philippine International River</i> Summit in Iloilo City	The Summit which discussed ways of saving vital waterways from pollution complemented the ongoing project to develop a flood monitoring and water system in 18 of the country's major river basins, including the Municipality of Iloilo.
Balik Baterya Program in partnership with PBSP and Motolite: donation of used lead-acid batteries (ULAB) for recycling	Hazardous waste from batteries is disposed properly while generating funds through the production of new batteries. PLDT remains the program's top donor, turning over almost 1.5 million kilos of ULABs, the proceeds of which were used to construct 11 new classrooms and repair 6 classrooms, among other educational facilities and community infrastructures built nationwide.
Other livelihood programs: training in microbusiness such as selling PLDT-Smart cards, soap making and personal grooming services	Poor communities in Muntinlupa and Malabon through the Catmon elementary School Parents and Teachers' Association, and typhoon victims in Quezon.
LEADING IN DIGITAL LITERACY:	
PLDT Managers' Club-PSF's <i>Gabay Guro (2G)</i> and Teacher's Treasure Chest Training Program	2G provided scholarships to a total of 754 aspiring teachers all over the country, while the Teacher's Treasure Chest program produced 3,439 graduates from 12 classes nationwide.
Infoteach: a program to promote digital education, in collaboration with the Department of Education (DepEd), Intel Philippines, Philippine Community eCenter Network and UPOU	Provided training to 1,000 teachers and students to promote digital education; extended its reach to include Marikina, Tondo, Isabela, Legaspi, Cebu, Iloilo, Bacolod, General Santos, Davao, and Zamboanga; offered its top teacher graduates scholarships to pursue advanced courses in UPOU

Teacher Development Program: a program which aims to upgrade teachers' skills and knowledge of science, math and language through enrolment at UPOU, in partnership with UPOU, DepEd and the Quezon province local government	Donated computers to 44 public schools in the Quezon Province.
Paaralang Laan sa Dunong at Talino in partnership with PBSP	Donated a two-story building worth six classrooms and a computer laboratory at Catmon Elementary School in Malabanan that benefited 827 students. The program dubbed as <i>Paaralang Laan</i> sa <i>Dunong at Talino</i> was in partnership with PBSP.
Donation of paint and school supplies and helped in the cleaning and gardening of elementary schools, for the <i>Balik Eskwela P</i> rogram	Putatan Elementary School in Muntinlupa, Catmann Elementary School in Malabon, and Luyang Elementary School in Cebu.
PROMOTING INNOVATION IN EDUCATION AND ARTS:	
Smart-PSF's promotion of the Dynamic Learning Program (DLP) in partnership with the Central Visayan Institute Foundation (CVIF)	DLP, a leading method proven to significantly improve student performance despite lack of qualified teachers, textbooks and facilities, was brought to school divisions in Sagay City, Negros Oriental, Basilan and Lamitan.
Sining Buhay Para sa Kalikasan: a collage art- making workshop using recyclable materials in partnership with Earth Day Network Philippines (EDNP	85 young budding artists from CRIBS Foundation, Persons with Disability - Valenzuela, L.as Pinas, Makati, and Quezon City Chapters, and Smokey Mountain's <i>Sandiwaan</i> Learning Center, participated in the workshop.
Akapela Open, a musical creation of OPM advocate and music genius Ryan Cayabyab, and co-presented by PSF and One Meralco Foundation	Aspiring young artists from various communities, barangays, schools, churches and other institutions who find joy in singing together.
BUILDING A HEALTHY NATION:	
Dugong PLDT: a bloodletting program in partnership with the Philippine Children's Medical Center (PCMC), the Philippine National Red Cross, and the DOH/Region 7 blood center	1400 PLDT employees from Metro Manila and the Visayas donated blood for Yolanda victims who needed blood.
Feeding programs to promote good nutrition; and free medical and dental services and medicines to victims of calamities, poor communities and indigenous groups	Poor families in urban communities and calamity areas, including Cebu City, Iloilo City, Zamboanga, Laguna, Pampanga, Quezon City, Cotabato and Bacolod City.

See Annex C.H.1: "Environmentally Friendly Value Chain" and "Community interaction" hereto attached for a list of CSR initiatives undertaken by the Company.

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its committees, individual director, and the CEO/President.

	Process	Criteria
Board of Directors	The Board conducts, at the end of each calendar year, an annual self-assessment to evaluate the performance of the Board as a whole, the Board Committees and individual directors. The process includes an evaluation of the performance of the CEO and Management. In addition, each Board Committee conducts an annual self-assessment of its performance. Members of the Board and the Board Committees	For the Board: Leadership, Roles and Responsibilities, Independence, Stewardship, Reporting and Disclosure, Shareholders' Benefits and Training (in relation to their function as stated in the By-Laws and PLDT CG Manual)
Board Committees		For the Board Committees: Performance, Compliance and Governance (in relation to their functions as stated in their respective Charters)

Individual Directors	accomplish their respective Self-Assessment Questionnaires for this purpose. Results of the assessment process are duly reported to the Board of Directors. The Board Self-Assessment Questionnaire contains criteria that are based on leading	For Individual Directors: Specific Duties and Responsibilities of a Director (including understanding of the Company's mission/ vision and values, independent judgment, and attendance and active participation at meetings)
CEO/President	practices and principles on good governance.	For the President & CEO: Leadership, Stewardship and Independence

 $See:\ http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices/monitoring-and-evaluation$

N. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance manual involving directors, officers, management and employees

The Chief Governance Officer shall be responsible for promptly reporting to the Chairman and the Governance and Nomination Committee any violation of the PLDT CG Manual. The Governance and Nomination Committee shall, after proper investigation, notice and hearing, determine and recommend to the Chairman of the Board the appropriate penalty for such violation, subject to further review and approval by the Board.

Violations	Sanctions
PLDT's Addendum to the Table of Penalties specifically includes this violation: "Acts or Omissions Violating the Company's Manual on Corporate Governance" Policy: PLDT Personnel Manual-Table of Penalties	The aforementioned violation/offense is penalized as follows: 1 st Offense – Reprimand; 2 nd Offense – Suspension (duration shall depend on gravity of the violation); and 3 rd offense – Removal from Office.

See: PLDT CG Manual, Sec. 5.2; GNC Charter, Schedule, Sec. 2.6



CERTIFICATION

- I, MA. LOURDES C. RAUSA-CHAN, the duly elected and incumbent Corporate Secretary of PHILIPPINE LONG DISTANCE TELEPHONE COMPANY (the "Company"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, with principal office address at Ramon Cojuangco Building, Makati Avenue, Makati City, hereby certify that:
- 1. At the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Board") held on November 4, 2014, at which a quorum was present and acting throughout (the "Meeting"), the Board discussed the requirement under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 12, Series of 2014, that publicly listed companies must, among other things, submit and/or post in their websites Consolidated Changes in their Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR) containing all the updates and changes made in their ACGR for the whole year, within ten (10) days from the end of the second (2nd) to the fourth (4th) year after the initial submission of their ACGR.
- 2. Following the Board's review and discussion of the Company's Consolidated Changes in ACGR for 2014 covering updates/changes during the period January to October 2014, as presented in the Meeting, the Board approved and adopted the following resolutions:

Resolution No. 11-2014-02

"RESOLVED, that the Consolidated Changes in Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2014 (the "2014 Consolidated Changes in ACGR") covering updates/changes during the period January to October 2014 as presented in this meeting, be, and is hereby, approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Chief Governance Officer be, and is hereby, authorized to update the 2014 Consolidated Changes in ACGR for any updates/changes therein occurring in November and December 2014 (the "Changes"), which Changes shall be deemed to have been ratified by the Board of Directors;

RESOLVED FINALLY, that the Chief Governance Officer be, and is hereby, authorized to submit to the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and post on the Company's website the 2014 Consolidated Changes in ACGR containing all the updates/changes in 2014, within the period prescribed under the relevant SEC circulars or guidelines."

 This Certification is issued in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 12, Series of 2014.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Company this 9th day of January, 2015 in Makati City.

MA. LOURDES C. RAUSA-CHAN Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 9th day of January, 2015 at Makati City, affiant exhibited to me her Philippine Passport No. EB3934720 issued in Manila by the Department of Foreign Affairs on October 24, 2011 and valid until October 23, 2016.

Doc. No. 4/3 Page No. 84 Book No. VI

Series of 2015.

General Office P.O. Box 2148 Makati City, Philippines

KRISTIN BARBRA B. BELLO
Notary Public for the City of Makati
Until December 31, 2015

Appointment No. M-109
Roll of Attorneys No. 43081

Roll of Attorneys No. 43081 PTR O.R. No. 4234486 - 01/10/14 Makati City IBP Lifetime No. 07028 - 11/16/07

9/F, MGO Bldg. Legazpi St. Legazpi Vill., Makati City, MM

DEFINED TERMS

Statement for 2014"

The following terms are used in this Charter with the respective meanings ascribed to such terms below, unless the context otherwise requires:

"17-A Annual Report" PLDT's 2014 Annual Report on Philippine SEC Form 17-A which

> includes Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and Audited Financial

Statements

"20-F Annual Report" PLDT's 2014 Annual Report on SEC Form 20-F pursuant to the U.S.

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

PLDT Executive Compensation Committee

"2013 Annual Report" PLDT's glossy 2013 Annual Report distributed to stockholders in

connection with the 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

"AC" PLDT's Audit Committee

"AC Charter" PLDT's Audit Committee Charter

PLDT's Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for the 2014 "AGM Notice, Agenda and Information

Annual Meeting

"Articles of Incorporation" PLDT's Articles of Incorporation "By-Laws" PLDT's By-Laws, as amended "Conflict of Interest Policy" PLDT's Conflict of Interest Policy "Corporation Code" Corporation Code of the Philippines "ECC"

"ECC Charter" **PLDT Executive Compensation Committee Charter**

"Gifts Policy" PLDT's Policy on Gifts, Entertainment and Sponsored Travel

"GNC" **PLDT Governance and Nomination Committee**

"GNC Charter" **PLDT Governance and Nomination Committee Charter**

"Letter of the President to ADR holders" Letter of the President to ADR holders "Letter of the President to OTC holders" Letter of the President to OTC holders

"PAS 24" Philippine Accounting Standard 24 for Related Party Disclosures

"PLDT CG Manual" PLDT's Manual on Corporate Governance "PLDT Code of Ethics" PLDT's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics "PLDT Personnel Manual" PLDT's Personnel Policies and Procedures Manual

"Proxy Form" PLDT's Proxy Form for the 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting

(distributed to stockholders together with the AGM Notice,

Agenda and Information Statement for 2014)

"RPT Guidelines" PLDT's Guidelines on the Proper Handling of Related Party

Transactions

"SEC CG Code" **Revised Code of Corporate Governance**

(SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6. Series of 2009)

"SRC" Securities Regulation Code

"Supplier Relations Policy" PLDT's Supplier/Contractor Relations Policy "TSC" PLDT's Technology Strategy Committee

"TSC Charter" PLDT's Technology Strategy Committee Charter Whistleblowing Policy PLDT's Expanded Whistleblowing (EWB) Policy

TABLE OF WEBLINKS

The following weblinks which are referenced in the ACGR are publicly available at the Company website unless otherwise indicated.

17-A Annual Report PLDT's 2014 Annual Report on Philippine SEC Form 17-A which includes

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results

of Operations and Audited Financial Statements http://pldt.com/investor-relations/annual-reports

20-F Annual Report PLDT's 2014 Annual Report on SEC Form 20-F pursuant to the U.S.

Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended http://pldt.com/investor-relations/annual-reports

2013 Annual Report PLDT's glossy 2013 Annual Report distributed to stockholders in

connection with the 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting.

Main Section:

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-reports/2013/2013-ar-main-

section.pdf?sfvrsn=2
Financial Section:

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-reports/2013/pldt-ar-2013-

financial.pdf?sfvrsn=2

AGM Notice, Agenda and Information

Statement for 2014

PLDT's Notice, Agenda and Information Statement for the 2014 Annual

Stockholders' Meeting

http://pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/latest-shareholders'-

news

Articles of Incorporation PLDT's Articles of Incorporation

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/Articles-of-Incorporation-and-By-

 $laws/pse_amended-articles_revised_2014.pdf?sfvrsn=0$

Audit Committee Charter

(AC Charter)

PLDT's Audit Committee Charter

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Audit%20 Committee%2

OCharter.pdf

By-Laws PLDT's By-Laws, as amended

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/Articles-of-Incorporation-and-By-laws/pldt-by-by-laws/pldt-by-by-laws/pldt-by-by-by-laws/pldt-by-

laws-(amended).pdf?sfvrsn=0

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (PLDT

Code of Ethics)

PLDT Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/policies/pldt-code-of-business-conduct-and-

ethics.pdf?sfvrsn=4

Company website PLDT's Company website

http://www.pldt.com

Corporate Governance website PLDT's corporate governance website

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt

Conflict of Interest Policy PLDT's Conflict of Interest Policy

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Corporate Governance Policies PLDT's Corporate Governance Policies

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Dividend Policy and

Declaration of Dividends

(Disclosures to PSE, SEC, US SEC, and NYSE)

PLDT's Dividend Policy and Declaration of Dividends

http://www.pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/dividend-info

Executive Compensation Committee PLDT's Executive Compensation Committee Charter

Charter

(ECC Charter)

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Executive%20Compensa

tion%20Committee%20Charter.pdf

Expanded Whistleblowing Policy

(Whistleblowing Policy)

PLDT's Expanded Whistle Blowing (EWB) Policy

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/resources-for-personnel

Governance and Nomination Committee

Charter

(GNC Charter)

PLDT's Governance and Nomination Committee Charter

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Governance%20and%20

Nomination%20Committee%20Charter.pdf

Guidelines on the Proper Handling of **Related Party Transactions**

(RPT Guidelines)

PLDT's Guidelines on the Proper Handling of Related Party Transactions

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Guidelines on the Search, Screening and

Selection of Directors

PLDT's Guidelines on the Search, Screening and Selection of Directors

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/compliance/corporate-aovernancematerials/acgs/guidelines-on-the-search-screening-and-selection-of-directors-

.pdf?sfvrsn=0

Letter of the President to ADR holders

Letter of the President to ADR holders

http://www.pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-ofstockholders/2013/letter-adr-holders jpm final 04-26.pdf?sfvrsn=0

Letter of the President to OTC holders

Letter of the President to OTC holders

http://www.pldt.com/docs/default-source/annual-meeting-of-

stockholders/2013/letter otc-holders morrow final 04-26.pdf?sfvrsn=0

Manual on Corporate Governance

(PLDT CG Manual)

PLDT's Manual on Corporate Governance

http://pldt.com/docs/default-source/corporate-governance-files/CG-Manual-/pldt-

manual-on-corporate-governance-.pdf?sfvrsn=0

Policy on Gifts, Entertainment and

Sponsored Travel

(Gifts Policy)

PLDT's Policy on Gifts, Entertainment and Sponsored Travel

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Proxy Form

PLDT's Proxy Form for the 2014 Annual Stockholders' Meeting

http://pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/latest-shareholders'-

news

Statements of Changes in Ownership of

Shares

Accessible through the PSE and the PLDT websites at:

http://edge.pse.com.ph/

(>Listed Company Directory>Philippine Long Distance Telephone

Company>TEL>Corporate Disclosures)

http://pldt.com/investor-relations/shareholder-information/beneficial-ownership

Supplier/Contractor Relations Policy

(Supplier Relations Policy)

PLDT's Supplier/Contractor Relations Policy

http://pldt.com/corporate-governance-in-pldt/policies-processes-and-practices

Technology Strategy Committee Charter

(TSC Charter)

PLDT's Technology Strategy Committee Charter

http://www.pldt.com.ph/about/management/Documents/Technology%20Strategy

%20Committee%20Charter.pdf

ACGR Item A.4: "Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors"

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilities and deliverables of the Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors:

List of Accountabilities/Deliverables of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

- 1. Consistent with a director's three-fold duty of obedience, diligence and loyalty to the corporation he serves, a director shall:
 - act within the scope of power and authority of the Company and the Board as prescribed in the Articles of Incorporation, By-Laws, and legislative franchise of the Company and in existing laws, rules and regulations;
 - exercise his best care, skill, judgment and observe utmost good faith in the conduct and management of the business and affairs of the Company; and
 - act in the best interest of the Company and for the common benefit of the Company's stockholders and other stakeholders.
- 2. Act in a manner characterized by transparency, accountability and fairness.
- 3. Conduct business transactions with the Company fairly, ensuring that personal interests do not affect his independent judgment and the Board's decisions.
- 4. Exemplify the Company's Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, not only complying with the letter and spirit thereof but modeling the standards of behavior set forth therein.
- 5. Understand the mission, vision and values of the Company.
- 6. Devote time and attention necessary to properly discharge his fiduciary duties and responsibilities.
- 7. Act judiciously on matters brought before the Board, thoroughly evaluating the issues involved before making any decision.
- 8. Exercise independent Judgment.
- 9. Have a working knowledge of and comply with the statutory and regulatory requirements affecting the Company and its operations, including the provisions of the *Articles of Incorporation*, *By-Laws* and legislative franchise, the requirements of the Philippine SEC and other regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Company, where applicable.
- 10. Observe confidentiality of non-public information acquired by reason of his position as a director and do not trade or deal in the Company's shares based on such information.
- 11. Fully disclose his ownership (record and beneficial) of Company shares and any changes thereto in accordance with the *Securities Regulation Code* and implementing rules and regulations and the Philippine Stock Exchange disclosure rules.
- 12. Clearly understand and disclose potential and actual conflicts of interest.
- 13. Attend all Board meetings, except when prevented by justifiable cause.
- 14. Ensure that he is prepared for Board/ Board Committee meetings including reading meeting materials in advance.
- 15. Actively participate in Board/ Board Committee meetings, deliberations and decision- making.
- 16. Take steps, such as attendance in seminars, reading journals and other materials, to enhance and update my knowledge on corporate governance and enable me to discharge his duties and responsibilities as a director.
- 17. Be aware of key issues and challenges facing the Company today and in the future.
- 18. Keep abreast with the key developments in the Company's industry, sector and environment.
- 19. Aware of the qualifications and grounds for disqualification including suspension of a director and refrain from committing acts that would result in his disqualification or suspension.
- 20. Limit the number of directorships in other corporations to a level that will not compromise my capacity to serve and diligently perform my duties as a director of the Company.
- 21. Have adequate understanding of the Company's internal control environment and risk assessment and management program.

Provide the company's definition of "independence" and describe the company's compliance to the definition.

"Independent Director" means a person who is independent of Management and who, apart from his fees and shareholdings, is free from any business or other relationship with the Company which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with his exercise of independent judgment in carrying out his responsibilities as a director of the Company and includes, among other persons, one who:

is not a director or officer of the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders (other than
as an Independent Director of any of the foregoing);

- (ii) was not a director (other than an Independent Director) of the Company who resigned or whose term ended within the last two (2) years;
- (iii) was not the chairman emeritus or an ex-oficio director/officer or a member of the advisory board of the Company or otherwise appointed in a capacity to assist the Board of the Company in the performance of its duties and responsibilities within the last one (1) year;
- (iv) does not own more than two percent (2%) of the shares of stock of the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders;
- (v) is not a relative of any director, officer or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders. For this purpose, "relatives" includes spouse, parent, child, brother, sister, and the spouse of such child, brother or sister;
- (vi) is not acting as a nominee or representative of any director or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders, pursuant to a deed of trust or under any contract or arrangement;
- (vii) has not been employed in any executive capacity by the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders within the last five (5) years;
- (viii) is not retained, or within the last five (5) years, has not been retained, as a professional adviser by the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders, either personally or through his firm;
- (ix) has not engaged and does not engage in any transaction with the Company or any of its related companies or any of its substantial shareholders, whether by himself or with other persons or through a firm of which he is a partner or a company of which he is a director or substantial shareholder, other than transactions which are conducted at arm's length and are immaterial;
- (x) is not employed as an officer or executive of another entity where any of the Company's officers or executives serves on that entity's Compensation Committee;
- (xi) is not affiliated with or employed, or within the last five (5) years, has not been affiliated with or employed, by the Company's present or former external auditors or their affiliates; or
- (xii) is not a securities broker-dealer or a person holding any office of trust and responsibility in a broker-dealer firm which includes, among others, a director, officer, principal stockholder, nominee of the firm to the Exchange, associated person or salesman, and an authorized clerk of the broker or dealer.

When used in relation to a company, "related company" means another company which is: (a) its holding company, (b) its subsidiary, or (c) a subsidiary of its holding company; and "substantial shareholder" means any person who is directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of more than ten percent (10%) of any class of its equity security.

To qualify for nomination as an Independent Director, a person must possess all of the qualifications and have none of the disqualifications for directorship in the Company as set forth in Annexes B and C of the *PLDT CG Manual*, respectively, and must meet the independence criteria enumerated above and such other criteria provided under applicable law or regulation or determined by the Board of Directors or the Governance and Nomination Committee.

An incumbent Independent Director shall be disqualified from continuing to be such during the remainder of his tenure if, upon determination by the Board or the Governance and Nomination Committee: (a) he ceases to meet any of the independence criteria provided above, or (b) he becomes disqualified from directorship based on any of the grounds for disqualification in accordance with Annex C of the *PLDT CG Manual*.

Added Restrictions:

- i. An independent director can only be elected as an independent director of only five (5) companies in a conglomerate, including the Company;
- ii. An independent director may serve as such for five (5) consecutive years, provided that, service for at least six (6) months shall be equivalent to one (1) year regardless of the manner by which the independent director position was relinquished or terminated;
- iii. After an independent director has served for five (5) consecutive years, he shall be ineligible for election as such in the Company unless said independent director has undergone a cooling-off period of two (2) years, provided, that during such period, the independent director has not engaged in any activity that, under applicable rules and regulations, disqualifies a person from being elected as an independent director in the Company;
- iv. After an independent director has served for ten (10) years, subject to sub-paragraph (iii) above, the independent director shall be perpetually barred from being elected as such in the Company, without prejudice to being elected as an independent director in other companies outside of the conglomerate, where applicable, subject to sub-paragraphs (i) to (iii) above.

(b) Selection/Appointment, Re-election, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedures for the selection/appointment, re-election, disqualification, removal, reinstatement and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes adopted (including the frequency of election) and the criteria employed in each procedure:

a. Selection/Appointment

(i) Executive Directors

Process Adopted

- 1. All nominations for election of directors by stockholders shall be submitted in writing to the Board of Directors through the Chairman of the Board and the Secretary at the Company's principal place of business at least 60 working days before the regular or special meeting of stockholders for the purpose of electing directors.
- 2. All nominations for appointment of a director by the Board of Directors to fill a vacancy in the Board of Directors for any cause or reason whatsoever, other than by removal by the stockholders or by the expiration of term of office, shall be submitted in writing to the Board of Directors through the Chairman of the Board and the Secretary at the Company's principal place of business at least 30 working days before the meeting of the Board of Directors for the aforestated purpose.
- 3. The Governance and Nomination Committee (GNC) shall then pre-screen and shortlist candidates nominated to become a member of the Board in accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications set forth in the *By-Laws, PLDT CG Manual* and *GNC Charter* and such other factors which the Committee may deem appropriate such as judgment, skill, experience with other business organizations of a size comparable to that of the Company, the interplay of a candidate's experience with the experience of other Directors, and possible conflict of interest. Thereafter, the GNC will determine, identify and prepare a final list of the qualified Director and Independent Director nominees and recommend that the Board approve such final list and recommend to stockholders the qualified nominees included in the final list for election in the annual meeting of stockholders. In case a vacancy in the Board other than by removal of a Director or expiration of the term of office of a Director occurs, determine and identify the qualified director/ Independent Director nominee and recommend that the Board elect such qualified nominee to fill the vacancy.

Criteria

- 1. Must own at least one (1) share of stock of the Company standing in his name on the books of the Company
- 2. Must have a college education or equivalent academic degree
- 3. Must be at least 21 years old
- 4. Must possess integrity and probity
- 5. Must have a practical understanding of the business of the Company or previous business experience
- 6. Must have attended a seminar on corporate governance conducted by a duly recognized private or government entity or must have issued an undertaking to attend such a seminar as soon as practicable.

The GNC may consider and recommend to the Board other qualifications which are now or may hereafter be provided in the relevant existing laws or any amendments thereto or new laws applicable to the company, including, but not limited to, membership in good standing in relevant industry, business or professional organization.

c. Permanent Disqualification

(i) Executive Directors

Criteria

- 1. Any person convicted or adjudged guilty of any of the offenses or crimes specified below in a final, non-appealable judgment, decree or order issued by a judicial or an administrative body having competent jurisdiction or the Commission:
- (a) an offense involving moral turpitude, fraud, embezzlement, theft, estafa, counterfeiting, misappropriation, forgery, bribery, false affirmation, perjury or other fraudulent acts;
- (b) any crime that (i) involves the purchase or sale of securities, as defined in the *Securities Regulation Code*; (ii) arises out of the person's conduct as an underwriter, broker, dealer, investment adviser, principal distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures commission merchant, commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; or (iii) arises out of his fiduciary relationship with a bank, quasi-bank, trust company, investment house or as an affiliated person of any of them; or
- (c) having willfully violated, or willfully aided, abetted, counseled, induced or procured the violation of, any provision of the SRC, Corporation Code, or any other law administered by the Commission or the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas ("BSP"), or any rule, regulation or order of the Commission or BSP;
- 2. Any person who, by reason of misconduct, after hearing, is permanently enjoined by a final judgment or order of the

Commission or any court or administrative body of competent jurisdiction from: (a) acting as an underwriter, broker, dealer, investment adviser, principal distributor, mutual fund dealer, futures commission merchant, commodity trading advisor, or floor broker; (b) acting as director or officer of a bank, quasi-bank, trust company, investment house, or investment company; (c) engaging in or continuing any conduct or practice in any of the capacities mentioned in subparagraphs (a) and (b) above.

The disqualification shall also apply if such person: (a) is currently the subject of an order of the Commission or any court or administrative body denying, revoking or suspending any registration, license or permit issued to him under the *Corporation Code*, Securities Regulation Code or any other law administered by the Commission or BSP, or under any rule or regulation issued by the Commission or BSP; or (b) has otherwise been restrained to engage in any activity involving securities and banking; or (c) is currently the subject of an effective order of a self-regulatory organization suspending or expelling him from membership, participation or association with a member or participant of the said organization;

- 3. Any person found guilty by final judgment or order of a foreign court or equivalent securities or banking regulatory authority of acts, violations or misconduct similar to any of the acts, violations or misconduct enumerated in Sections 1 and 2 above;
- 4. Any person convicted by final judgment of an offense punishable by imprisonment for more than six (6) years, or a violation of the *Corporation Code* committed within five (5) years prior to the date of his election or appointment;
- 5. Any person judicially declared as insolvent;
- 6. Any employee, officer, manager, director or controlling person or the owner (either of record or beneficially) of ten percent (10%) or more of any outstanding class of shares of any corporation (other than one in which the Company owns at least thirty per cent (30%) of the capital stock) or entity engaged in a business that the Board, by at least a majority vote, determines to be competitive or antagonistic to that of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
- 7. Any employee, officer, manager, director or controlling person or the owner (either of record or beneficially) of ten percent (10%) or more of any outstanding class of shares of any corporation or entity engaged in any line of business of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, when in the judgment of the Board, by at least a majority vote, the laws against combinations and restraint of trade shall be violated by such person's membership in the Board; and
- 8. Any nominee, as determined by the Board, in the exercise of its judgment in good faith and by at least a majority vote, of any person set forth in Item 6 and 7 above.

d. Temporary Disqualification

(i) Executive Directors

Procedure/Process Adopted

- 1. The GNC may consider and recommend to the Board temporary disqualification of a Director based on the grounds specified in PLDT's *By-Laws* and *PLDT CG Manual*.
- 2. Any temporary disqualification of a Director recommended by the GNC to be valid and effective must be approved by the Board and comply with the requirements of applicable laws, rules and regulations.
- 3. A temporarily disqualified Director shall, within the period prescribed by the Board, which shall not be less than sixty (60) business days from such disqualification, take the appropriate action to remedy or correct the disqualification. If he fails or refuses to do so for unjustified reasons, the disqualification shall become permanent.

The GNC may consider and recommend to the Board other grounds for disqualification which are now or may hereafter be provided in the relevant existing laws or any amendments thereto or new laws applicable to the Company.

Criteria

- 1. Refusal to comply with the disclosure requirements of the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations, which disqualification shall be in effect as long as said refusal persists;
- 2. Absence in more than fifty percent (50%) of all Board meetings, both regular and special, during his incumbency or any twelve (12) month period during said incumbency, unless the absence is due to justifiable causes such as illness, death of an immediate family member or serious accident. This disqualification applies for purposes of the succeeding election;
- 3. Dismissal or termination for cause as director of any corporation covered by the SEC's Revised Code of Corporate Governance. This disqualification shall be in effect until he has cleared himself of any involvement in the cause that gave rise to his dismissal or termination;
- 4. Being under preventive suspension by the Company (in the case of an Executive Director); and
- 5. If any of the judgments or orders cited in the grounds for permanent disqualification has not yet become final.

e. Removal

(i) Executive Directors

Procedure/Process Adopted

PLDT follows the procedure set forth under Sec. 28 of the *Corporation Code*, i.e., any director of the company may be removed from office by a vote of the stockholders holding or representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock Provided, That such removal shall take place either at a regular meeting of the company or at a special meeting called for the purpose, and in either case, after previous notice to stockholders of the company of the intention to propose such removal at the meeting. A special meeting of the stockholders of the company for the purpose of removal of directors, or any of them, must be called by the secretary on order of the president or on the written demand of the stockholders representing or holding at least a majority of the outstanding capital stock. Should the secretary fail or refuse to call the special meeting upon such demand or fail or refuse to give the notice, or if there is no secretary, the call for the meeting may be addressed directly to the stockholders by any stockholder of the company signing the demand. Notice of the time and place of such meeting, as well as of the intention to propose such removal, must be given by publication or by written notice prescribed in the *Corporation Code*. Removal may be with or without cause; Provided, That removal without cause may not be used to deprive minority stockholders of the right of representation to which they may be entitled under Section 24 of the *Corporation Code*.

ACGR Item B.5: "Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations"

(c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of the company:

Brief Description of the Transaction between First Pacific and Certain Affiliates (the FP parties), NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO

Cooperation Agreement with First Pacific and certain affiliates, or the FP Parties, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO

In connection with the transfer by NTT Communications of approximately 12.6 million shares of PLDT's common stock to NTT DOCOMO pursuant to a Stock Sale and Purchase Agreement dated January 31, 2006 between NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO, the FP Parties, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO entered into a Cooperation Agreement, dated January 31, 2006.

Under the Cooperation Agreement, the relevant parties extended certain rights of NTT Communications under the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement dated September 28, 1999, as amended, and the Shareholders Agreement dated March 24, 2000, to NTT DOCOMO, including:

- certain contractual veto rights over a number of major decisions or transactions; and
- rights relating to the representation on the Board of Directors of PLDT and Smart, respectively, and any committees thereof.

Moreover, key provisions of the Cooperation Agreement pertain to, among other things:

- Restriction on Ownership of Shares of PLDT by NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO. Each of NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO has agreed not to beneficially own, directly or indirectly, in the aggregate with their respective subsidiaries and affiliates, more than 21% of the issued and outstanding shares of PLDT's common stock. If such event does occur, the FP Parties, as long as they own in the aggregate not less than 21% of the issued and outstanding shares of PLDT's common stock, have the right to terminate their respective rights and obligations under the Cooperation Agreement, the Shareholders Agreement and the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement.
- Limitation on Competition. NTT Communications, NTT DOCOMO and their respective

subsidiaries are prohibited from investing in excess of certain thresholds in businesses competing with PLDT in respect of customers principally located in the Philippines and from using their assets in the Philippines in such businesses. Moreover, if PLDT, Smart or any of Smart's subsidiaries intend to enter into any contractual arrangement relating to certain competing businesses, PLDT is required to provide, or to use reasonable efforts to procure that Smart or any of Smart's subsidiaries provide, NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO with the same opportunity to enter into such agreement with PLDT or Smart or any of Smart's subsidiaries, as the case may be.

Business Cooperation. PLDT and NTT DOCOMO agreed in principle to collaborate with each other on the business development, rollout and use of a wireless-code division multiple access mobile communication network. In addition, PLDT agreed, to the extent of the power conferred by its direct or indirect shareholding in Smart, to procure that Smart will: (i) become a member of a strategic alliance group for international roaming and corporate sales and services; and (ii) enter into a business relationship concerning preferred roaming and inter-operator tariff discounts with NTT DOCOMO.

- Additional Rights of NTT DOCOMO. Pursuant to amendments effected by the Cooperation Agreement to the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement and the Shareholders Agreement, upon NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO and their respective subsidiaries owning in the aggregate 20% or more of PLDT's shares of common stock and for as long as they continue to own in the aggregate at least 17.5% of PLDT's shares of common stock then outstanding, NTT DOCOMO has additional rights under the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement and Shareholders Agreement, including that:
- 1. NTT DOCOMO is entitled to nominate one additional NTT DOCOMO nominee to the Board of Directors of each PLDT and Smart;
- 2. PLDT must consult NTT DOCOMO no later than 30 days prior to the first submission to the board of PLDT or certain of its committees of any proposal of investment in an entity that would primarily engage in a business that would be in direct competition or substantially the same business opportunities, customer base, products or services with business carried on by NTT DOCOMO, or which NTT DOCOMO has announced publicly an intention to carry on;
- 3. PLDT must procure that Smart does not cease to carry on its business, dispose of all of its assets, issue common shares, merge or consolidate, or effect winding up or liquidation without PLDT first consulting with NTT DOCOMO no later than 30 days prior to the first submission to the board of PLDT or Smart, or certain of its committees; and
- 4. PLDT must first consult with NTT DOCOMO no later than 30 days prior to the first submission to the board of PLDT or certain of its committees for the approval of any transfer by any member of the PLDT Group of Smart common capital stock to any person who is not a member of the PLDT Group.

NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO together beneficially owned approximately 20% of PLDT's outstanding common stock as at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Change in Control. Each of NTT Communications, NTT DOCOMO and the FP Parties agreed that to the extent permissible under applicable laws and regulations of the Philippines and other jurisdictions, subject to certain conditions, to cast its vote as a shareholder in support of any resolution proposed by the Board of Directors of PLDT for the purpose of safeguarding PLDT from any

Hostile Transferee. A "Hostile Transferee" is defined under the Cooperation Agreement to mean any person (other than NTT Communications, NTT DOCOMO, First Pacific or any of their respective affiliates) determined to be so by the PLDT Board of Directors and includes, without limitation, a person who announces an intention to acquire, seeking to acquire or acquires 30% or more of PLDT common shares then issued and outstanding from time to time or having (by itself or together with itself) acquired 30% or more of the PLDT common shares who announces an intention to acquire, seeking to acquire or acquires a further 2% of such PLDT common shares: (a) at a price per share which is less than the fair market value as determined by the Board of Directors of PLDT, as advised by a professional financial advisor; (b) which is subject to conditions which are subjective or which could not be reasonably satisfied; (c) without making an offer for all PLDT common shares not held by it and/or its affiliates and/or persons who, pursuant to an agreement or understanding (whether formal or informal), actively cooperate to obtain or consolidate control over PLDT; (d) whose offer for the PLDT common shares is unlikely to succeed; or (e) whose intention is otherwise not bona fide; provided that, no person will be deemed a Hostile Transferee unless prior to making such determination, the Board of Directors of PLDT has used reasonable efforts to discuss with NTT Communications and NTT DOCOMO in good faith whether such person should be considered a Hostile Transferee.

• Termination. If NTT Communications, NTT DOCOMO or their respective subsidiaries cease to own, in the aggregate, full legal and beneficial title to at least 10% of the shares of PLDT's common stock then issued and outstanding, their respective rights and obligations under the Cooperation Agreement and the Shareholders Agreement will terminate and the Strategic Arrangements (as defined in the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement) will terminate. If the FP Parties and their respective subsidiaries cease to have, directly or indirectly, effective voting power in respect of shares of PLDT's common stock representing at least 18.5% of the shares of PLDT's common stock then issued and outstanding, their respective rights and obligations under the Cooperation Agreement, the Stock Purchase and Strategic Investment Agreement, and the Shareholders Agreement will terminate.

ACGR Item B.6: "Alternative Dispute Resolution"

6) Alternative Dispute Resolution

Describe the alternative dispute resolution system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amicably settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the corporation and third parties, including regulatory authorities.

Corporation & Stockholders (Alternative Dispute Resolution System)

- 1. The Board should promote stockholders' rights and facilitate the exercise thereof. Stockholders may seek redress for violation of their rights as such in accordance with applicable laws.
- 2. The Board should be transparent and fair in the conduct of the annual and special stockholders' meetings of the Company. Stockholders should be encouraged to personally attend such meetings and they should be apprised ahead of time of their right to appoint a proxy in case they could not personally attend such meetings. The exercise of that right should not be unduly restricted and any doubt about the validity of a proxy should be resolved in the stockholder's favor, subject to the requirements of applicable laws, regulations and the *By-Laws*.
- 3. The Board should take the appropriate steps to remove excessive or unnecessary costs and other administrative impediments to stockholders' participation in meetings, whether in person or by proxy. Relevant and timely information should be made available to the stockholders to enable them to make a sound judgment on all matters brought to their attention for consideration or approval.

Stockholders who have matters for discussion or concerns directly relating to the business of the Company may initially elevate such matters or concerns to: (a) the Corporate Secretary; (b) the Investor Relations Officer; (c) Management; or (d) the Board.

Corporation & Third Parties/ Corporation & Regulatory Authorities (Alternative Dispute Resolution System)

The Company complies with, abides and is guided by the policy set forth in Republic Act No. 9285, otherwise known as the "Alternative Dispute Resolution Act of 2004", in handling conflicts or differences between the Company and its stockholders as well as third parties in that:

- 1. The Company promotes party autonomy in the resolution of disputes or the freedom of the parties to make its own arrangements, together with the counter-party, to resolve their disputes.
- 2. The Company shall encourage and actively promote the use of Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) as an important means to achieve speedy and impartial justice and declog court dockets.
- 3. The Company shall provide means for the use of ADR as an efficient tool and an alternative procedure for the resolution of appropriate cases.
- 4. The Company shall consider and explore with the other party or parties involved mutually acceptable alternative means or procedures for resolving such dispute that are provided by law prior to resorting to court action, to the extent that such is feasible and will not prejudice the rights and interests of the Company.

Audit Committee ("Committee"): Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers

The primary purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for:

- 1. the integrity of the Company's accounting and financial reporting principles and policies, and system of internal controls, including the integrity of the Company's financial statements and the independent audit thereof;
- 2. the Company's compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
- 3. the Company's assessment and management of enterprise risks including credit, market, liquidity, operational and legal risks; and
- 4. the Company's audit process and the performance of the Company's internal audit organization and External Auditor, including the External Auditor's qualifications and independence.

The primary responsibility of the Committee is oversight. Management is responsible for the integrity of the Company's financial statements and disclosures and for maintaining effective internal controls. The External Auditor is responsible for the proper audit and review of the Company's financial statements as may be required prior to the filing thereof with various stock exchanges and government entities. In fulfilling their responsibilities hereunder, it is recognized that Members are not full-time employees of the Company and are not, and do not represent themselves to be, accountants or auditors by profession or experts in the fields of accounting or auditing. As such, as it is not the duty or responsibility of the Committee or its Members to conduct "field work" or other types of auditing or accounting reviews or procedures and each Member will be relying in part on the expertise of Management and the External Auditor. Each Member shall be entitled to rely on:

- the integrity of those persons and organizations within and outside the Company that it receives information from;
- the accuracy of the financial and other information provided to the Committee by such persons or organizations absent actual knowledge to the contrary (which shall be promptly reported to the Board); and
- the representations made by Management as to any information technology, internal audit and other non-audit services provided by the External Auditor to the Company.

The External Auditor shall report directly to the Committee. The Committee has the direct responsibility for the appointment, setting of compensation, retention, removal and oversight of the work of the External Auditor.

Duties and Powers

To carry out its purposes, the Committee shall have the following duties and powers:

- 1. With respect to the External Auditor:
 - 1.1 review and evaluate the qualifications, performance and independence of the External Auditor and its lead audit partner primarily responsible for the audit of the Company's financial accounts;
 - 1.2 select and appoint the External Auditor and remove or replace the External Auditor as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate;
 - 1.3 review and approve in consultation with the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and the head of the finance organization, all audit and non-audit services to be performed by the External Auditor and all fees to be paid to the External Auditor for such services; and ensure that non-audit services, if allowed or approved, are disclosed in the Company's annual report;
 - 1.4 periodically review fees for non-audit services paid to the External Auditor in relation to their significance to the total annual income of the External Auditor and to the Company's overall consultancy expenses, and disallow any non-audit services that will conflict with the External Auditor's duties to the Company as such or may pose a threat to its independence;
 - 1.5 ensure that the External Auditor prepares and delivers annually a formal written statement delineating all relationships between the External Auditor and the Company (Statement as to Independence) as required by the prevailing applicable Independence Standards, and discuss with the External Auditor and evaluate any relationships or services disclosed in such Statement that may impact the objectivity, independence or quality of services of the External Auditor and take appropriate action in response to such Statement to satisfy itself of the External Auditor's independence;
 - 1.6 review, based upon the External Auditor's formal written statement (Auditors' Statement) submitted at least annually, the External Auditor's internal quality-control procedures; any material issues raised by the most recent internal quality-control review or peer review of the External Auditor, or by any inquiry or investigation by governmental or professional authorities within the preceding five (5) years, regarding one or more independent audits carried out by the External Auditor; and any steps taken to deal with any such issues; and
 - 1.7 ensure that the External Auditor, or its lead audit partner primarily responsible for the audit or review of the Company's financial accounts is rotated at least once every five (5) years or such shorter or longer period provided under applicable laws and regulations.

- 2. With respect to internal audit:
 - 2.1 review the appointment, removal and replacement of the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer who shall functionally report directly to the Committee, and ensure that the internal audit organization shall be free from interference by outside parties in the performance of its work;
 - 2.2 advise the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer that he is expected to provide to the Committee summaries of and, as appropriate, significant reports to Management prepared by the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and Management's responses thereto;
 - 2.3 review and approve the audit plan (which shall include the audit scope, resources and budget necessary to implement it) of the internal audit organization, and ensure that internal audit examinations cover at least the evaluation of adequacy and effectiveness of controls encompassing the Company's governance, operations, information systems, including the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguarding of assets and compliance with laws, rules and regulations;
 - 2.4 require the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer to render to the Committee an annual report on the internal audit organization's activities, purposes, and authorities, responsibilities and performance relative to the audit plans and strategies approved by the Committee. Such annual report shall include significant risk exposures and control issues, corporate governance issues and other matters requested by the Committee or the Board;
 - 2.5 require a statement from the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer that the activities of the internal audit organization are conducted in accordance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing; if otherwise, a disclosure that the internal audit organization has not yet fully achieved compliance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing; and
 - 2.6 conduct an annual review and, if deemed appropriate, cause an update, of the Company's Internal Audit Charter.
- 3. With respect to financial reporting principles and policies and system of internal controls:
 - 3.1 advise Management and the External Auditor that they are expected to provide to the Committee a timely analysis of significant/critical financial reporting issues and practices;
 - 3.2 obtain and consider any reports or communications (and Management's and/or the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer's responses thereto) submitted to the Committee by the External Auditor as required by or referred to in the prevailing applicable Auditing Standard, including reports and communications related to:
 - 3.2.1 the External Auditor's responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards;
 - 3.2.2 the External Auditor's responsibility for other information in documents containing audited financial statements;
 - 3.2.3 consideration of fraud in a financial statement audit;
 - 3.2.4 detection of fraud and illegal acts, whether or not material, that involve Management or other employees who have a significant role in the Company's internal controls, and that cause a material misstatement of the financial statements;
 - 3.2.5 significant/critical accounting policies and practices and any major issues regarding, or significant changes in, accounting principles or financial statement presentation;
 - 3.2.6 methods of accounting for significant unusual transactions and for controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance;
 - 3.2.7 Management's judgments and accounting estimates;
 - 3.2.8 all alternative treatments of financial information within generally accepted accounting principles that have been discussed by the External Auditor with Management, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosures and treatments, and the treatment preferred by the External Auditor;
 - 3.2.9 the effect of regulatory and accounting initiatives, as well as off-balance sheet structures, on the financial statements;
 - 3.2.10 the External Auditor's judgments about the quality of the Company's accounting principles;
 - 1.2.11 significant deficiencies and material weaknesses noted in the audit in the design or operation of internal controls;
 - 3.2.12 adjustments arising from the audit;
 - 3.2.13 any material written communication between the External Auditor and Management such as any management letter or schedule of unadjusted differences;
 - ${\bf 3.2.14}\ \ any\ significant\ disagreements\ with\ Management;$
 - 3.2.15 major issues discussed with Management in connection with initial or recurring retention;
 - 3.2.16 consultation by Management with other accountants;

- 3.2.17 any restriction on audit scope and the External Auditor's activities or access to requested information;
- 3.2.18 difficulties encountered with Management while performing the audit; and
- 3.2.19 reviews of interim financial information conducted by the External Auditor as may be required under applicable laws and regulations.
- 1.3 meet with Management, the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and/or the External Auditor to:
- 3.3.1 discuss the scope of the annual audit;
- 3.3.2 review and discuss the quarterly unaudited financial statements and the annual audited financial statements (including the disclosures under Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations) with particular focus on, among other matters: (a) any change(s) in significant/critical accounting policies and practices, and issues related thereto; (b) major Management judgmental areas; (c) going concern assumptions, (d) compliance with applicable accounting standards, and (e) significant adjustments arising from the audit of the full year financial statements.
- 3.3.3 discuss any earnings press releases, and financial information and earnings guidance provided to analysts and rating agencies; and
- 3.3.4 discuss any significant changes to the Company's auditing and accounting principles, policies, controls, procedures and practices proposed or contemplated by the External Auditor, the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer or Management.
- 3.4 obtain from the External Auditor assurance that the audit was conducted in a manner consistent with certain procedures to be followed in any audit of financial statements required under the applicable rules of the relevant stock exchange, securities and exchange commission and other regulatory bodies;
- 3.5 ensure that Management has established and maintains and periodically reviews/evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control system;
- 3.6 review on a semi-annual basis (a) internal control, (b) financial reporting, (c) internal audit activities, (d) external audit activities, (e) regulatory, legal and tax matters, (f) reporting responsibilities;
- 3.7 resolve disagreements between Management and the External Auditor regarding financial reporting;
- 3.8 have separate sessions periodically, with Management, with the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer and with the External Auditor as the Committee may deem necessary to surface issues warranting the attention of the Committee; and
- 3.9 ensure that the External Auditor and the internal audit organization act independently from each other, and that the Company or Management grants the External Auditor and the internal audit organization unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to enable the performance of their respective audit functions.
- 4. With respect to enterprise risks:
 - 4.1 review and discuss with Management and the Internal Audit Head/Chief Audit Officer, and/or the External Auditor the policies and processes adopted by Management with respect to risk identification, assessment and management; and
 - 4.2 require Management to provide a report to and discuss with the Committee about the Company's significant or major risk exposures, if any, and the steps taken by Management to monitor or manage such risks.
- 5. With respect to legal and regulatory compliance:
 - 5.1 monitor compliance and adherence by the Company with all applicable laws and regulations pursuant to which the Company conducts its operations and business activities;
 - 5.2 in case of failure by the CEO or the General Counsel to adopt, as necessary, appropriate remedial measures or sanctions with respect to any reported material violation of securities law or breach of fiduciary duty or similar violations by the Company, consider such reported violation and recommend the appropriate sanction therefor; and
 - 5.3 discuss with the Company's General Counsel or Chief Governance Officer/Compliance Officer any significant legal matters that may have a material effect on the financial statements, the Company's compliance policies, including material notices to or inquiries from governmental agencies.
- 6. With respect to reporting and recommendations:
 - 6.1 establish or assess the procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters, and the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of the Company of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters;
 - 6.2 conduct investigations of identified irregularities in the operations of the Company and anomalies on matters relating to finance and of funds disbursement which bear strategic significance to the Company and recommend to the Board the necessary actions to remedy, correct and prevent the repetition of such anomalies;

- 6.3 set clear hiring policies for employees or former employees of the External Auditor;
- 6.4 prepare any report, including any recommendation of the Committee, required by the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission to be included in the Company's annual proxy / information statement;
- 6.5 review this Charter at least annually and recommend any necessary changes to the Board;
- 6.6 report the Committee's activities to the Board at least once each year and make such recommendations with respect thereto and other matters as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate; and
- 6.7 prepare and review with the Board an annual performance evaluation of the Committee, which evaluation must compare the performance of the Committee with the requirements of its Charter, set forth the goals and objectives of the Committee for the ensuing year and include any recommendation to the Board on any improvements to this Charter deemed necessary or desirable by the Committee; provided that such report to the Board may take the form of an oral report by the Chairman of the Committee or any other Member designated by the Committee to make such report.

ACGR Item E.1: "Nomination Committee (Governance and Nomination Committee)"

Governance and Nomination Committee ("Committee"): Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers

The primary purposes of the Committee are to:

- 1. Oversee the development and implementation of corporate governance principles and policies;
- 2. Review and evaluate the qualifications of the persons nominated to the Board as well as those nominated to other positions requiring appointment by the Board;
- 3. Identify persons believed to be qualified to become members of the Board and/or the Board Committees;
- 4. Assist the Board in making an assessment of the Board's effectiveness in the process of replacing or appointing new members of the Board and/or Board Committees; and
- 5. Assist the Board in developing and implementing the Board's performance evaluation process.

Duties and Powers

To carry out its purposes, the Committee shall have the following duties and powers:

A. Governance Function

- 1. Corporate Governance Principles, Structures and Policies
 - 1.1 Assist the Board in ensuring and overseeing the development of appropriate corporate governance, principles, structures and policies for the Company in order to establish and maintain good governance and high ethical standards in the Company;
 - 1.2 Oversee the review and assessment once every two (2) years of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's corporate governance principles, structures and policies, including the CG Manual and the Code of Ethics, and ensure their compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to recommend any desirable changes thereto for approval by the Board; and
 - 1.3 Assist the Board in overseeing the development of corporate governance principles, structures, and policies in the Company's subsidiaries.
- 2. Compliance and Implementation
 - 2.1 Ensure that the Company establishes and reviews at least once every two (2) years, an implementation mechanism and structure for its CG Manual and the Code of Ethics, and related policies that may be issued pursuant thereto, such as policies on whistle-blowing and non-retaliation for reports of violation;
 - 2.2 Oversee the implementation of the Company's corporate governance principles and policies and the Company's compliance therewith and with applicable laws and regulations on corporate governance;
 - 2.3 Establish the appropriate evaluation system for purposes of monitoring and assessing compliance with the CG Manual and the applicable provisions of the Governance Code by the Company, Board and Management, which evaluation system shall be approved by the Board;
 - 2.4 Assist the Board in the establishment and implementation of an appropriate performance evaluation/self-assessment process for the Board, the individual Board members and the Board Committees;
 - 2.5 Consider, resolve and/or submit its recommendation to the Board on corporate governance issues including, but not limited to, requests for waivers of any of the provisions of the Code of Ethics;
 - 2.6 After proper investigation, notice and hearing, determine and recommend to the Chairman of the Board the appropriate penalty for violations of the CG Manual as may be reported by the Chief Governance Officer, subject to further review and approval by the Board;
 - 2.7 Conduct or delegate to appropriate sub-committees, business units in the Company or independent third parties, as the Committee may deem appropriate, investigations of identified violations of the CG Rules by a Director, the Chief Executive Officer or any other Officer, and recommend to the Board the necessary actions to remedy, correct and prevent the repetition of such infractions;
 - 2.8 Oversee the continuing corporate governance communication and education programs for the Board members and employees of the Company;
 - 2.9 Review the appointment and replacement of the Chief Governance Officer;
 - 2.10 Advise the Chief Governance Officer that he is expected to provide to the Committee summaries of and, as appropriate, the significant reports to Management prepared by the CGO and Management's responses thereto; and
 - 2.11 Recommend to the Board such actions in relation to the Company's corporate governance that are in the best interest of the Company as the Committee shall deem appropriate or as may be otherwise required by governmental or regulatory bodies having jurisdiction.

B. Nomination Function

- 1. Nomination of Directors and Independent Directors
 - 1.1 Pre-screen and shortlist candidates nominated to become a member of the Board in accordance with the qualifications and disqualifications set forth in Annexes B and C hereof and such other factors which the Committee may deem appropriate such as judgment, skill, experience with other business organizations of a size comparable to that of the Company, the interplay of a candidate's experience with the experience of other Directors, and possible conflict of interest.
 - (a) In the screening of candidates for directorship, the Committee shall, likewise, determine whether such candidates' directorships in other corporations would affect his capacity to serve and perform his duties as a Director diligently and efficiently. For the purposes of making such a determination and recommending to the Board any limit on the number of directorships in other corporations of a Director, the Committee shall consider the following, among other factors:
 - (i) the nature of the business of the Company;
 - (ii) the number of directorships/active memberships and officerships of a Director in other corporations or organizations;
 - (iii) any possible conflict of interest; and
 - (iv) the age of the Director.
 - (b) The Committee shall ensure that the Executive Directors, the Independent Directors, and non-Executive Directors who serve as full-time executives in other corporations shall submit themselves to a low-indicative limit on directorships in other corporations. In any case, the capacity of said directors to serve and perform their duties and responsibilities to the Company diligently and efficiently shall not be compromised.
 - 1.2 Pre-screen the candidates nominated for election as Independent Directors and determine if they are eligible for election as such, taking into consideration the qualifications specified in Annex B hereof, the independence criteria/standards provided in Annex A hereof and such other independence criteria/standards as may be considered and recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board.
 - 1.3 Determine, identify and prepare a final list of the qualified Director and Independent Director nominees and recommend that the Board approve such final list and recommend to stockholders the qualified nominees included in the final list for election in the annual meeting of stockholders.
 - 1.4 In case a vacancy in the Board other than by removal of a Director or expiration of the term of office of a Director occurs, determine and identify the qualified director/Independent Director nominee and recommend that the Board elect such qualified nominee to fill the vacancy.
 - 1.5 Identify and recommend Directors to fill vacancies in any of the Board Committees, taking into consideration the factors set out in the respective Charters of said Committees as well as any other factors it deems appropriate.

2. Related Functions

- 2.1 Make recommendations to the Board, from time to time, as to changes which the Committee believes desirable to the size of the Board.
- 2.2 Ensure that the Company shall have at least two (2) Independent Directors or such Independent Directors shall constitute at least twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Board, whichever is lesser, or such minimum number of Independent Directors as may be required by applicable law or regulation.
- 2.3 Redefine, in consultation with the Board, the roles, duties and responsibilities of the President/Chief Executive Officer, if the Committee believes that such is necessary in order to integrate the dynamic requirements of the business as a going concern and the future plans of the Company, subject at all times to the principles of sound corporate governance.

C. Reporting and Recommendations

- 1. Report the Committee's activities to the Board of Directors at least once each year and make such recommendations with respect thereto and other matters as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate.
- 2. Prepare an annual performance evaluation of the Committee, which evaluation must compare the performance of the Committee with the requirements of its Charter, set forth the goals and objectives of the Committee for the ensuing year and include any recommendation to the Board on any improvements to this Charter deemed necessary or desirable by the Committee; provided that such report to the Board may take the form of an oral report by the Chairman of the Committee or any other Member designated by the Committee to make such report.

ACGR Item E.1: "Remuneration Committee (Executive Compensation Committee)"

Executive Compensation Committee ("Committee"): Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers

The primary purposes of the Committee are to:

- 1. Provide guidance to and assist the Board in developing a compensation philosophy or policy consistent with the culture, strategy and control environment of the Company;
- 2. Oversee the development and administration of the Company's executive compensation programs, including long term incentive plans and equity based plans for Officers and Executives; and
- 3. Assist the Board in the performance evaluation of and succession planning for Officers, including the CEO, and in overseeing the development and implementation of professional development programs for Officers.

Duties and Powers

To carry out its purposes, the Committee shall have the following duties and powers:

- I. Compensation Philosophy
 - (i) Oversee the formulation and development of a corporate compensation philosophy and strategy consistent with the Company's culture, business strategy and the control environment in which it operates, and recommend approval thereof by the Board of Directors; and
 - (ii) Review the effectiveness and appropriateness of the Company's compensation philosophy and strategy and its implementation at least every two (2) years.
- II. Compensation Policies and Programs

A. President and CEO

- (i) Review and approve corporate goals and objectives relevant to the compensation of the President and CEO, evaluate the performance of the President and CEO in light of those goals and objectives, and set the compensation level of the President and CEO based on this such evaluation; and
- (ii) In determining the long-term incentive component of the compensation of the President and CEO consider, among other factors, the Company's performance and relative shareholder return, the value of similar incentive awards to chief executive officers at comparable companies and the awards given to the President and CEO in the past years.
- B. Other Members of Management and Key Personnel
 - (i) Assist in the development of the Company's over-all compensation and retirement policies and programs based on the Board-approved compensation philosophy, including but not limited to the following:
 - (a) The design of the compensation, retention and retirement plans or programs;
 - (b) The range of the compensation or retention packages based on appropriate benchmarks and performance metrics; and
 - (c) A formal and transparent procedure for implementation.
 - (ii) Review and recommend to the Board for approval, any long term incentive plans and equity-based plans for Officers, Executives and other key personnel and discharge any responsibilities imposed on the Committee by any of these plans; and
 - (iii) Review and recommend to the Board for approval any retention, or severance or similar plans or arrangements applicable to current or former Officers, Executives and other key personnel of the Company and payments proposed to be made pursuant thereto.

C. Directors

- Periodically evaluate and, if the Committee deems appropriate, recommend to the Board adjustments in the amount of per diems taking into consideration the compensation practices of other listed companies of comparable size and the performance of the Company. The Committee may also recommend to and review with the Board any proposal to grant compensation or other forms of remuneration, such as stock options, to Directors, provided that any such proposal shall be subject to stockholders' approval as required by law. The Directors shall not decide on their own compensation, other than per diems.
- Ensure that Directors shall not receive any compensation, as such, except for reasonable per diems, unless such compensation
 is provided in the By-Laws or granted by a vote of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the outstanding capital
 stock of the Company.

III. Development Programs and Succession Planning

(i) Cause the development of a form on Full Business Interest Disclosure as part of the pre-employment requirements for all incoming Officers, Executives and other key personnel which, among other requirements, compel all such Officers,

Executives and key personnel to declare all their existing business interests or shareholdings that may directly or indirectly conflict with the performance of their duties. Failure to properly disclose such interests shall be subject to the relevant rules and policies of the Company;

- (ii) Review any existing Human Resources Development or Personnel Handbook, and consider and approve recommendations of the Company's Human Resources Head for strengthening provisions on conflict of interest, salaries and benefits, promotions and career advancement directives and ensuring compliance by personnel concerned with all statutory requirements that must be met as a condition for maintaining their employment or, in the absence of such Personnel Handbook, to cause the development of such, covering the same parameters of governance stated above;
- (iii) Review the general criteria for the employment and promotion of Officers, Executives and key personnel, consider and approve any proposed update to such criteria as well as any training and development plans for such Officers, Executives and key personnel which may be recommended by the Company's Human Resources Head, and keep track of the performance and development of such Officers, Executives and key personnel;
- (iv) Review and, as the Committee may deem necessary, recommend to the Board for approval any amendments to any executive performance evaluation system of the Company; and
- (v) Review potential career paths for selected high-potential Officers, Executives and key personnel of the Company and Management's succession plan as developed or recommended by the President and CEO and/or Human Resources Head.

IV. Reporting and Recommendations

- (i) Cause the preparation of a clear, concise and understandable disclosure of the compensation of the Officers and other key
 personnel for the previous fiscal year and the ensuing year which are required to be included in the Company's annual
 report, proxy/information statements and other reports pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code and
 its Implementing Rules and Regulations;
- (ii) Report the Committee's activities to the Board at least once a year and make such recommendation with respect thereto and other matters as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate; and prepare and present to the Board a summary of the actions taken at each Committee meeting; and
- (iii) Prepare and review with the Board an annual performance evaluation of the Committee, which evaluation must compare the performance of the Committee with the requirements of this Charter, set forth the goals and objectives of the Committee for the ensuing year and include any recommendation to the Board on any improvements to this Charter deemed necessary or desirable by the Committee; provided that such report to the Board may take the form of an oral report by the Chairman of the Committee or any other member of the Committee designated by the Committee to make such report.

ACGR Item F.1: "Other Board Committees (Technology Strategy Committee)"

Technology Strategy Committee ("Committee"): Functions, Key Responsibilities and Powers

The primary purposes of the Committee are to assist and enable the Board to:

- 1. review and approve the strategic vision for the role of technology in the Company's overall business strategy, including the technology strategy and roadmap of the Company;
- 2. fulfill its oversight responsibilities for the Company's effective execution of its technology-related strategies; and
- 3. ensure the optimized use and contribution of technology to the Company's business and strategic objectives and growth targets.

The primary responsibility of the Committee is oversight. Management is responsible for defining the Company's technology strategy and roadmap.

Duties and Powers

To carry out its purposes, the Committee shall have the following duties and powers:

- 1. Review, evaluate and make recommendations to the Board regarding:
 - a. the Company's major technology strategy, competitiveness and position relative to existing, emerging and future trends and opportunities in technologies relevant to the business of the Company; and
 - b. the application of technology in the pursuit of the Company's strategic goals and objectives.
- 2. Assist and enable the Board to achieve an understanding of the technologies necessary to carry out the Company's strategic growth plans, as well as technology issues, opportunities and risks relevant to the Company's overall business strategy;
- 3. Review the soundness of and risks associated with the technologies in which the Company has invested or intends to invest, and make the appropriate recommendations to the Board based on such review;
- 4. Review and make recommendations to the Board relative to the Company's technology budget, proposals for major technology-related acquisitions, transactions, investment levels, partnerships and alliances;
- 5. Review, report and make recommendations to the Board relative to Management's formulation, execution, and overall performance in achieving technology-related strategic goals and objectives;
- 6. Oversee the technology strategies of the Company's subsidiaries and their implementation.
- 7. Recommend to the Board appropriate technology-related training and programs for the Board members;
- 8. Have unrestricted access to Management, employees and information the Committee considers relevant to its role, purposes and duties;
- 9. Review this Charter at least once every two (2) years and recommend any necessary changes hereto to the Board;
- 10. Report the Committee's activities to the Board at least once a year and make such recommendations with respect thereto and other matters as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate; and
- 11. Prepare an annual performance evaluation of the Committee, which evaluation must compare the performance of the Committee with the requirements of this Charter, set forth the goals and objectives of the Committee for the ensuing year and include any recommendation to the Board on any improvements to this Charter deemed necessary or desirable by the Committee; provided that such report to the Board may take the form of an oral report by the Chairman of the Committee or any other Member designated by the Committee to make such report.

ACGR Item H.1: "Customers' Welfare"

Activities undertaken by the Company to enhance customer experience:

- 1. Initiated the Business Office Transformation Program aimed at equipping the business frontliners with the competencies and skills to handle sales functions while, at the same time, providing excellent customer service.
- 2. Implemented business office (BO) renovations to maintain a common look and feel across all BOs. The highlight of this was the segregation of the payment center from the sales and after sales areas of the BO for customer convenience and overall better customer experience.
- 3. Entered into partnership with Hong Kong based PCCW Global to undertake a new international fiber optic project, the Asia-Africa-Europe 1 (AA-1) Cable System, which will further increase PLDT's international bandwidth capacity and raise the resiliency of our overseas links as it enhances the quality of data and internet connections for our customers. The 25,000-kilometer undersea cable network system will connect Asia, the Middle East, East Africa, and Europe and enable the delivery of quality service to our customers.
- 4. PLDT is partnering with SMS Global Technologies (SMSGT), Philipps Healthcare, and Medavis and is set to introduce the new Radiology Information System/Picture Archiving and Communications System (RIS/PACS) solution that combines hardware, software, and network connectivity. This will allow hospitals and specialists to digitally access, archive, and interpret x-ray, CT-scan, ultrasound, and MRI images as a fully managed service offering. The RIS solution fully automates the hospital's radiology processes from imaging to analysis which are sent digitally and without need of film. The PACS solution, as a secondary component, automatically converts existing films into digital copies for archiving and allows radiologists to access the files remotely for prompt and proper interpretation. This solution ultimately redounds to the benefit of patients resulting from quicker, higher-quality results and diagnosis.
- 5. Launched PLDT Fiber Link Expansion to boost BPO and tourism industries in quake-hit regions starting in Bohol, coinciding with the province's 160th foundation day. Consisting of 328 kilometers of inland and submarine fiber optic cables running from Cebu through Bohol to Cagayan de Oro, PLDT's DFON in Bohol is expected to boost the outsourcing and tourism industries forming part of the pillars of the provincial government's economic development program.
- 6. PLDT has expanded its Time-Division Duplex-Long Term Evolution (TD-LTE) network to over 400 cell sites at the end of September 2014, providing high-speed internet services to more Filipino homes and further strengthening connections all over the country, especially those in remote towns and provinces. The current total is more than double the 200 TD-LTE sites that had been installed as of April this year in such provinces as Cagayan in Northern Luzon and Davao del Sur in Mindanao. Furthermore, the TD-LTE expansion will expand the reach of the PLDT service in existing sites, such as Cebu, and cover new areas like the province of Bohol and the tourist center of Boracay, Aklan.
- 7. Outsourced the cashiering function to a third party service provider to de-load the BO staff from handling of payment transactions so they can focus on sales and after-sales activities.
- 8. The introduction of alternative channels to regular business channels were as follows:
 - a. TxtPress: an SMS based service which allows customers to report their complaints, as well as apply and inquire about their bill.
 - b. InfoTouch: the kiosks at the Business Offices that provide product and billing information to customers to avoid queuing at the BOs.
 - c. Improved interactive voice response system (IVRS) an enhancement at the Call Center to provide billing information to avoid queuing of customer calls.

ACGR Item H.1: "Environmentally friendly value chain"

Activities undertaken by the Company related to promoting an environmentally friendly value chain:

- Balik Baterya Program in partnership with Philippine Business for Social Progress (PBSP) and Motolite: PLDT donated used lead-acid batteries (ULAB) for recycling. Hazardous waste from batteries is disposed properly while generating funds through the production of new batteries. For 2014, PLDT remains the program's top donor, turning over almost 1.5 million kilos of ULABs amounting to Php 27 million and with these, was able to provide 54 LRCs, construct roads, drainage systems and other facilities such as multi-purpose centers, and organize tuberculosis prevention programs. PLDT was likewise able to construct 11 new classrooms and repaired 6 classrooms nationwide.
- 2. PLDT "TELEpuno" tree-planting project: In partnership with the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR), PBSP, Multi-Sectoral Watershed Management Council, Inc. and the local governments of Infanta and Real, Quezon, a 5-year tree-planting program which aims to plant 80,000 seedlings in the area has been implemented to regenerate the natural ecology of 80 hectares of Infanta-Real Quezon watershed forest reserve. The project has benefited at least four people's organizations covering 80 farmers.

- 3. 66K M.V.P. (Movement for Volunteerism and Partnership) Trees environmental greening project: In time for PLDT Chairman Manuel V. Pangilinan's 66th Birthday, the PLDT 66K M.V.P. Trees environmental greening project aimed at planting 66,000 trees was undertaken. The activity was participated in by MVP Group of Companies which covered the areas of Benguet, Pampanga, Bulacan, Marikina, Iloilo and Cebu.
- 4. Cebu Hillylands tree-planting project: PLDT Group employee-volunteers and PBSP community partners have planted more than a million trees in the Cebu Hillylands.
- 5. Earth Day celebration: An eLakad (ecological Lakad) fun walk was staged in coordination with the local government of Quezon City, the DENR and Earth Day Network Philippines.
- 6. River Clean-up and Mangrove Reforestation in Iloilo City: The project was carried out in partnership with the City of Iloilo.
- 7. "Shore it Up: Rescue, Restore, Revive" environmental awareness program: PLDT supported the Metro Pacific Investments Corp. (MPIC) in this project which covered environmental stewardship talks, tree-planting, coastal and underwater clean-up and artificial reef placement.
- 8. The 1st Philippine International River Summit: PLDT was a co-presentor during the event held in Iloilo City, which drew participants from various countries including Canada, Czech Republic, and Indonesia to discuss ways of saving vital waterways from pollution.
- 9. North Luzon Expressway Flowering Program PLDT supported Manila North Tollways Corp. (MNTC) for its North Luzon Expressway corporate social responsibility programs, specifically the flowering activity comprising of supplying seeds of yellow bouganvilleas, planting and maintaining the plants for three months.
- 10. Sacred Compact of Mutual Recognition with the Higaunen-Talandig-Bukidnen Tribe Committed to maintain its stature as an environment-friendly and culture-sensitive entity, PLDT signed a sacred compact of mutual recognition with the Higaunen-Talandig-Bukidnen tribe. The signing formalized efforts to help improve the tribe's ancestral domain. In addition the Company provided the community with computer units to help the residents become more familiar and adept with their computer skills.
- 11. Partnership with the Philippine Eagle Foundation in empowering indigenous communities by providing them opportunities to help conserve the environment, help solve the biodiversity crises and support them in education and livelihood programs.

ACGR Item H.1: "Community interaction"

Activities undertaken by the Company related to community interaction:

Education:

- 1. PLDT Infoteach Outreach Program: Spearheaded by PLDT Community Relations, the program provides learning opportunities to high school students as well as elementary and high school teachers from across the nation by upgrading their cyber technology skills through internet and basic IT education.
- 2. Partnership with University of the Philippines Open University (UPOU), Philippine Community eCenter Network (PhilCeCNet): Taking the PLDT Infoteach Outreach Program to greater heights, covering municipalities from Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao, the project employed Intel curricula/modules entitled "Skills for Success" for high school students and Intel Teach: Getting Started Course for the teachers. Qualified teachers-graduates were offered scholarships in UPOU.
- 3. PLDT myDSL Broadband Quiz Contest: Under the PLDT Infoteach Outreach Program for teachers and students (regional online nationwide and grand finals)
- 4. PLDT-UPOU Online Teachers Development Program: Provides scholarship grants to qualified graduates of PLDT Infoteach program enabling teachers to enroll in the Diploma in Computer Science program offered online by UPOU as a priority course. Participants can enroll in other courses necessary for their personal growth and development.
- 5. Teachers Development Program: In partnership with UPOU, the Department of Education (DepEd), and local government units of Quezon province, the program aimed at upgrading the skills and knowledge of Science, Math and Language teachers through enrollment at UPOU. PLDT donated computers to 44 public schools in Quezon province.
- 6. eLearning Ville Program: This is a multi-sectoral program aimed at making a certain area of the community/town a learning hub through technology with PLDT donating computer units and facilitating provision of internet access for the establishment of a Community eCenter.
- 7. Philippine Digital Literacy for Women: PLDT, in partnership with UPOU, PhilCeCNet and Intel, provided support in a campaign to train 10,000 grassroots women by providing and mobilizing required resources.
- 8. Balik Eskwela Project: In partnership with DepEd involving beautification campaign for public schools, PLDT donated paints, hand wash facilities and school supplies as well as helped in re-painting, cleaning and gardening of Catmon Elementary School in Malabon and Luyang Elementary School in Carmen, Cebu.
- 9. 2G Program This PLDT program provided scholarships to aspiring teachers with a total of 754 scholars at the end of 2013.
- 10. 2G's Teacher's Treasure Chest This PLDT training program produced 3,439 graduates from 12 classes nationwide in 2013. English proficiency training was also given to 209 teachers in seven provinces, namely Siquijor, Ilocos Norte, Antique, Camarines Sur, Zamboanga del Sur, Negros Oriental and Cavite.
- 11. Kariton Klasrum PLDT has recently supported the Kariton Klasrum project of Dynamic Teen Company (DTC) headed by CNN Hero Efren Penaflorida for the children who were affected by typhoon Yolanda in Palo, Leyte. The project provides an alternative delivery or mode of learning for the affected children to continue their education while waiting for their classrooms to be built and be back to mainstream education.
- 12. Donation of school buildings, classrooms and/or learning centers to various barangays.

<u>Health</u>:

- 1. PLDT medical and dental missions: Provided free medical and dental services for victims of calamities and disasters, impoverished constituents of various municipalities as well as indigenous minority groups.
- 2. Bloodletting project: "Dugong PLDT", in partnership with the Philippine Children's Medical Center (PCMC) and Philippine National Red Cross (PNRC), PLDT employees from various offices donate blood in support of the Department of Health's (DOH) campaign of providing safe blood to those in need.
- 3. Feeding program: Part of PLDT's efforts of promoting good nutrition among the marginalized families in the communities of Barangay 19, Bacolod.

Arts:

- Sining Buhay Para sa Kalikasan: a collage art-making project using recyclable materials in partnership with Earth Day Network Philippines. A one-day workshop for 85 budding artists from CRIBS Foundation, Persons with Disability – Valenzuela, Las Piñas, Makati, and Quezon City Chapters, and Smokey Mountain's Sandiwaan Learning Center, provided aspiring artists the opportunity to turn trash into one-of-a-kind works of art.
- 2. Akapela Open A musical creation of OPM advocate and musical genius Ryan Cayabyab and co-presented by PLDT-SMART Foundation and One Meralco Foundation. It is the country's first and only a capella ensemble singing contest.

Livelihood:

- Donation of old telephone directories: Donation was given to inmates of female dormitories in Camp Karingal, Quezon City and the Inmates Welfare and Development at the Quezon City Jail. Old telephone directories were used as materials in making baskets, decorations and gift items.
- 2. PLDT *TELEpuno* livelihood component: Now on its 5th year of implementation, the program assists in the rehabilitation of Proclamation 158 Infanta-Real Watershed in the boundaries of Infanta and Real in Quezon province by planting trees in the area. But a collateral effect was an alternative livelihood project for its partner communities within the watershed forest reserve, in cooperation with PBSP. A community livelihood assessment is being conducted in the communities prior to the turnover of the livelihood projects.
 - PLDT constructed a fish nursery and provided 5,500 pangasius fries and juvenile fish to the Samahan ng Magbubukid at Mangingisda sa Barangay Cawayan, a farmer organization that served as a partner in the fish production project.
 - KILOS, a partner-women's organization with 30 members from Barangay Gumian, Infanta. Quezon, was provided with four hi-speed electric sewing machines in support of their Eco-Bag Project. Besides giving alternative income to the members, the project also supports the "No Plastic-Use Policy" of Infanta, Quezon, providing reused and recycled bag materials sold cheaply at the community market.
 - KANLUNGAN, another farmer's organization comprising 80 members based in Barangay Magsaysay, Infanta, Quezon, received training on vermin-compost production at PBSP's Center for Rural Technology and Development (CRTD) with the support of local government employees assigned at the Municipal Environment Natural Resources Office of Infanta, Quezon.

Emergency Response:

- PLDT rendered relief operations, medical and dental missions, and feeding programs to calamity victims in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao, including war-torn areas in Zamboanga, earthquake-hit Bohol and provinces damaged by Super Typhoon Yolanda. In 2014, PLDT, together with other member-companies of the PLDT Group, partnered with the Office of the Presidential Assistant for Rehabilitation and Recovery (OPARR), the agency tasked to coordinate efforts for the rehabilitation of areas affected by Super Typhoon Yolanda. Under the agreement of the partnership, PLDT Group will provide OPARR with internet, web hosting and cloud services from PLDT, among others.
- 2. Balik Baterya Program: In partnership with PBSP and Motolite, PLDT donated used lead-acid batteries (ULABs) generated for proper recycling. The Balik Baterya program made possible the proper disposal of hazardous waste from the batteries while generating funds through the production of new automotive and industrial batteries. PLDT uses the generated funds from the *Balik Baterya* program to support its CSR projects such as funding for urban renewal, environment as well educational and health needs of underprivileged communities.
 - PLDT was able to fund and build 23 learning resource centers in the Visayas, benefitting public schools in remote areas of Bohol, Samar, Iloilo and Cebu.
 - In Balungao, Pangasinan, typhoon-damaged classrooms of Mabini and Esmeralda Elementary Schools were repaired.
 - In support of information technology in education, PLDT has established computer laboratories at Barobaybay Academy Mission School in Samar, and at Malabon National High School-Longos Annex in Malabon.
 - The funds were also used in constructing roads, drainage, and alleys for flood-prone areas in Malabon, benefitting a total of 1,000 residents.
 - PLDT held orientation sessions on tuberculosis (TB) awareness and prevention in Pasig City, Caloocan City, Quezon
 City and Bulacan educating 1,788 individuals and training 127 TB educators.

PLDT ensures that these projects are implemented in coordination with concerned local government units, non-government organizations (NGO) and other stakeholders.

Since the program began in 2006, PLDT has been its biggest contributor. In 2012, PLDT donated 144 tons of ULABs amounting to Php3.12 million. In 2013, PLDT donated a total of 160 tons of batteries amounting to Php40.03 million, which was used for the construction and repair of four classrooms and 28 Learning Resource Centers (LRCs) that were given to 31 public schools.

For 2014, PLDT remains the program's top donor, turning over almost 1.5 million kilos of ULABs amounting to Php 27 million and with these, was able to provide 54 LRCs, construct roads, drainage systems and other facilities such as multipurpose centers, and organize tuberculosis prevention programs. PLDT was likewise able to construct 11 new classrooms and repaired 6 classrooms nationwide.

- 3. Donation of personal computers: Old and new computers were donated to various public schools, NGOs, poor communities and municipalities in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao.
- 4. Outreaches in rural areas, home for the aged, hospitals and charitable institutions in the entire archipelago.
- 5. Community sponsorships during big festivals in key cities: Sinulog in Cebu, Dinagyang in Iloilo, Maskarra in Bacolod, Nuestra Señora del Pilar in Zamboanga, Panagbenga in Baguio, Kadayawan in Davao City, Tuna Festival in General Santos City, Peñafrancia Festival in Bicol.
- 6. Religious events sponsorship, such as donation to the canonization of Blessed Pedro Calungsod.